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CORPORATE PROFILE
NGIL

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang
Century”; together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Group”) has been listed on the Stock Exchange since
April 1992. Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the Beijing State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission)
and its controlled corporations, Bekaert and Li Ka Shing
Foundation are the substantial Shareholders of Shougang
Century.

The Group is primarily involved in the following activities:
1. manufacturing of steel cords for radial tyres
2. manufacturing of sawing wires

CORPORATE’S GOAL

. strive for a successful “Eastern” brand awareness and
recognition in Steel cord industry

° be one of the top three independent manufacturers in
China Steel cord industry

° become a diversified metal product manufacturer
capable of consistently purveying premium quality wire
related products

To learn more about Shougang Century, please visit
http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AREH

As at 24 March 2020 R -_FF = A=+ H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Su Fanrong (Chairman and Managing Director)
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (Deputy Managing Director)

Ye Qian
Li Jinping

Non-executive Director
Liao Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yip Kin Man, Raymond

Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)

Su Fanrong (Vice Chairman)

Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Su Fanrong (Chairman)

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Vice Chairman)
Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau
Cheung Wa Ying

COMPANY SECRETARY
Cheung Wa Ying
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

As at 24 March 2020 A-Z-FF=HF -+ H

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China CITIC Bank

Fubon Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

INTERNAL AUDITOR

Moore Advisory Services Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan,

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

WEBSITE FOR PUBLISHING LISTING RULES
RELATED ANNOUNCEMENTS AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/sccentury/

HKEX STOCK CODE
103

LISTING DATE
9 April 1992
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

iR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 Change
BET T BT 25
Revenue from continuing REFELCEEB 2
operations ] 2,141,380 2,122,933 +0.9%
Gross profit from continuing REFELCEEBZ
operations E A 377,944 267,104 +41.5%
Gross profit margin from REFBELCEEG 2
continuing operations ERE 17.6% 12.6%  +5.0ppE 2 %
Adjusted EBITDA (Note (a)) 4ZAEEBITDA (H#1:#(a)) 273,740 183,114 +49.5%
Profit/(loss) for the year NEFRF, (EE) 108,344 (8,681) N/ATiE A
Earnings/(loss) per share for RAGHEE NEIERFE
profit/(loss) for the year wmAl (E18) 2 8k
attributable to the owners &aF, (&) (Bl)
of the Company (HK cents)
Basic BEA 5.63 (0.45) N/AT 8
Diluted s 5.22 (0.45) N/ATE A
Total equity MR 1,415,072 1,339,150 +5.7%
Proposed final dividend per share % K&K S
(HK cents) (B 1 - N/ATiE A
Gearing ratio (Note (b)) BELLE (Kitm)) 50.8% 71.4% -20.6ppH 7 %

Notes:

Bz

(a)  Adjusted EBITDA, a non-HKFRS measure, represents profit before
income tax, loss from discontinued operation, finance costs
(excluding foreign exchange losses on borrowings and Convertible
Bonds), depreciation, amortisation and change in fair value of a
financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

(b)  Gearing ratio represents total interest bearing borrowings less
bank balances and cash (including pledged bank deposits) is
divided by total equity.
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

SENER

mRE

SHARE INFORMATION

Board lot size: 2,000 Shares

Shares issued as at the
last trading day of 2019:

1,922,900,556 Shares

Market capitalisation as at HK$386,503,012

the last trading day of 2019:

Closing share price as at HK$0.201

the last trading day of 2019:

Basic earnings per Share for 2019:
Interim HK1.83 cents
Final HK5.63 cents

Dividend for 2019:

Interim Dividend : Nil

Final Dividend HK1 cent per Share

KEY DATE

Payment Date of 2019 26 June 2020
Final Dividend:

2020 Annual General Meeting: 27 May 2020

Closure of Register of
Members Dates for 2020
Annual General Meeting:

Announcement of 2019
Final Results:

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

21 to 27 May 2020

24 March 2020

Address Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong

Telephone . (852) 2527 2218

Fax . (852) 2861 3527

E-mail address business_link@shougangcentury.com.hk
ir@shougangcentury.com.hk
scchl@shougangcentury.com.hk

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, e.g. transfer of
Shares, change of name or address, lost share certificates
and dividend warrants, should be sent in writing to:

Website

Tricor Tengis Limited

Address Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2980 1333

Fax . (852) 2810 8185
E-mail address is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website http://www.tricoris.com

BHER

BEEBAM: 2,0000&

R-ZT—NEHE 1,922,900,556 %
%EZ%H&%:

RZE-NFHER 75 1386,503,0127T
SHZME:

\—E-NFHRER 7B #0.2017T
SHZWHIE:
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Fh Hf 71 831l

A TS 631l
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ZEERERMHBEER FA-+—8

HE: Z-++tH
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REEBKEN
st . BAKEREHERZNIERLI2E
1215%
Ei . (852) 2527 2218
EH : (852) 2861 3527
SHI business_link@shougangcentury.com.hk

ir@shougangcentury.com.hk
scchl@shougangcentury.com.hk
sk : http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk
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BUSINESS CONTACTS
EHEH

JEsc

TEsc

Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. EE RS MBS ER A T

Address:
Ho ik

Postal code:
AR
Telephone:

B

Fax:

BE:

Website:

Ak

E-mail address:

EH it

1 Dong Fang Road, Jiaxing Economic Development Zone
Zhejiang Province, PRC

H BT & 5 BT 4K 7 A AR R R T B 5%

314003

(86) 573 8222 2790

(86) 573 8221 3500

http://www.jesc.com.cn

jesc@jesc.com.cn

Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. BN R FHELZEGR L T

Address:

ok

Postal code:
AR
Telephone:

B

Fax:

BE:

Website:

Ak

E-mail address:

BE AL

1 Dong Fang Road, Tengzhou Economic Development Zone
Shandong Province, PRC

A B L BR A R O T A R B R R 9 B 1 9%

277500

(86) 632 525 2100

(86) 632 525 2111

http://www.tesc.com.cn

tesc@tesc.com.cn

BEREAE(LEB)EEERLT

Address:

Ak -
Postal code:
AR

Telephone:

==

= X
A

Fax:
BE:

Room 2505, Tower 1, SOHO Tianshan Plaza

No.421 Ziyun Road, Shanghai, PRC

FE BT REREERK4215SOHOX L EHT1-2505F
200051

(86) 21 6291 8806

(86) 21 6291 8805

¥y ANNUAL REPORT 2019 7



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EE L)

Mr. Su Fanrong, aged 52, joined the Group as a deputy
general manager of the Company in January 2015 and was
appointed as the executive deputy managing Director on 1
December 2015. Mr. Su has re-designated as the chairman
of the Company and acted as the chairman and vice-
chairman of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company respectively since 18 January
2018, and he has been appointed as the managing Director
on 31 January 2018. At present, he holds directorship in
all wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. He also
acts as the deputy general manager of Shougang HK. He
holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
Missouri State University and Bachelor degree specialising
in Pressure Processing from University of Science and
Technology Beijing. He joined Shougang Group in 1990 and
had been working in various companies under Shougang
Group during the period from the same year to 2014. Mr. Su
has over 25 years of sales and management experience in
the steel industry.

Other than his directorship and position disclosed above,
Mr. Su does not hold any directorship in the last three years
in public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Su does
not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders. At the date of this annual report, he does
not have any interest in securities of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. A service contract
was entered into between Mr. Su and the Company for a
term commencing from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31
December 2020 to act as an executive deputy managing
Director. Following his re-designation as a Chairman of
the Company, Mr. Su entered into a service contract for a
term commencing from 18 January 2018 and ending on 31
December 2020. The service contract may be terminated
by either party by giving to other party not less than three
months’ notice without payment of any compensation (other
than statutory compensation). However, he is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles.
Mr. Su’s monthly salaries is entitled to HK$220,000 at
present. The emoluments of Directors are determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

BARAZE FE+T _m R_Z—AHFMA
AEEAAAFRREE YR _T—RHF
T A —HEZERESTEHAEBLIE &L
SR N\F—At+ N \BREATAEARQ
AEEREDAETIARARIREZEZESER
MEMWEESRIEE YR —/\F—A
T —HEZAAEFTRKEE BRI BRLAE
BEARAIFEZEMBRAR ZEERBM-
BMEEEIEE B 2 BIBLE - FIFE XN
HEMNYABETITHEEBEL R RRRAS
BEAMIBEEELEN - KR —ANLTEMA
HIMEBNREFE —T—NFHE - TER
BNEEETZEAR BRELEEMETES
BT RAFEEREELR-

Br Ll Fr#e e v BB TE RBALIN BRI AR
BE=ZFALERETBRGINMEREHFT IS
FTHMARARET T EBRIE  griEBR
HMESR SREEASRETEREHITRE
RECEBER RAFRBH HEHKL
HIERBEXVENRZE - B EFEARRQRME
MESFER L EEARNABRIERRAE
EEBRIREE L REEL  BIRAZZT—N
F—-A-ARE-_ZEZ-_FE+_-_A=+—H
I BREEHBRATAEAQRESERE HEHA
NAIRFIZRBEL HRBR2ZE—N\F—A
+N\BRRE_F-_FTF+_F=+—Hlk-
REEHNTHERN—FETES—ATLR=
ERBAEAMmAL L MEALMEMEE X
TEEESRIRIN) - EHEBEREEZMABRER
ARRZBRREBAFAE LinBESRRBRZE
- &R ST AE B BT A JEWER® A 78 %220,0007T
2EHE BEEZMNEEADNT 2 EERAFI
T TMAER R ERMSIREMEE]
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Su’s particulars as being a Director that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (Former name: Tang Kwok
Kau), aged 59, joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed
as the deputy managing Director in March 2000. At present,
he holds directorship in all wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company. He holds a Bachelor and a Master degrees
in Business Administration from York University in Canada.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang had held senior
positions with various international investment banks.
He also has over 15 years’ experience in corporate and
investment banking.

Other than his directorship disclosed above, Mr. Tang
does not hold any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas and
does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial Shareholders or
controlling Shareholders. At the date of this annual report,
he beneficially owns 10,480,000 Shares and in which of
200,000 Shares are jointly owned by his wife within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Tang is entitled to
receive a HK$165,000 monthly salary at present under his
service contract with the Company. The service contract
may be terminated by either party by giving to other party
not less than three months’ notice without payment of any
compensation (other than statutory compensation). There
is no specified or proposed length of service for Mr. Tang
with the Company. However, he will also be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles.
The emoluments of Directors are determined by reference
to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Tang’s particulars as being a Director that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.
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BEREE FHTAR R—AANFMA
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CERLMRERTAEFEBTHFLR-

B LAl PR 2 EERAEIN HMEERIBES
FRALERNBALBIMEMESHH LHHR
FLAREATMESRYG AREAMESR 5
AETE A B3 E B R S A R R A ]
R -NAFHRZBH B S LRE GRS
XVEB R 3 1% & % % 510,480,000/ fx 17 -
i E 200,000 A 17 R B E &+ KA B a5
B REREANRBFIZZRBAH HE
B A ] EUER & A8 #165,0007T 2 # % © %
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Br EXFTEEEIN AL BEERERIEAE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Mr. Ye Qian, aged 35, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 28 June 2019. Mr. Ye has re-designated as an
executive Director since 1 January 2020. He graduated from
the University of Wales with a Master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining Shougang Fund, Mr. Ye
had held senior positions in Great Wall Motor Company
Limited, China Chamber of International Commerce and
Representative Office in Hong Kong & Macao of China
Council for the Promotion of International Trade. Since
Mr. Ye joined Shougang Fund in 2014, he had served as
an assistant to general manager of Beijing West Fund
Management Co., Ltd. and a deputy director of PPP Fund of
Shougang Fund. He has participated in establishment and
investment of numerous funds. He currently serves as an
executive director of Shougang Fund and a general manager
of Beijing Shouyuan Xinneng Investment Management
Co., Ltd.. In all, Mr. Ye has rich experience in automobile
OEM industry, government authorities and foreign-related
business management department and also in corporate
services and project investment.

Other than his directorship disclosed above, Mr. Ye has
not previously held any position with the Group and
does not hold any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Ye does
not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders. At the date of this annual report, he does
not have any interest in securities of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Following Mr. Ye’s re-
designation as an executive Director, the service contract
made between him as a non-executive Director and the
Company was terminated. A new service contract was
entered into between Mr. Ye and the Company for a term
commencing from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31
December 2022 to act as an executive Director. However,
he will hold office until the annual general meeting of the
Company, at which time he will be eligible for re-election in
accordance to the Articles and thereafter will be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles.
Mr. Ye has voluntarily declined any director’'s emoluments.
The emoluments of Directors are determined by reference
to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.

EERE F==TOAn R _T—NLF~A
“tN\BEZERERTEST -EREB T
“EF-A-HREERERBITEST RKEX
RERTARE BFEIREEBET 20 M
ABEHESH  BELERERTERNHAR
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BELENESPPPESRIAE - REL2ESZIA
ETHRIMKE - WA ETEHES T
EERIERETHEREEEER QAL
BoBEMS EAERAEIERBITERE &K
FIHERE  FINERE IR AT R R MIER
REGELELR-

Br bl it PR 2 EE RGN R AN AT &
RAREBET MBS BRBE=ZFRATE
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Mg REERMBRKBREAFTAS tRE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Ye's particulars as being a Director that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Li Jinping, aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2020. Mr. Li was
graduated from Shandong University of Finance and
Economics with a Master degree in Accounting. He is a
senior accountant and a Public Valuer. Mr. Li had worked in
Beijing Supervision Bureau of Ministry of Finance of PRC
(formerly known as “Office of the Financial Supervision
Commissioner of the Ministry of Finance of the People’s
Republic of China in Beijing”) for approximately 18 years
and held various senior positions including the deputy
division director and division director. He was principally
engaged in the work relating to supervision, inspection,
risk control management and so on. In 2019, Mr. Li joined
Shougang HK and currently serves as a financial controller
of Shougang HK. In all, Mr. Li has extensive experience and
expertise in financial supervision and risk control.

B EXFEEEN EAELEEBEEAE
£ AMEREEENERE U RILEE
BRI LT RAIE13.51 QM) E W IERED
Bt
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Other than his directorship disclosed above, Mr. Li has
not previously held any position with the Group and
does not hold any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Li does
not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders. At the date of this annual report, he does
not have any interest in securities of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. A service contract
was entered into between Mr. Li and the Company for a
term commencing from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31
December 2022. However, he will hold office until the annual
general meeting of the Company, at which time he will be
eligible for re-election in accordance to the Articles and
thereafter will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles. Mr. Li has voluntarily declined
any director’s emoluments. The emoluments of Directors
are determined by reference to the Company’s performance
and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Li’s particulars as being a Director that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Br DRI 2 E RGN - A EKRIL &
RAEBETEMEBA BRBE=ZFRTE
REBXGIMEMBHT S ETHRARAF
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Mr. Liao Jun, aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 25 February 2015. Mr. Liao holds a Bachelor
and a Master degrees in Science in Physical Metallurgy from
Central South Mining and Metallurgy Institute and Central
South University of Technology respectively in China. He
further achieved his Doctor of Philosophy in Materials
Science in College of Engineering, University of Michigan
and Master of Business Administration in University of
Michigan Ross School of Business Management.

Mr. Liao was appointed as Divisional CEO Specialty
Businesses in March 2019, he now also acts as the
Executive Vice President North Asia in Bekaert group and
a member of the Bekaert Group Executive. Prior to joining
Bekaert group, he had held various management positions
of several reputable multinational corporations such as Dow
Corning and Solvay. In all, Mr. Liao has over 15 years of
experience in sales and management in industrial chemicals
and polymers businesses.

Other than his directorship disclosed above, Mr. Liao
has not previously held any position with the Group and
does not hold any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Liao does
not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders. At the date of this annual report, he does
not have any interest in securities of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. There is no service
contract between Mr. Liao and the Company since he was
nominated by Bekaert group as a non-executive Director
according to the subscription agreement entered into by
the Company and Bekaert dated 22 September 2006 and
further agreement between Bekaert and the Company
on 24 February 2015. However, he will also be subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles. He will receive a director’s fee as the Company
may determine from time to time. At present, he receives a
director’s fee of HK$150,000 per annum. The emoluments
of Directors are determined by reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Liao’s particulars as being a Director that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Alias: Ip Kin Man), aged
73, holds a Bachelor degree in Arts with honors from
the University of Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 1993. He also
serves as the chairman of each of the audit committee and
remuneration committee and acts as the vice-chairman
of the nomination committee of the Company since 18
May 2018. Mr. Yip has also acted as an independent non-
executive director of Shougang Grand from January 2007
until 31 December 2019. He also acts as an independent
non-executive director of BeijingWest Industries since 27
January 2014. Mr. Yip is a practising solicitor, notary public
and China-Appointed Attesting Officer. He has extensive
experience in legal profession.

Other than the directorship disclosed above, Mr. Yip has
not previously held any position with the Group, and is
independent of and not connected with the Directors,
chief executives or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders of the Company or the subsidiaries of the
Company or an associate of any of them, and he does
not hold any directorship in the last three years in public
companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. At the date
of this annual report, he does not have any interest in
securities of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO. A service contract was entered into between Mr.
Yip and the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2020. However, he is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the Articles. He will receive
a director’s fee as the Company may determine from time to
time. At present, he receives a director’s fee of HK$240,000
per annum. The emoluments of Directors are determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Yip’s particulars as being a Director that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, aged 65, is a fellow member of each of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA),
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales
(ICAEW), the Chartered Accountants of Australia and New
Zealand (CAANZ) and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). He graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (“Polytechnic University”) with
a higher diploma in Accountancy in 1975. He was conferred
an Honorary Fellow of Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr.
Lam was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company in August 2015. He is also an independent non-
executive director of each of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang
Bio-Pharmaceutical Co., Limited, Vital Innovations Holdings
Limited (formerly known as “Vital Mobile Holdings Limited”),
Spring Real Estate Investment Trust, Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited, COSCO SHIPPING Ports
Limited, Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, WWPKG
Holdings Company Limited, CITIC Telecom International
Holdings Limited, Bestway Global Holding Inc. and Mason
Group Holdings Limited, which he held directorship until
24 May 2017. On 26 September 2019, he was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Topsports
International Holdings Limited which was listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 October 2019
(Stock code: 6110). Mr. Lam had taken the position of an
adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and Finance
of Polytechnic University until 31 August 2016. He was
previously a member of the Listing Committee and the
Financial Reporting Advisory Panel of the Stock Exchange
from 1997 to 2003, a committee member of HKICPA from
1994 to 2009, a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers from
1993 to 2013 and a member of the Finance Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Management Association until
7 July 2016. In all, Mr. Lam has over 40 years of extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and business consulting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Other than his directorship disclosed above, Mr. Lam
has not previously held any position with the Group, and
is independent of and not connected with the Directors,
chief executives or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders of the Company or the subsidiaries of the
Company or an associate of any of them. Save as disclosed
above, he does not have any directorship in the last three
years in public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. At the
date of this annual report, he does not have any interest
in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
A service contract was entered into between Mr. Lam and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2018
and ending on 31 December 2020. However, he is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles. He will receive a director’'s fee as the Company
may determine from time to time. At present, he receives a
director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum. The emoluments
of Directors are determined by reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Lam’s particulars as being a Director that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Feng Yaoling, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of
each of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
1 January 2020. Mr. Feng was a professor-level senior
engineer who is awarded special government subsidy by
the State Council of PRC as a specialist. He graduated from
Beijing University of Chemical Technology with a Bachelor
degree in Engineering in January 1982.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Feng is currently a chief engineer of Eve Rubber Institute
Co., Ltd. and he has over 35 years of extensive experience
in the tyre manufacturing industry. Mr. Feng was previously
the chief engineer, senior engineer, deputy general manager
cum chief engineer and director of Aeolus Tyre Co., Ltd.
(“Aeolus Tyre”) (formerly known as “Henan Tyre Factory” and
“Henan Tyre Co., Ltd.”) from 1982 to 2017. Aeolus Tyre was
listed on the Main Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange in
October 2003 (Stock code: 600469).

The following particulars relating to Mr. Feng are disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(n)(iv) of the Listing Rules:

On 6 March 2015, Aeolus Tyre received the administrative
penalty decision including warnings and a fine of
RMB600,000 from the Henan regulatory bureau of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, due to its misstatement
of accounting information in the 2011 and 2012 annual
reports which violated the “Measures for the Administration
of Information Disclosure of Listed Companies”. Mr. Feng,
as a then senior management of Aeolus Tyre, among others,
also received the “Decision to Impose Training Order to
Zheng Yuli, Fan Rende and others in Total 7 Persons” and
the “Decision to Issue Warning Letters to Zheng Yuli, Fan
Rende and others in Total 10 Persons” (the “Decisions”).
Pursuant to the Decisions, Mr. Feng needed to participate
in the training of laws and regulations related to listed
companies, and was warned and recorded in the Integrity
Archive of Securities and Futures. Mr. Feng confirms that
(i) remedial actions have been taken by Aeolus Tyre which
include correcting and restating figures in the relevant
annual reports; (ii) the proceedings regarding the aforesaid
matter has been completely settled; and (iii) the Decisions
have been fully complied with and no further administrative
penalties or liabilities were outstanding by Aeolus Tyre or Mr.
Feng regarding the aforesaid matter.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Other than his directorship disclosed above, Mr. Feng
has not previously held any position with the Group and
is independent of and not connected with the Directors,
chief executives or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders of the Company or the subsidiaries of the
Company or an associate of any of them. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Feng does not hold any directorship in the last
three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
At the date of this annual report, he does not have any
interest in securities of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO. A service contract was entered into
between Mr. Feng and the Company for a term commencing
from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022.
However, he will hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company, at which time he will be eligible
for re-election in accordance to the Articles and thereafter
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Articles. Mr. Feng will receive a director’s fee as
the Company may determine from time to time. At present,
he receives a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum. The
emoluments of Directors are determined by reference to
the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Feng’s particulars as being a Director that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.
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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

TEEBRE

As at 24 March 2020 R -Z-ZF=H - +/MH

Manufacturing
—F of Steel Cords
for Radial Tyres
BUEF A Rmia
k)30

Shougang >
Concord Century

Holdings Limited
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http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

Provision of

— in the Mainland
(for Steel Cord
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Management and
Consulting Services
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Steel Cord Co., Ltd.
(Zhejiang, PRC)
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http://www.jesc.com.cn
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Steel Cord Co., Ltd.
100% (Shandong, PRC)
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http://www.tesc.com.cn
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESRHEE

Dear Shareholders,

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

On behalf of the fellow members of the Board, | am pleased
to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year under review, trade tension between
China and the United States has increased the uncertainty
in global economic growth and as such the economic
sentiment has been under significant pressure. As for
China, its annual growth rate of GDP in 2019 fell to 6.1%,
down 0.5 percentage point from that of the previous
year. In addition, unilateralism and trade protectionism
prevailed which hampered export growth rate. According
to data released by the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers in January 2020, the total national car sales
also fell by 8.2% to approximately 25,769,000 units in 2019,
attesting automobiles sales in China dropped for a second
consecutive year since 1990.

Notwithstanding the above adversities, the Group’s profit
for the year ended 31 December 2019 has significantly
improved and reversed the net loss position of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018. This is mainly
attributable to the tiredless effort made by our sales team.
We were able to increase sales tonnage in Steel cords and
achieve a commensurate drop in production cost during the
year. The Group’s gross profit margin from the continuing
operations increased by 5.0 percentage points to 17.6%.
As a consequence of the increase in gross profit margin
and the reversal of impairment losses on land use rights,
the Group attained a net profit of HK$108,344,000 when
comparing with the loss of HK$8,681,000 last year.

The Group’s net asset value was HK$0.736 per Share at
31 December 2019, increased by 5.7% as compared to
HK$0.696 at the end of 2018. The Group recorded its basic
earnings per Share of HK5.63 cents for the year when
compared to its loss per Share of HK0.45 cent for the
previous year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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DIVIDEND
The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK1 cent per Share for the year ended 31 December 2019.

THE WAY FORWARD

Looking ahead to 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus disease
together with the continual trade negotiation between the
United States and China, | am of the view that this year
will still be full of challenges. Faced with such complex
situations and increasingly competitive landscape in
domestic and foreign markets, we have to stay committed
to optimize our product mix and improve upon our product
quality at competitive prices to meet the demanding
requirements of our tyre customers. Congruently, we will
continue to sharpen our competitive edge and grasp
opportunities in both the local and international markets by
adding to our product innovation, research and development
efforts. The management believes that the Group is well-
poised for the challenges ahead and is determined to strive
for higher returns to the Shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere
gratitude to all Shareholders, suppliers and customers for
their longstanding support. | would also like to thank my
fellow members on the Board and the staff members of
the Group for their unwavering commitment to the Group’s
business. | am confident that the Group will continue to
capture opportunities in the coming year and beyond.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong
Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Business model and strategy

Our mission is to be one of the top tier Steel cord and
wire products manufacturers in the PRC capable of
consistently purveying premium quality Steel cords and wire
products; and the evolution into a diversified metal product
manufacturer benefiting from a successful “Eastern” brand
recognition in the PRC and worldwide markets. Further
details in respect of the business model and strategy of the
Company, please refer to the section “REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORS” of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Review of operations

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of
steel cords for radial tyres and sawing wires. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a revenue
from the continuing operations of HK$2,141,380,000
(2018: HK$2,122,993,000), representing a slight increase of
approximately 0.9% as compared with that of the previous
year. Besides, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 has significantly improved and turned
around to HK$108,344,000 from the net loss position of
HK$8,681,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Board considers that the aforesaid turnaround from loss
to profit position is primarily attributable to the increase in
gross profit with the following factors:

- the growth in sales volume of the Steel cords;
- the reduction in production cost; and
- the increase in export sales volume of the Steel cords.

Continuing operations of Steel cord segment
Revenue

The PRC recorded the fourth-quarter of 2019 GDP
economic growth of 6.0%, which is same as that in the
previous quarter and matching market expectations. This
remained the weakest growth rate since the first quarter
of 1992 amid trade pressure from the United States and
sluggish demand from home and abroad. Considering the
full year 2019, the economy grew just by 6.1%. However,
our sales team made every effort to expand our coverage
on large-scale and multinational tyre manufacturers and
fine-tune our sales mix to flexibly meet our customers’
requirements, thus the Steel cord segment was able
to achieve a growth in volume of 4.9% over that of the
previous year. In respect of export sales volume, we were
able to follow closely with our customers’ realignment of
their respective products and production facilities and
hence, successfully managed to attain a material increase of
13.3% during the year.

e o R
AEERFERERETTIRBHR2MESR
MEMsm - 2T - NhF+=-A=+—H
LEFE AEBERSREFELEEHK &
¥ 2E 8 #2,141,380,000 ( — 2 — N\F: B
#2,122,993,0007T) ' R £ —FEHEMIE K
#0.9% N AEEBHE_T—NF+=
A=+ BLEFEZHMERENRES  AE
E- T N\F+-_A=t+-—BHILEENF
&5 18 1R 57 7 58,681,000 1 82 = 5% B 78
108,344,000/t  EE SR A Ll EES
REANETEFERENOEN - YBEATE
=

- HESNHEERER:
- HEERARREE: R
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6.1% B HEMHBEEBRHRBEEZ NHERE
BMEREMERGRNESNEBEESESHE -
WHK MR EEASETHE  BEHREE
FRER - BEtilgEgy HeEnR - —FEE
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This segment sold 194,006 tonnes of Steel cord during the
year, increased by 4.9% as compared to 184,910 tonnes
last year. In respect of the sales of sawing wire products, it
increased substantially by 100.0% from 80 tonnes to 160
tonnes for last year, reflecting our focus in selling thicker
construction types. There was a 17.5% decrease in the
sales of our other steel wires from 11,100 tonnes to 9,152
tonnes for last year as we chose to preserve our brass wire
resources to meet the increased demand for Steel cord. The
sales volume of this segment for the year is set out below:

RAFE It 5 2054 5 194,006 i 5 47 - &
EFR184,91018_EF4.9% - ) B 44E &
MIEEHE - HEEW AT H80NE N iE £
100.0% £ 1601 - R T R M EHHERED
BEEA BARRMEERBEMANELE
B MR MBS RAE R TR
179 fth 8 4% 19 85 & BB A G 8911,100ME T B&
59,1528 - [& 18 A217.5% - N F E Itk 5 B H
HEEDMWT :

Year ended 31 December

BET-RA=t+-HLEE

2019 2018
=t TS —E-N\E
% of % of
total total
sales sales
Sales volume Sales volume
volume of Steel volume of Steel %
(Tonne) cord (Tonne) cord change
o) 3 a3
HEE BHEE HEE BHEE BE
(1) B2 (%) (1) B2 (%) (%)
Steel cords for HEsAR:
- truck tyres -HEHR 130,080 67.0 123,205 66.7 +5.6
- off the road truck tyres - ITiR&%i 6,506 3.4 4,333 2.3 +50.2
- passenger car tyres -B5Hkh 57,420 29.6 57,372 31.0 +0.1
Total for Steel cords MEZAT 194,006 100.0 184,910 100.0 +4.9
Sawing wire products RIS Em 160 80 +100.0
Other steel wires Hin s # 9,152 11,100 -17.5
Total st 203,318 196,090 +3.7

The sales volume for all aforesaid types of Steel cords
recorded growth. In respect of sales mix, the proportion of
sales of Steel cords for truck tyres accounted for 67.0%
of total sales volume of Steel cords for the year, similar to
that for last year. We are pleased to see that our effort in
expanding the sales of “off the road” Steel cords has begun
to flourish with an increase of 50.2% for the year.

B LilERENNEESHRGER -
HEMEG T E  MESHETHERRAINE
i?fﬁﬁﬁr‘fﬂ%m@ﬁﬁ £67.0% ' EHEFH

cBMEREEF IJ@MFWEK(IEMDHH
%%ﬁﬁmﬂﬁ HHEERBREDER
MARFEILR T50.2% °
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In respect of sales of Steel cords by region, the volume
of export sales amounted to 40,134 tonnes for the year,
increased by 13.3% as compared to 35,435 tonnes for last
year. The volume of export sales represented 20.7% of total
sales volume for the year, compared to 19.2% for last year,
signalling the increasing recognition of our brand to the
international tyres manufacturers. The breakdown of sales
volume of Steel cords for the year by geographical location
is as follows:

MEREERLEME RAFELOH
= 2 H£40,134M0F - bt & & #35,435MF * +
F13.83% - P ONHEELHAFELIEE S
20.7% MEF 8 A19.2% B/~ H BRI S
K2 15 B B B i g BUE R AV AR AT o AR JE 8
BRkENEESRMANT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=1+-BHLEE

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
% of % of
total total
sales sales
Sales volume Sales volume
volume of Steel volume of Steel %
(Tonne) cord (Tonne) cord change
)3 i)
HEE BHEER HEE BHEEE BE
(W)  B2H(%) (B2)  B%) (%)
PRC H 153,872 79.3 149,475 80.8 +2.9
Export sales: HOHEE:
Asia (other than PRC) Tl (R EIRRAN) 24,059 12.4 19,074 10.3 +26.1
EMEA (Europe, Middle East EMEA (BUM - &
and Africa) MIEM) 9,506 4.9 11,022 6.0 -13.8
North America JLEM 4,103 2.1 3,594 1.9 +14.2
South America BEM 2,466 1.3 1,745 1.0 +41.3
Total export sales O HEREY 40,134 20.7 35,435 19.2 +13.3
Total FoE 194,006 100.0 184,910 100.0 +4.9

The overall sales volume growth of 4.9% in Steel cords
caused the revenue of this segment to slightly increase
by 0.9% over last year’'s to HK$2,139,930,000 (2018:
HK$2,121,189,000) for the year because the Group's
major income is denominated in RMB, but the financial
statement is presented in Hong Kong dollars. During the
year, exchange rate of RMB depreciated against HKD,
this decreased the total amount of revenue in Hong Kong
dollars.

ERNERMRRHEEERTS4I0%ER <32
RAFRE I D J & RBLELEFOEMR LT
0.9% % 8 #2,139,930,0007T ( =& — )\ :
#12,121,189,0007T) - AAAKEN T2
ARARBEHE B HEHREABEIR R
AFEARBELAEBEREE LWERD TR
AT EMBERE -
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Gross profit

Gross profit of this segment increased by 41.9% over last
year’'s to HK$376,502,000 (2018: HK$265,397,000) for the
year. Gross profit margin improved from 12.5% last year’s
to 17.6% for the year attesting to the benefit of economy
of scale and our incessant effort in controlling production
costs. Hence, EBITDA also increased from last year of
HK$228,646,000 to HK$308,269,000 for the year.

Discontinued operation of Copper and brass
products business

Overall performance

In view of generating greater managerial focus and releasing
internal resources for the Group to prioritise the profitable
Steel cord business, the Group ceased all the operation
of the Copper and brass products segment in September
2019. This business in 2019 contributed no revenue (2018:
HK$131,177,000) and recorded the loss of HK$3,400,000
(2018: HK$4,028,000), mainly due to the impairment loss on
receivables.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue for the continuing operations of the Group
amounted to HK$2,141,380,000 (2018: HK$2,122,993,000)
for the year, slightly increased by 0.9% over last year. The
breakdown of revenue for the continuing operations of the
Group for the year is as follows:

EF

RAFERDEB 2 EFLEEFH EH41.9%
%= A #376,502,0000C (=T — \F: B
265,397,0007T) ° EF EH A F W12.5%K
EEAFEMI7.6% BB THRELENLT
R MBI A EK AT EATEE -
& it - EBITDATR |3 & 5 #) 8 1228,646,0007T
# N AN 4F %5 #308,269,0007T

ERIEEE 2R ERMBER

BEXHE

RZZE-NEFNA ZBERINEFAEEEZE
B EIMERAEBERNBERNELEEAR
FIMERER  AEBIE LEE R R ERM
BoOHNEE XL ZEBR_Z—NFLE
EEREELE(ZT—/\F:8%131,177,000
70 ) K 8% 15 &5 18 7% #3,400,0000T (= — )\
1 #1%4,028,0007T) © * B B R ERFIER
BHEK-

Bt 7 B B8

EER

RAFE AEERGRHEBELEEB 2EHE
%A R 5 #52,141,380,0000C ( — 2 — N\ F : B
#2,122,993,0007T ) * tb 2= F [F] R & £ 38 0
0.9% RAFEASEREFELEEK 2
EETHAMANT

Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=1t—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F

% of % of
total total %
HK$’000 revenue HK$’000 revenue change
-2 [EE-E 2E
BETT BHIK(%) BETT  BAL%) (%)
Steel cord il B 47 2,139,930 99.9 2,121,189 99.9 +0.9
Property rental MERE 1,450 0.1 1,804 0.1 -19.6
Total Bt 2,141,380 100.0 2,122,993 100.0 +0.9
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Gross profit

Gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group
increased by 41.5% over last year’s to HK$377,944,000
(2018: HK$267,104,000), which was mainly due to the
increase of gross profit of Steel cord segment. Gross profit
margin for the continuing operations of the Group also
increased significantly by 5.0 percentage points to 17.6%
for the year as compared to that of last year. The breakdown
of gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group for
the year is as follows:

E X
AEEREFEBELEEGR 2 ENLEF LR
41.5%% /& #377,944,0000C ( —F — )\ F:
75 #267,104,0007T) - T E R AR MER S
HOEMNEAMB-REAFERAEEKXRBHF
BIREXEB 2 ENEN L EAFRBRELA
50BN E17.6% - RNAFEAEEKRH
FECEEB 2 ENAMMT -

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1+-BHLEE

2019 2018
—2-NF ZE-N\E

Gross Gross

profit profit
margin margin %
HK$’000 (%) HK$’000 (%) change
ERE EH = 25
BETR (%) BB (%) (%)
Steel cord i)t 376,502 17.6 265,397 12.5 +41.9
Property rental MEMRE 1,442 99.4 1,707 94.6 -15.5
Total Bt 377,944 17.6 267,104 12.6 +41.5

Distribution and selling expenses PHERHEEEH

Distribution and selling expenses for the continuing
operations amounted to HK$90,033,000 (2018:
HK$67,786,000) for the year, increased by 32.8% over last
year’s, mainly due to the increase in sales of Steel cords
particularly in the export markets, in which the United States
imposed a 25% tariff on our products in 2019.

RAFEAEEREFECEER 2 DHEK
& B A 77 /8#90,033,000T ( —F— \F:

75 #67,786,0007T ) * Lt = F 15 hN32.8% © £
ERHNHEESHHOHEE LA FRREH
A% ERERE_ZT—NFRAKMNER
B25% R o
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the continuing operations
amounted to HK$54,429,000 (2018: HK$56,782,000) for the
year, decreased by 4.1% as compared to last year. This
decrease was mainly due to stricter cost control.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses for the continuing
operations of the Group amounted to HK$74,493,000 for the
year, decreased by 3.2% as compared to HK$76,941,000
for last year. Such expenses were all incurred by the Steel
cord segment and whilst reduced during the year under
review, our research and development effort has been able
to align with the requirements from our tyres manufacturing
customers.

Other income

Other income for the continuing operations of the Group
increased by 349.7% from HK$3,756,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to HK$16,891,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019. This increase was primarily due
to an increase in the government grants for supporting the
enterprises.

Other losses, net

Other losses, net for the continuing operations of the Group
increased by 229.3% from HK$4,002,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 to HK$13,179,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019. This increase was primarily due to (i) an
increase of HK$9,745,000 in impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment of producing certain products; and
(i) an increase of HK$5,944,000 in fair value loss on
Convertible Bonds. However, the increase was offset in part
by the increase in net fair value gains on foreign currency
hedging contracts.

THREHR
RAFEAEEREFELCEEHB 2ITHE
FA R 75 #54,429,0000T ( = F — )\ F : B #&
56,782,0007T) * Lk EF R D41%  FEEH
ARG AN 28 1) 58 A R A

MREA

RAFEAEBREFELEEH 2P %
E A RAEMT74,493,00070 0 LE EFWRB K
76,941,0007C N £3.2% - 2 S B A2 #02M
BEDEMELE BERAFEBMBL A
BPMAETIEEEARERiREERTR,D

EsRko

H g A
AEERAFELCEEH 2 EMBABREZR
TE-NE+ A=+ -—BILEENEE
3,756,000 0 1% MN349.7% 2 & = — T — N4
T A=T—HIEFENE%16,891,0007T °
ZERTEZEHRBTEAEMASTFE-

Htg5i8  F5
REBREFECEEB 2 EMEE JFEH
HE-Z—\E+-_A=1+—HILEENEK
4,002,000 0 1% 11229.3% = — T — N F+ =
A=+ —B1EFERNEE13,179,0007T ° %
ENEFZHR(NEESE TERNYE  BE KX
BT 2 R BB AL N #9,745,0007T ¢ (i)
AR ES 2 A FEEEE IS 5,944,000
TL o BRZIEIMEINEE A L2 A TFEKETF
RE L 0 i 4% 5F 2 HE 8K o
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Reversal of impairment losses on land use rights
Reversal of impairment losses on land use rights amount to
HK$17,456,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 due
to the commencement of the construction work of TESC
Phase Il Project in November 2019.

TREASURY AND FUNDING POLICIES

The treasury and funding policies of the Group concentrate
on the management of liquidity and the monitoring of
financial risks, including interest rate risk, currency risk and
counterparty risks. The objectives are to ensure the Group
has adequate financial resources to maintain business
growth with a viable financial position.

Surplus funds of the Group are generally placed on
short term deposits denominated in HKD, RMB or USD
with reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
financing of the Group principally comprises short to
medium term loans from banks. The loan portfolio takes
into consideration of the liquidity of the Group and interest
costs.

SHARE CAPITAL, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Share capital and net asset value

The Company manages its capital structure with the
objectives of ensuring that the businesses of the Group can
maintain a sustainable growth and providing a long-term
reasonable return to its Shareholders.

The total number of issued shares of the Company remained
at 1,922,900,556 Shares at 31 December 2018 and 2019.
Net asset value of the Group was HK$1,415,072,000 at 31
December 2019, increased slightly by 5.7% as compared
to HK$1,339,150,000 at 31 December 2018. The increase in
net asset value was attributable to the net profit throughout
the year. Net asset value per Share was HK$0.736 at 31
December 2019, also increased by 5.7% as compared to
HK$0.696 at 31 December 2018.

T FEAEZRERXEE
BE_Z—NF+-_A=+—BIFE LTit
1 FA#E 2 B (B 18 2K [0l 57 5 %5 17,456,0007T -
ERBARZZE-NEF+—ABMNEHFZHE
BRESRTIEMARE I -

FEBXR
AEENMERRETR R ESEEME
2R BEMRER - EXRERZ S
BFrER-EENRERASEERT TN
&R A BN AT T IE 0 T M H 1518
£ o

REBENHBRE © —RAEHFR (CABE -
ARBIETREM) FRERERTRES
REMRIT AEENESERIEZREREY
RBMROTNER EFEEEEEAEEN
B mE MR SRR -

BRA&A -BERBEUBER

RAEREEFRE
ARAEBHEEANRENBNAEREEE
ZEGREBRIRBERLBBREHR —E
RHAEEMNDR-

N—_E—-N\EFR_F-NF+-_A=+—H"
BEITIG B8 E ) 51,922,900,556% ° 4
SER T NF+A=+T—HBZEEFE
% #1,415,072,0000T Lt =T — \F+ =
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—NF+_A=1+—HHEREEFERE
¥o0.7360 Lt E— \F+_A=+—H
% 3% 75 #0.696 7T /N L F+5.7% °
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Issuance of Convertible Bonds

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a related party
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund) whereby
the Company issued and Jingxi Holdings subscribed
for the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$150,000,000. The interest rate is 4.0% per annum while
Conversion Price is HK$0.33 per Share, with conversion
available commencing 6 months from issuance date till
end of term. Tenor is 3 years from issuance date which can
be extended by Jingxi Holdings for one year twice to the
date falling on the fifth anniversary of the issue date of the
Convertible Bonds.

The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Jingxi Holdings with
reference to the prevailing market prices of the Shares. On
11 February 2019, the issuance of the Convertible Bonds
was completed. The net proceeds from the Subscription,
after deducting the costs and expenses of approximately
HK$1 million, are approximately HK$149 million and are
expected to be used as follows: (i) as to approximately
HK$37.3 million for repaying interest-bearing borrowings
with higher interest rate of the Group (excluding borrowings
provided by Shougang HK and its related party(ies)); (ii)
as to approximately HK$110 million for funding the capital
investment for the TESC Phase Il Project subject to the
construction cost and time needed to supplement the
production need for both TESC and JESC; and (iii) as to
approximately HK$1.7 million, being the remaining proceeds
for supplementing general working capital.

BITARRES
RZZE—NFE+_A+N\B ARAHERA
2R (BEALREHESHMBAR)ETZ
REWE B NRRBEITH RAERRE
R& RS 5B %150,000,0007T H) 7] # A% (&
%o F K B4.0% ML IRE BB RIRMD B
0.3370 BETRBRZHRNNEAARBER -
R AEBTHE=F JHRAAZRERR
KGR —FEABRRESFFITABRERESER
EBEFEH-

BREDHAEEERAZER2E RN R
THEKATERREE R-F-—NF_A
TR BTABRKRESFETK -RBEFEMR
BREFHE (KHBEKEARFAXWEE18E
TR K BEEI149Ba BT MNBHBIETIIA
& ()KEEI7TIABLANEERNEEN X
RNt BER (BEEEREBETIRMHM
EREIN) 5 (i)H B 1108 BT AR R M
RN —HHEENEARERBES  EXRR
BEREARBRBMNED RFERRTNEE
FRAFBERE R ()T EFRIBRELEET7
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had utilised the
aforesaid proceeds in the manner as set out in the table
below:

R-E-NF+A=+t—B XA&EEZHA
FA PSRRI TR R

Net
proceeds
from the Utilised Unutilised
Subscription amount amount
RBEE
Fri§ & E CBHRAEH AEBASHE
HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million
BYERET BEEER BEEET
Repaying interest-bearing BEARENERSH
borrowings with higher TEER
interest rate of the Group 37.3 37.3 -
Funding the capital investment A MEH — 8B E &
for the TESC Phase Il Project ERFEREES 110.0 31.8 78.2
Supplementing general WA REEER
working capital 1.7 1.7 -
Total Gl 149.0 70.8 78.2

The unutilized net proceeds, being approximately HK$78.2
million, is expected to be used as intended by 2021.
Detailed schedule depends on the actual progress of
construction, the development of the Company and market
situation.

Bank balances and cash and interest bearing
borrowings

The Group’s bank balances and cash (including pledged
bank deposits) amounted to HK$101,732,000 at 31
December 2019, decreased by 30.0% as compared to
HK$145,312,000 at 31 December 2018. Total interest
bearing borrowings of the Group (comprised of loans from
related companies, bank borrowings and Convertible Bonds)
were HK$821,290,000 at 31 December 2019, decreased by
25.4% as compared to HK$1,100,809,000 at 31 December
2018. The amount of net interest bearing borrowings (total
interest bearing borrowings less bank balances and cash)
therefore decreased from HK$955,497,000 at 31 December
2018 to HK$719,558,000 at 31 December 2019.

REBAEFIEFHELNEE78.2HE TEY
BR T - —FZRARERERS  ARKHE
REANEREREE  ARANERALT
oo

BAEERASRIEER

R-TE—hhF+_A=Z+—H AEEZR
THRERE e (RESERRITFER) LB
101,732,0007C  th —E—N\FE+-_A=+—
H R % #145,312,0007T T [£30.0% ° A~ 5 &
ZBAEER (BEREBEQRRZER R
TERERABREF)R-_TE—-—NF+H
= +—H%#5%821,290,0007T ' tt —Z — )\
F+ZA=+—H#H#%1,100,809,0007T
P#25.4% - At - s EEFFHE (FTREEXRLR
BRERTEFER)B - \F+=
A=+—B8#%955,497,000CH P E -
—NF+ZA=+—HB8E719,558,000
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Debt and liquidity ratios

Gearing ratio represents total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (including pledged bank
deposits) is divided by total equity of the Group decreased
markedly from 71.4% at 31 December 2018 to 50.8% at
31 December 2019. The current ratio (calculated as current
assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.28
times at 31 December 2019 as compared to 1.19 times at
31 December 2018.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE
EXPOSURES

The Group’s source of revenue is mainly denominated in
EUR, RMB and USD while those of purchases and payments
are mainly denominated in RMB and HKD. During the
year under review, the Group managed its exchange rate
exposures of HKD denominated liabilities against RMB and
EUR denominated assets against RMB by entering into the
foreign currency hedging contracts to sell RMB against
HKD with aggregate notional amount of HK$280,000,000
and to sell EUR vs RMB with aggregate notional amount
of EUR2,000,000. These contracts were fully fixed before
31 December 2019. The respective currency composition
of the Group’s bank balances and cash (including pledged
bank deposits) and bank borrowings is set out in note
26(b) and note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

In respect of exposure to interest rate risk, the majority of
interest bearing borrowings for the year ended 31 December
2019 were at fixed instead of floating rates. Since the
minority of interest bearing borrowings was in floating rates,
the Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps
In light of the relatively
lacklustre economic data published lately, the prevailing

on the floating rate borrowings.

market view is a cut in interest rate and hence, we do not
anticipate to conduct any interest rate swaps in the near
term.
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We will review and adjust the currency composition of our
interest bearing borrowings from time to time to minimise
our risks on exchange and interest rate in respect of our
interest bearing borrowings. In any event, we would keep
monitoring the currency and interest rate composition of the
Group’s interest bearing borrowings under the guidance of
the Internal Control Manual and take appropriate action to
minimise our exchange and interest rate risks when needed,
such as entering into new derivative financial instruments to
hedge the risk of RMB exchange rate in 2020.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2019, the Group had commitments in
respect of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$143,513,000.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLAN

In 2010 and 2011, TESC acquired the land use rights of
three parcels of land through a public auction for a total
consideration of RMB81,120,000 (the “Lands”) as plant site
for its expansion of production capacity. However, given the
changes in the market of steel cord and strategic review
of the expansion plan, TESC has yet to utilize the Lands
since its acquisition, nor received the relevant land use right
certificates.

In late November 2017, TESC received a notice regarding
the rescission of the confirmation letter in respect of the
successful bidding of state-owned land for construction
from Tengzhou City Natural Resources Bureau (formerly
known as Tengzhou Municipal State-owned Land Resources
Bureau) regarding the Lands in the state of being idle.
Subsequently, the Group conducted several rounds of
negotiation with the Tengzhou governmental authorities with
an aim to reach a consensus for TESC to continue utilizing
the Lands.
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During the year, TESC has entered into agreements with the
relevant governmental authorities of Tengzhou in relation to
the investment of a construction project to be carried out on
the Lands. Pursuant to the agreements, TESC shall invest in
construction of the production lines for an annual capacity
of 100,000 tonnes Steel cords (of which the construction
project of production lines with annual capacity of 20,000
tonnes of brass wires (half-product or work in progress of
Steel cords) is an integral part) on the Lands.

In August 2019, TESC received the land use right
certificates of the Lands from Tengzhou City Natural
Resources Bureau. The Tengzhou governmental authorities
shall assist TESC in the construction project, such
as handling relevant procedures for the construction,
facilitating in the construction of infrastructure of the
project such as water, electricity and roads, and assisting in
application of governmental policy support and applicable
support funds.

The construction project has commenced to acquire the
machineries and constructure the factory plant, ancillary
facilities and peripheral roads in November 2019 and is
funded by the proceeds of the issuance of Convertible
Bonds issued on 11 February 2019, internal resources and/
or other financing. The project is carried out by phases
according to the market conditions and the financial
capacity of the Company from time to time. The brass wire
project as aforementioned is expected to bring positive
impact on the performance of the Steel cord segment
as some of the existing production of brass wires of
JESC, which have been in use for over 20 years, incurs
high maintenance and operation cost with relatively low
production efficiency and quality instability.

AN FE - N BR 75 B N A A TS A A
EIEZS T FEITHIEBREEZRIT VR
FoREBE BNEABEZS I MIEERE
4B E100,000WF Sl R A EE AR (AR R
4 = £20,000MF 5 # (8 58 4R+ A oo ok 72 &
M)EERRTADEH—ID) -

E-Z-NAFN\A BINRFKE AN A
RERBLZF L H ) L3 (E RERE - BN I
JiF #4481 B B M RT3 2R TR B - AN B2 32 i T4

MiEF Rk T EREEEERREE
% AR ABARE S B ERGES S
o

RAEEBR-F A+ ARKBES

22 MERHME - B AR SR SNEERS - A
—E-NAF AT -RBEOTNTBRKRESR
BR ABERR/HHEMBERTES-E
BeRETHIBRMALRRNE 2B BEE N
DREBGETT o LI EAAIA B ASTERT B RR D
MOKRRERIEEFE AEAIE TRERT
EMHEESREERBE_TZF HETREDY
HEMEREGETREY ELRHEEETE
PN

%R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 35



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE WAL N 2

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
TRAINING SCHEME OF THE GROUP

At 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 2,043
employees located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence
as well as the prevailing market condition of the industry.
Remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed annually.
In addition to salary payments, other employee benefits
include medical subsidies, hospitalization scheme and a
defined contribution provident fund, Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and other retirement scheme or other similar
defined contribution provident fund stipulated by the State
Regulations of the PRC which provided retirement benefits
to employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively. The
Group’s contributions to these schemes are charged against
profits or loss as they are incurred. The total employee
benefit expense for the year amounted to approximately
HK$217 million.

The Group had also provided training programmes or
courses for the mainland staff at all levels from different
departments, and also for Directors and employees of the
Company so as to further enhance their technical skills in
production operation and management, professional skills
and knowledge.

AEERES MEHRREINGFTE

R-ZE—NAF+-_A=+—8 AEERES
M B4 *£E2,043%EE - AEEEE 2
CHBURIZEBER BERREN  TMUERE
RMSRREMER - BEZMNeBERIFEN
ZAEH  — R EEFE TR - EFH LA

HESRMNBEBERR FREDFER
ERHANEEHE  REUELERHE &
BB R A E R H MR KA B B UUE B8
HEAERAEIHRBBELREAREBRH
RIKERN - ZEft 8ISl R ASEHRRGEE
mHPHR - AFEREERNABEAKRNLNE
Bo17TE&E T

AEBIDRABAREESHFISREER RAE
ERAREEBREEIIG BIRIE - AR
TP EE 2 E LR MERE BRI
PSR

36 SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED &REESEFRAF]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

H‘-EEJE A ZIL ’TKZ _\jﬁ

In addition, the Company had adopted the 2002 Scheme.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board shall, subject to and
in accordance with the provisions of the 2002 Scheme
and the Listing Rules, grant share options to any eligible
participant to subscribe for Shares for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to him/her for contribution
to the Group. The 2002 Scheme remained in force for a
period of ten years from the date of its adoption and expired
on 6 June 2012. The Shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 25 May 2012 approved the termination of
the 2002 Scheme and adoption of the 2012 Scheme which
serves the same purpose as the 2002 Scheme. The 2012
Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from 29
May 2012, the date of obtaining the approval of the listing
and permission to deal in the Shares falling to be allotted
and issued pursuant to the exercise of any options granted
under the 2012 Scheme.

During the year,
cancelled and lapsed under the 2012 Scheme while
4,000,000 share options lapsed under the 2002 Scheme.

no options were granted, exercised,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of assets
pledged as security for bills payable and bank borrowings
are:

() leasehold land and buildings: HK$189,388,000;

(i) pledged bank deposits: HK$53,921,000; and

(iii) land use rights: HK$59,951,000.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Hong Kong experienced various tactile challenges in
2019 notably in the crosshair of the Sino-American trade
squabble, unremitting social demonstrations commenced
in the latter half of the year and most critical of all, the
recent coronavirus crisis which caused and will continue to
cause restricted movement in human resources, torment
in logistics for normal business activities and uncertainties
in the global economy in 2020. Under these untoward
circumstances and that we have not yet known how and
when the coronavirus infection can be contained, we
envisage the performance of the Group in the first quarter
will be lagging when compared with our stalwart results in
2019. We believe that the demand and supply dynamics of
the Steel cord and tyres sectors remain stable in the short
run, but more participants in both sectors are relocating
their respective production capacities abroad to circumvent
US and China trade dispute albeit Phase 1 of the trade
agreement has been reached. The relocation of tyres
making facilities should create more export opportunities
for our Group. In short, we remain hopeful that our
business will gradually return to normal in the second half
of 2020 underscored by the low inventory level of our tyres
manufacturing customers, the palpable stimulus by the
Central Government both on the fiscal and monetary fronts,
and in the longer run, the potential of the replacement tyres
market in the PRC.
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The coronavirus outbreak is unlikely to deter our goal to
maintain our market share and as a leading Steel cord
manufacturers in the PRC. Building upon our strengths
in the recognition of our brand, the knowledge on and
relationship with our multinational clientele, responsive
research and development effort, and accountable customer
services, we will: —

o continue the construction of our new brass wire
facility at TESC to facilitate the expansion plan of an
additional 100,000 tonnes Steel cord manufacturing
capacity within the "14th Five Year Plan";

° expand our export effort which has already
outperformed the growth of Steel cord export amongst
our peers in 2019;

° further reduce our cost of production by streamlining
our manufacturing process and increasing automation;

° further decrease our overall debt level and financial
charges; and

° continue to curtail the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuation on our profitability.
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The Board is committed to practicing and achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and also recognises that
effective risk management and internal control systems are
crucial to the long-term development of the Company. In
order to maintain sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems, the Board periodically reviews the
daily corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries and procures the Company
and its subsidiaries to strictly comply with the relevant laws
and regulations, and the rules and guidelines of regulatory
bodies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation
to the accounting period covered in this annual report in
compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance
Report set out in the Code of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. Also, the Company has applied and complied with all
the principles and code provisions of the Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019, except for the deviation
from code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7 and D.1.4 of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

On 6 April 2004, the Board has adopted a SCCHL Code on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of the
Model Code as the Company’s code of conduct and rules
governing dealing by all Directors and Specified Individuals
in the securities of the Company. In order to keep the
SCCHL Code in line with the changes brought upon by the
relevant amendments to laws, rules and regulations, the
Board will revise the SCCHL Code from time to time and
the latest version which was revised on 31 December 2019
is an annexed to the Internal Control Manual. All Directors
have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and SCCHL Code for the year ended 31
December 2019.

THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of eight members, including
four executive Directors (namely Messrs. Su Fanrong
(chairman and managing Director), Tang Cornor Kwok Kau
(deputy managing Director), Ye Qian and Li Jinping), one
non-executive Director (namely Mr. Liao Jun) and three
independent non-executive Directors (namely Messrs.
Yip Kin Man, Raymond, Lam Yiu Kin and Feng Yaoling).
The Directors’ biographical details are set out on pages 8
to 18 under the heading “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS".

The major duties of the Board are set out below:

Develop business model and business goals of the
Company;

° Formulate the strategies, planning and development of
the Company;

° Set up objectives of management;
° Monitor the performance of management;
° Ensure that a framework of prudent and effective

controls are in place to enable risks to be assessed
and managed;
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° Review and approve the Company’s results and
operations to be disclosed on a regular basis to the
public; and

° Approve the Group’s operating strategies, budget and
strategies in collaboration with various jurisdictions
enterprises, as well as other major investments,
application of funds and other substantial exercises
with other enterprises.

In order to have a clear guideline in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decision, functions
between the Board and the management are formalized in
the Internal Control Manual. In short, the Board, which is
accountable to Shareholders for the long-term performance
of the Company, is responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs to safeguard the best interest of the
Company as a whole. The affairs reserved to the Board
including but not limited to the development of business
models and strategies of the Company, the preparation of
financial reporting and the expansion and development of
any new business. The managing Director motivates the
management and general staff to achieve those business
goals and strategies set out by the Board, applying business
principles and ethics enshrined in the Internal Control
Manual.

Each Director owes a fiduciary duty towards the Company.
He should act in good faith and in the best interests for
both the Company and Shareholders as a whole. Also,
the Board has three independent non-executive Directors
which represent more than one-third of the Board so that
there is a strong element of independence in the Board.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
different professional qualification and experience in various
aspects: including but not limited to (i) legal professional
qualification and experience; or (ii) auditing, accounting and
tax professional, or business consulting experience, which
has fully complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules. Hence, we believe that we have sufficient calibre and
number of independent non-executive Directors for their
views to carry weight.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his and
immediate family members’ independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Although Messrs. Yip Kin
Man, Raymond and Law, Yui Lun (former independent non-
executive Director) have been serving the Board for more
than nine years, they has not engaged in any executive
management of the Group and Mr. Yip’s solicitors firm
and Mr. Law’s company service firm, and their respective
family members have never provided any service to the
Group. Their familiarity and extensive experience with the
Company’s business may place them in a better position to
contribute independent views to the Company, and continue
to demonstrate a firm commitment to their role.

Taking into consideration of their independent scope of
works and their high integrity when performing duties as
independent non-executive Directors over the past years,
there is no evidence that length of tenure is having an
adverse impact on their independence. The Company
therefore considers all of independent non-executive
Directors (including Mr. Yip and former independent non-
executive Director, Mr. Law) are independent throughout
the year under review. Furthermore, all Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, should be re-elected
at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting of the Company and the reasons the Board believes
that the individual to be independent are set out in the
relevant circulars. In addition to the above, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among
members of the Board.
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Deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code
During the year under review, the roles of chairman and
managing Director in the Company are performed by
Mr. Su Fanrong which constitutes the deviation from the
code provision A.2.1 of the Code which stipulates that
the roles of chairman and managing Director should be
separate and should not be performed by the same person.
In consideration of Mr. Su’s extensive knowledge and
experience in various aspects, in particular the management
in the steel industry and sales area, the Board considers
this present arrangement still enables the Company to make
decisions promptly in the formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies in achieving corporate goals.
Notwithstanding the deviation, the Board is of the view
that there are sufficient checks and balances amongst the
Board to reach decisions in the interests of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the
management structure from time to time and the need to
separate the roles of the chairman of the Board and the
managing Director into two individuals.

Deviation from code provision A.6.7 of the Code
During the year under review, Mr. Liao Jun, who is a non-
executive Director, was unable to attend the general
meeting held on 1 February 2019 regarding the proposed
issuance of Convertible Bonds due to his other business
engagement and this might constitute a deviation of the
code provision A.6.7 of the Code which requires generally
the independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors to attend general meetings to gain and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders.
Notwithstanding the deviation, Mr. Liao demonstrated an
active participation and contributed his skills, expertise
from his varied backgrounds and qualifications to the board
meetings he attended during the year under review. The
Board will advise Mr. Liao to use his endeavors to attend all
the meetings for the coming years.

fm Bk < B 2 <F Rl R XA 2.1k
RAFEEE ARrNESERESEFRKE
Z B M LREEET BIREEST IR ST
AMEXA21F-ZTHBRXREESFRESE
FRgENACERRY WM EHRR— A
F-ZEIEGALES T E  FH2EREME
ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm@%ﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ'§$
SR 5B AR R B A E X 7 8E 5 N B Bl E
IR MﬁﬁK@TEF°mEFﬁ?W %%
ERRERHNHERGKIELFTEARR

R BB R BB M ZR MR TE © %%Aﬁ%T%ﬁ
AEERE TEFRERSESREEFTAL
EOAenk-

{8 <F Bll 2 <F Bl % 3 A.6.71%
RAFERRE BREE FRTES AH
MEBEFMELL2ER T -NF_A—
HRETZEBAZRTIRKRES BRI RE - B
b 7R A R AT BE 18 K I B <7 Bl 2 <F BI R XX AL6.7
o ZTAME —MME R EELIERNITES
RIFENTEFREFERRIAG HREOE
AREZE RENTR -BERETA BE
ERAFEREALEENESSRTERS
B WIAERRE FEEMNBERTEANEERE
BIELER - EESHERB L EBRH2MEM
BERERBITZEH-

44 SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED &REESEFRAF]



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHRE

Deviation from code provision D.1.4 of the Code
During the year under review, the Company deviated from
the code provision D.1.4 of the Code. According to the
subscription agreement and further agreement dated 22
September 2006 and 24 February 2015 respectively entered
into by the Company and Bekaert, Bekaert group nominated
Mr. Liao as a non-executive Director. Mr. Liao does not
have any formal letter of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions of his appointment as Director, which
therefore deviated from the code provision D.1.4 of the
Code.

The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings
(including the board meetings, audit committee meetings,
remuneration committee meeting, nomination committee
meeting, annual general meeting and general meeting) held
during the year are set out in the following table:

Record of attendance of Directors at the meetings
held during the year (“Attendance Record”)
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Number of Meetings Attended and Held
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Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EEpg Exg ERZEE §MzEE REZEE BRREAEF [
EE EE ] EE EE ] Xg -4
Su Fanrong BLFE 4/4 N/ANE A 3/3 2/2 1/1 111
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau BE% 44 NATER  NATER  NATER 1/1 17
Ye Qian (Note 1) BF(fi#1) 3/4 N/AT @R N/ATEE N/AT @R 0/1 0/
Liao Jun B 24 NATER NATER N/ATER 1 0/
Yip Kin Man, Raymond EER 4/4 4/4 3/3 2/2 11 il
Lam Yiu Kin MHIBE 4/4 4/4 3/3 212 il 11
Law, Yui Lun (Note 2) BB (Hi2) 3/4 4/4 2/3 112 1/1 11
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Notes:

1. Mr. Ye Qian was appointed as a non-executive Director on 28
June 2019 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 1
January 2020.

2. Mr. Law, Yui Lun resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company on 1 January 2020.

During the year, two risk assessment meetings were held
to deal with risk management issues of the Group by
executive Directors and the management of the Group. In
addition, they held a budget meeting to review the business
performance of 2019 and planning of 2020 business after
the balance sheet date.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Company will provide a comprehensive and formal
induction package to each newly appointed Director
to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her
duties, responsibilities and obligations as a Director
under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirement and ensure he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business. In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of
the Code during the year, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Directors have attended
programmes or seminar(s) organised by the Company, other
qualified professional bodies and regulatory authorities.
In particular, all Directors had actively participated in the
Directors E-Training launched by the Stock Exchange in May
2019, which enhance their understanding of the board’s
leadership role in Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) matters.
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Furthermore, in order to ensure that the contribution of
all Directors to the Board remains informed and relevant,
the company secretarial department of the Company has,
from time to time provide Directors with relevant reading
materials to keep them informed of the latest updates in the
relevant industry and market and the latest changes on the
legal and regulatory environment. The records of the training
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated
by the company secretarial department of the Company.
Areas of their training activities provided by the Company,
relevant professional bodies and regulatory authorities are
summarised as follows:

BE RERMAEZSEREFTSFELARR
KIGEMER - RAR AR WE I T RE
SRHEMNBEHNEXFERFANTEBEITER
MG RIE B ASOERINERRENRN
B REEMEIZBIILES BARE MW
EMREMNEFH -AE FHEEXERER
MEERBERRENESRHNFIESH
BT

Accounting, Legal, Global/China
taxation  Regulatory Other market/ Board's
and legal and corporate Group’s  professional economic leadership
professional  governance policies/  development issues/  role in ESG
trainings updates  businesses programs  development matters
-4
/08 BRHER
&t RBR  EE ERR AEEH HpEE  T5/8EN EREE
Name of Director 32 HEEEL REEREN  RX/EH RERE BE/RE  HELRE
Su Fanrong AR - v/ v/ - - v/
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau BEX - v v/ - - v
Ye Qian fNots 1) g2 (1) - v v - - v
Liao Jun B8 - v v/ - - v/
Yip Kin Man, Raymond EER v/ v/ v/ v v v/
Lam Yiu Kin Mg v v v v v v
Law, Yui Lun (Note 2) BEB (W) v v/ v/ v - v/
Notes: Met
1. Mr. Ye Qian was appointed as a non-executive Director on 28 1. EFXFEER_T-—NEFEFNA-TN\BEZEA

June 2019 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 1
January 2020.

2. Mr. Law, Yui Lun resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company on 1 January 2020.

RARFEATTES MR _ZT_TF—-—HA—H%E
BERARBRITES

2. BEBEER_Z_ZEF-A-HABEEARA

BINTEERELZBENE REZEE
BRENFHMEEGKE -
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Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of
his appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments
and the time involvement in those public companies or
organisations. In particular, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin holds more than
seven listed company directorships. The Board, however,
still believes that he is able to devote sufficient time to act
as an independent non-executive Director on the basis
that (i) he has confirmed he is able to and will devote
sufficient time to discharge his duties and responsibilities
as an independent non-executive Director; (ii) he is not
preoccupied with any full-time work and none of his current
commitments as an independent non-executive director
of the other listed companies would require his full-time
involvement and he does not participate in the day-to-day
operations of those listed companies; (iii) with his extensive
experience and knowledge, particularly on corporate
governance acquired and developed from his background
and past experience (including his directorships in other
listed companies), he is fully aware of the responsibilities
and expected time involvement for independent non-
executive directors; (iv) he has held directorships for over
three years in eight of the listed companies he worked; and
(v) he has demonstrated that he is able to devote sufficient
time to discharge his duties owed to each of the listed
companies he has held directorship by attending board
meetings and board committee meetings of these listed
companies during their latest financial year, as disclosed in
these listed companies’ latest published annual reports.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

During the year under review, the roles of chairman and
managing Director were combined together and performed
by Mr. Su Fanrong since 31 January 2018, and thus
deviated from the code provision A.2.1 of the Code. Such
deviation is deemed appropriate as in consideration of
Mr. Su’s extensive knowledge and experience in various
aspects, in particular the management in the steel
industry and sales area, the Board considers this present
arrangement still enables the Company to make decisions
promptly in the formulation and implementation of the
Company’s strategies in achieving corporate goals. Further
details of such deviation has been set out in page 41 under
the heading “THE BOARD” above.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years commencing from 1 January
2020 and expiring on 31 December 2022 (Mr. Feng Yaoling
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 1 January 2020 and Mr. Law, Yui Lun resigned as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2020),
except (i) Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, who was appointed for a
term commencing from 1 January 2018 and expiring on
31 December 2020; and (ii) Mr. Liao Jun (Non-executive
Director), who was nominated by Bekaert group without
any letter of appointment setting out the key terms and
conditions of his appointment as Director with the Company.
They are all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at least every three years at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Articles.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various board committees,
namely remuneration committee, nomination committee
and audit committee to manage particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and aid in sharing the responsibilities
of the Board. Moreover, all the board committees have
formulated their specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Code. The board
committee members will also from time to time report their
decisions and recommendations to the Board, if necessary.

To comply with the Code in relation to the requirements of
the establishment of internal audit function and appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged Moore Advisory Services
Limited (formerly known as “Moore Stephens Advisory
Services Limited”) as the internal auditor of the Company
since 2015. The audit committee takes the responsibility to
review the risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal audit function and its other duties under the Code.
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No corporate governance committee has been established
but respective board committees (as disclosed below) are
responsible for performing corporate governance functions
set out in the terms of reference in code provision D.3.1 of
the Code.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established on 4
April 2005 and consists of four members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. The current members
are:

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)

Mr. Su Fanrong (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Feng Yaoling " (Independent Non-executive Director)

Note: Mr. Feng Yaoling was appointed as the member of the
remuneration committee on 1 January 2020 and Mr. Law, Yui Lun
resigned from the same position on the same date.

and its terms of reference are summarised as follows:

i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management (if any), including
benefits in kind, pension rights, compensation
payments (including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment),
or to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors, and also
to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;
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Vi)

vii)

viii)

EERRE

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management (if any)
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to consider the annual performance bonus for
executive Directors and senior management (if any),
having regard to their achievements against the
performance criteria, and make recommendation to the
Board;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the remuneration as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard to
the Code of the Listing Rules.

ii)

Vi)

vii)

viii)
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During the year under review, three remuneration committee
meetings were held and two written resolutions of all
members of remuneration committee were passed and the
works performed by the remuneration committee included
but not limited to: (i) the consideration and review of
the performance-based remuneration of executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive Directors; (ii)
the review of the directors’ fees of non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors); (iii) the
consideration and recommendation of the terms of service
contract and remuneration of Mr. Ye Qian as the non-
executive Director with effect from 28 June 2019; (iv)
the consideration and recommendation of the revision
of the remuneration of Mr. Su Fanrong as chairman and
managing Director with effect from 1 July 2019; (v) the
consideration and recommendation of the terms of service
contract and remuneration of Mr. Feng Yaoling as the non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2020; (vi) the
remuneration package for the appointment of Mr. Ye Qian
as the non-executive Director with effect from 28 June 2019
by written resolution of remuneration committee; (vii) the
remuneration package for the appointment of Mr. Li Jinping
as the executive Director with effect from 1 January 2020 by
written resolution of remuneration committee; and (viii) the
review of the terms of reference of remuneration committee.
The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by
the remuneration committee to the Board, having regard
to individual performance, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition. The attendance record of the
remuneration committee members at the meetings held
during the year is set out in the “Attendance Record” on
page 45 of this report.

The information in respect of emolument policy of the Group
is set out in the relevant sections of the “REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORS” of this annual report and a separate report,
2019 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“2019 ESG Report”) (to be published).

RAFERRE ARG ERITZAFMES
eELEBBEAMAMABFHEZEEREN
ERER FMEZEE 2 TEBEETRRA:
(ZEREBIIZBRIITES RN ITEELE
VIERTEEHNEAARBEMEBEITOEHN (i)
HEENTES (REBLIERNTES)NE
EMe (BREREREFEEE SN
FRAZTN\BREZARARATERITE
EZRBAOEME: (vVEERZZEE-Z
—NFLtA—BRABRHARLEEREAR
REERRETHLEZHE: WEBERES
BREAEE T -_TF—F —BEERT
BAEARNTFRAITEZTZRBE L RS (vi)
H-E—NAFENAZ+N\BRERZFWHE
BENBEMRRR THEEFLREARLTAF
HERTESNHFMHFB2RIBEE: (vijh =
T_TF-F-BHRABRZFMEZEEKE
ERARER ZEFSFLEBARRRITE
ENFMEB 2 RIEEIR R(vii)RTHME
EeREGEE -EE v HehFMEE 8%
BEARR ASEZEZERBFMRR IR
EREERERMBREMAESSEE -
MEBRTNEESKERAFERITNEZ
I REESN R A REFISEAN [HE
e e

I 18y

BRARBZHMERR ZERCIERANFR
[(EEERE]I R—HOBEM 2B IRE—
(ZCE-NFERR L@ RERHE) ([=
Z-NEFERE HERERREDHEEE
BN o

52 SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED &REESEFRAF]



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

.I/J'_\ e M_/El #Ed:

Nomination committee

The nomination committee has been established on 4
April 2005 and consists of four members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. The current members
are:

Mr. Su Fanrong (Chairman)

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Feng Yaoling "°* (Independent Non-executive Director)

Note: Mr. Feng Yaoling was appointed as the member of the nomination
committee on 1 January 2020 and Mr. Law, Yui Lun resigned from
the same position on the same date.

Terms of reference of nomination committee are
summarised as follows:

i) to review and monitor the structure, size and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, language,
age, religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience,
skills, knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and
length of service) of the Board at least annually in
accordance with the Board Diversity Policy and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

i) to identify and/or nominate and then select or make
recommendation to the Board on the selection of
qualified individuals for appointment as additional
Directors or to fill Board vacancies in accordance with
the Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company
by considering the skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that the individual is expected to bring to
the Board and what are their potential contributions as
and when they arise with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Such appointment is subject to
the approval of the Board;

i) to make recommendations (taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and diversity need in
the future) to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in accordance with the Policy for Nomination
of a Director of the Company, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive;
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to disclose the Policy for Nomination of a Director of
the Company, performed by the nomination committee
during the year. This includes the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the nomination committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorships during the year, setting out
the procedures for the appointment and reappointment
of Directors and board succession planning
consideration;

to assess and review the independence of independent
non-executive Directors annually;

to review the Board Diversity Policy concerning
diversity at all levels of Board members, including
any measurable objectives and progress on achieving
those objectives, and make disclosure of the policy or
a summary of the policy in the corporate governance
report annually;

for corporate governance issues, the nomination
committee should (i) review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management (if any); and (ii)
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Company’s employees and Directors;

the nomination committee shall make a statement
or report to the Board after each meeting about its
activities, the diversity of board members and the
process used for appointments, reappointment of
Directors under the Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company and board succession planning
consideration and explain if external advice has been
used and disclose and publish in the annual report or
other report as required subject to the Listing Rules
which is amended from time to time; and

to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the nomination as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard to
the Code of the Listing Rules.

Vi)

vii)

viii)
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During the year under review, two nomination committee
meetings were held and two written resolutions of all
members of nomination committee were passed and the
works performed by the nomination committee included
but not limited to: (i) the review of current structure, size
and diversity of the Board; (ii) the assessment and review of
the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
(iiiy the review of the Board Diversity Policy, the progress
of achieving measurable objective for 2019 and determine
new measurable objective for year 2020 and the timetable
in relation thereto; (iv) the review of the 2019 training and
continuous professional development of Directors; (v) the
consideration of the proposed appointment of Mr. Ye Qian
as the non-executive Director with effect from 28 June
2019; (vi) the consideration of the proposed appointment of
Mr. Feng Yaoling as the independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2020; (vii) the recommendation
and nomination of the Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company;
(viii) the appointment of Mr. Ye Qian as the non-executive
Director with effect from 28 June 2019 by written resolution
of nomination committee; (ix) the appointment of Mr. Li
Jinping as the executive Director with effect from 1 January
2020 by written resolution of nomination committee; and (x)
the review of terms of reference of nomination committee.

The Board Diversity Policy has been adopted since 2013
and was revised on 18 December 2018. Other than the
elements of board diversity, in considering the nomination
of new directors, the nomination committee members will
subject to the Policy for Nomination of a Director of the
Company take into account the qualification, ability, working
experience and professional ethics of the candidates,
especially their experience in the business/industry of the
Group and/or other professional areas. The nomination
committee then put forward the recommendation in respect
of the above factors, where appropriate, to the Board for
consideration and adoption according to the Policy for
Nomination of a Director of the Company. The attendance
record of the nomination committee members at the
meetings during the year is set out in the “Attendance
Record” on page 45 of this report.

The summary of revised Board Diversity Policy and
its measurable objectives

The revised Board Diversity Policy has been reviewed and
recommended by nomination committee members and
approved by Directors and adopted on 18 December 2018.
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The revised Board Diversity Policy is summarized as follows:

56

articulate the benefits of diversity, including gender
diversity, and the importance of being able to attract,
retain and motivate Directors from the widest possible
pool of available talent, and also aware of development
of a boarder and more diverse pool of skilled and
experienced employee and that, in their skills, will
prepare for senior management and board position to
enhance the quality of its performance;

express the Company’s commitment to diversity at all
levels, including but not limited to gender, language,
age, religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience, skKills,
knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and length
of service, in particular focus on gender diversity,
independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and skills and experience; and

prepare a board skills matrix helping the Board to
assess the current mix of competencies and diversity
on the Board and identify any gaps that may exist.
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The nomination committee will discuss and agree annually REZECETFImEHEERNEEES
all measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the JTTILHIFTERAGIEBE THESSHEER
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption. At any M -E(XMEEMNRE EFeait—Ex%
SRR EZ TR ERENEE -

given time the Board may seek to improve one or more {EF A

aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

The nomination committee will also report annually, in RELZEENEEFEHFENERESS
this report, on the Board’s composition under diversified 7% /b BRI A4 @ W EER AR AT o

perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this policy.

The following are the measurable objectives in years 2019
and 2020:

Progress of Measurable Objective in 2019

TE-AFUGREERZEE

—NER-_Z_ZTFAFEARMOT:

Completion date of the goal

EERBR

Promote a family friendly working culture to support employees with
family care responsibilities so as to bring diversity to workplace
(through reading presentation materials or trainings).

18 J*EEEE’JI{’EXKLAEZTE%%EE”EE EEES
e TIES A Z tlt CRBME B R MBI SIF) o

Hong Kong and China
10 December 2019

F8 NP E
—NE+=-A+H

Measurable Objective in 2020
—E_EZENGEEE

Timeline of the goal

EREEX

Build a healthy workplace that encourages work life balance
(through reading presentation materials or trainings).
BRSNS s B TEEAE T &
( 30 B EDE R M B SOE) o

Before the end of 2020

—E_TEFRR
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The summary of Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company has
been recommended by nomination committee members and
approved by Directors and adopted on 18 December 2018.

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company is
summarized as follows:

° state the objectives of the Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company, including ensuring the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business;

° emphasise the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board;

° set out the procedure for the selection, appointment
and reappointment of Directors containing the
selection criteria, including but not limited to
considering the potential contributions a candidate
can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills,
experience, independence and gender diversity;

° set out other factors, such as the present needs of the
Board for particular expertise skills or experience and
whether the candidates would satisfy those needs, the
requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidates for independent
non-executive Directors would be considered
independence with reference to the independence
criteria or guidelines set out in the Listing Rules,
the suitability to the Company’s present needs for
particular skills or experience and whether it fits
with the Company’s culture, which are related to the
Company shall be considered to select a proposed
candidate;

° list the nomination of Directors applicable laws and
procedures;
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o state the requirement of re-election of retirement of
non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) who have served for more
than 9 years; and

° state the board succession planning considerations
and periodical reviews of the plan.

The nomination committee will monitor the Policy for
Nomination of a Director of the Company to ensure the
effectiveness and will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for adoption.

The nomination committee will review the Policy for
Nomination of a Director of the Company and disclose
in this report on the Board’s succession planning
considerations to achieve the objective to ensure that it
remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects
both current regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practice.

Audit Committee

The audit committee has been established on 30 December
1998. At present, it consists of three members and all of
them are independent non-executive Directors. They are:

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin
Mr. Feng Yaoling "ot

Note: Mr. Feng Yaoling was appointed as the member of the audit
committee on 1 January 2020 and Mr. Law, Yui Lun resigned from
the same position on the same date.
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Terms of reference of audit committee are summarised as EZE

follows:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditor

i) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

\

=

i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s ii)
independence and objectivity;

i) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the audit iii)
process in accordance with applicable standards and
to discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the
audit commences;

iv) to develop and implement policy on engaging an iv)
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that
is under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally;

v) to report to the Board, identifying and making V)
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

e BEBERMT

2K 1 RSB BT 2 B R

TEREMINERBEM R E EFE
EhkEEAESTGRMARZE HENE
T2 BREM 2 3 B e S PR 16K Mo R 3R X )
BRZ R BT B R 2 A&

B RERIINEZBENR T IBLTE

RERARERT MNERZEERFES
R0 M P AZ BR T 1 7 4A A Ot ER AN BE A% 2
fMamizBEaraE N EEHERE
£

19N EE 4% 8K A 1E 4 IR 2% BUIR 75 Il T R
R-AUTFART BT E - TOMNEZRK
B ] B 45 EAZBUA B R R — 2 4

PrEEEE s N2 EAHE . k—
BEEEMNEMBEERENZE=7 &
EEBATEHEZRBEBRNZZEA

Bl AT RBRER 2 — 80 2 EAH
X

HREMBERRZITHREE ZFEHRA
EFgWmELREER:

60 SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED &REESEFRAF]



CO\R/EQRATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
=)= #ﬁd:

i

Review of the Company’s financial information
to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-

Vi)

vii)

year report and,

if prepared for publication, quarterly

reports, and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them.

In reviewing these

reports (if applicable) before submission to the Board,
the audit committee should focus particularly on:

any changes in accounting policies and practices;

major judgmental areas;

significant adjustments resulting from audit;

the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

compliance with accounting standards; and

compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

in regard to (vi) above:

(a)

members of the audit committee should liaise with
the Board and senior management (if any);

the audit committee must meet, at least twice a
year, with the Company’s external auditor;

the audit committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in the report and accounts,
it should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) (or
person occupying the same position), or external
auditor;
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Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems

viii)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

62

to review the Company’s financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board
risk committee, or by the Board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors
(if any) or the professional firm performing internal
audit function and external auditor, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review and assess the annual internal audit plan of
the Company;

to provide comments and recommendations on the
enhancement of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

to meet with the internal auditor (if any) or the
representative of the professional firm performing
internal audit function, if required, to ensure that there
are no unresolved issues or concerns relating to risk
management and internal control function;

EELXNAZHBFRBEHE REBREZRA

ESEIER &
viii) M ARB 2 BEE - UKk (BRIEES

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

BNEFSETARZEGXNXESES
AEeRERE) R ARFANARE
IE&W_LB§L$I/\/}L

HEEEIWEREERAMEER
BOEREEEBCETBERLAMZ
A A wmABTERBEARAEGF M
MBERBETENER BEEE R

KEEDRH UKREBMEXNE
HRENAAAEENELRRE
THURESTELRR EREFNEH

RREERANBERSEECEZHER
RREEBHHAEHERZOE:

HARAMBZEE (NE)XBITREE
BEEMBE X R A MINS L BEN 2 T1E
21 LRERAMZBINEELRR
ARNBERHERENR LHAEE 2
s AR RERABZBNERSS
B R

BERMFEARANFEEANILEZG

gl

T/E’f/\uﬁ—dﬂ:ug J’/\jjl]€§$%.mﬂ AAEI
ERNEBEE RS

INEER - BAEAZEEAED (115 kT
NHBEZNENEXZRRZAKREE
VARE R 17 72 B2 [ B i 3 AN A P B2 12 T
BEHH B8 A R AR OR B0 ] BB SRR

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i

XV)

XVi)

XVii)

XViii)

XiX)

XX)

XXi)

XXii)

EERRE

to seek assurance from internal auditor or the
professional firm performing internal audit function that
internal control processes for risk management are in
place for the strategy determined by the Board;

to review the content of the confirmation made by the
management in relation to the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
prior to submission to the Board;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter,
any material queries raised by the external auditor
to management about accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the management’s
response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external auditor’s
management letter;

to review arrangements employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The audit committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair
and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relations with the external auditor;

to report on all of the above matters in the code
provisions of the Code to the Board;

xxiii) to consider any other matters specifically referred to

the audit committee by the Board;
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Corporate Governance Issues

xxiv)to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, and implement the
corporate governance policies laid down by the Board;

xxv) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and

xxvi) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and other related rules.

During the year under review, four audit committee meetings
were held and the attendance record of the audit committee
members at the meetings held during the year is set out in
the “Attendance Record” on page 45 of this report.

The works performed by the audit committee included but
not limited to: (i) discussion on and review of the half year
and annual financial statements of the Group (including
but not limited to financial and accounting policies and
practices); (ii) meeting with the representatives of the
professional firm performing internal audit function (the
internal auditor) to discuss risk management process and
the effectiveness of internal control system of the Group
and make recommendations in relation thereto; (iii) review of
the findings in respect of the internal audit service together
with the recommendations to the Company; (iv) review of
the internal audit plan prepared by the internal auditor; (v)
review of the internal audit report on continuing connected
transaction of the Group; (vi) meeting with external auditor
in the absence of management to discuss any issue
arising from the audit and the other matters the external
auditor may raise; (vii) recommend the re-appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditor of the
Group and review of the audit fees; (viii) respond to the
external auditor their knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud affecting the Group; (ix) discuss matters
in relation to the compliance of law, rules and regulations,
and accounting policies and practice of the Group; and (x)
review of the audit service plan prepared by the external
auditor.
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The audit committee members also discuss matters falling
within its terms of reference with the external auditor in
the presence of the financial controller and the company
secretary from time to time as they request. When there
are uncertainties or ambiguities in the interpretation of
accounting standards in preparing the half year and annual
accounts that may likely to materially impact on the financial
position of the Group, the Company will prepare certain
analysis explaining the situation in relation thereto for the
audit committee members consideration and understanding.
The audit committee members have full access to, and the
co-operation of, the Company’s management in ensuring
that it is satisfied with the Company’s internal control
system.

During the financial year of 2019, the audit committee
members had made valuable and positive contribution,
and delivered independent and informed comments for
the formulation and implementation of the Company’s
operational strategies and policies. Apart from meeting
with the internal auditor, the audit committee members had
also reviewed certain areas of the risk management and
internal control systems in accordance with the code of
corporate governance and reviewed the risk assessment
reports, required the management of the Group to confirm
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and advised them to pay attention to those areas
associated with high risks and take relevant measures to
further improve the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The concerns raised and discussed
in respect of risk assessment and internal control systems
had also been put forward to the Board to consider whether
the measures to mitigate those risks are effective and
adequate during the year under review.

A whistleblowing policy and system have been implemented
and set up since 22 March 2012 and revised on 1 August
2018 for employees and those who deal with the Company
(e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, with the audit committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining, reviewing and
monitoring risk management and internal control systems of
the Company and to ensure their effectiveness. We believe
effective risk management and internal control systems are
essential for the success of the operation of business and
good corporate governance. The Internal Control Manual,
which sets out the guidelines for the operation of the
internal control system and risk management system, had
been adopted by the Company since 1999. These systems
cover all main aspects, including financial, operational,
compliance control and risk management. In order to align
with the amendments made to relevant laws, rules and
regulations, and further improve the risk management and
internal control systems, the Board is responsible to review
and improve the systems from time to time, if necessary.

In fact, the Board has set out five objectives for the
management to achieve, details are as below:

1. Maximise profitability by increasing the profit margin of
the business segment and at the same time minimize
the production costs

2. Maintain a strong cash flow position of the Group
3. Enhance product quality

4. Attract new customers and develop markets for each
of the business segments

5.  Full compliance with laws, rules and regulations and
financial reporting requirements

Hence, a risk assessment on the existing or potential risks
that may affect the achievement of the above objectives
would be conducted from time to time, at least twice a year
by the management during the course of business operation
and management.

The framework of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group:

Establish risk Identify risks

context 5 d
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Assess risks
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The Board
BEEg

Audit Committee
EREE®

Internal Auditor

P &R 2 BB

Evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s objectives
AERETERAEBEEEEMREEANEREE MIZE

Maintain an appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Company
HRFARRAENEROREREEMAREIERR

Delegate the responsibility to the management to design, implement
and assess the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group

ZIKERER  BREMAEASENRRE R AR
Delegate the responsibility to the audit committee to review and
oversee the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group
ZREREZESREHMEENEEASERREBMAIEE R AT
ZEME

Perform the duties delegated by the Board, that is, review and oversee
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group

BTEFERTHRE INESNEEASERREEMA I EZE RN
| RE

Discuss with the internal auditor the major findings in respect of internal
audit services and review the annual internal audit plan

NEZBEN RN EZRENASER WEHMFRNZ AR EZTE
Review the confirmation from the management of the Group and the
comments and recommendations from the internal auditor in relation to
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems prior to submission to the Board
EHAEEEEEAEZREFTERIREZER I LA ZEE 2 B RAME
F UERAEENRBREENAPEL RGN E R

Perform internal audit services for the Group
RANEBETRBEZIRS

Deliver internal audit reports to the audit committee and the Board
MEZZESNEFGRIANEZRSE

Meet with the audit committee members to discuss the major findings
and make recommendations to improve the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group

HEZZESKNESH MmIZAtARTRENENEERREEM
NE B RGO ER
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Heads of core business °
units/ departments

BNEBEN, BHAEE RLOBYFREE

Assess the risk level based on potential impact and likelihood of risks in
different aspects at least semi-annually
FEMA M EETR AN ER 2 BARIZE

e |dentify the material risks and discuss measures to mitigate risks
7 Bl B AR X A e B (KR B O 45 B

e Give a confirmation annually on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of its business unit/
department and submit it to the audit committee
BERRETAEBENL HPIEEZ AR EBMAIEITRANAE RN -

WIRRFER KT EEZEZES

Process to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

Two risk assessment meetings were held during the
year, at approximately half year intervals. The heads of
the core business units/departments of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries assessed the risk level based on
potential impact and likelihood of risks in different aspects
including business risk, financial risk, compliance risk
and operational and other risks that may be exposed to.
They fill out the risk assessment form which was devised
with reference to the guidance entitled “Internal Control
and Risk Management - A Basic Framework” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants before
the meetings were held. The Board members (mainly the
executive Directors) together with the management of the
core business units/departments of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries participated in the risk assessment meetings.
The meetings aimed to identify the material risks and to
discuss the measures to manage risks. Besides, the status
and effectiveness on implementation of internal control
measures taken after the last risk assessment meeting
would be followed up in the risk assessment meetings.
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Subject to the Code and terms of reference of the audit
committee of the Company, the management of each core
business unit/department of the Group will provide the
internal auditor with their written confirmation annually
in relation to the effectiveness and adequacy of their risk
management and internal control systems for further review,
comment and recommendation and thereafter the audit
committee will review the same prior to submission to the
Board. The internal auditor will base on the nature and
extent of the risks of each individual core business unit/
department to perform further review and recommendation.

In addition to the above assessment process, the
management report and discuss at the monthly meeting on
the existing risk and potential risks of business operation
and cash flow positions of the Group has to face and
monitor.

The Company has engaged Moore Advisory Services
Limited, as the internal auditor of the Company. During
the year, the internal auditor had (i) met with the audit
committee to discuss and provide recommendations on
improving the risk assessment process of the Group;
(i) discussed the major findings in respect of internal
audit services with the audit committee and provided
recommendations for improvement on internal control; (iii)
delivered the audit committee the internal audit reports
regarding the main risk areas of the business segments of
the Group and internal audit plan in relation thereto; and (iv)
considered and reviewed, inter alia, the control procedures
regarding the continuing connected transaction entered
into by the Company and the handling and dissemination
of inside information of the Company, etc. Apart from
taking part in advising the maintenance of an effective and
adequate risk management and internal control systems of
the Company, they also reviewed and monitored the internal
operation of the Group through the testing and controls
performed after arranging site visits of the two Steel cord
plants.

On 17 March 2020, all relevant confirmations from the
management on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Company’s risk management and internal controls systems
had been received. The audit committee members reviewed
the content of the confirmations and submitted the same
to the Board. The Board had reviewed and confirmed
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems at the Board
meeting.
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In view of the foregoing, the Board had duly ensured
the review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
was conducted at least annually and the Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group were effective and adequate
throughout the year of 2019. However, there is room for
improvement in certain areas, for instance, the measures
of managing operational and other risks, such as product
quality control and new product development.

Procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information

The Company complied with the Listing Rules, SFO and
other regulatory requirements regarding the handling and
dissemination of inside information. Directors and senior
management of the Company oblige to take all reasonable
measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirement. Directors and senior management of the
Company follow the guidelines stipulated in Continuous
Disclosure Obligation Policy of the Company which has
been adopted by the Board on 28 March 2011 and the latest
version was and approved by Board on 18 December 2018.
Some principles of dissemination of inside information of
the Company were stated in the said policy, details are as
follows:

The heads of Business units/individual departments identify
and assess whether a potential event or transaction
may constitute inside information. If that is the case the
potential event or transaction should be reported to the
senior management of the Company, through the Company
Secretarial Department. The senior management will
consider with the Chairman/managing Director whether the
information constitute inside information and report to the
Board. The Board will consider whether the information may
constitute inside information and whether disclosure and/
or trading halt would be required. If this constitutes inside
information, the Company Secretarial Department of the
Company would have to arrange for trading halt, prepare
and publish an announcement after approval by the Board.
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Below flow chart illustrates the internal control and reporting

e M_/El #&d:

system of the Company relating to inside information:

*

LTRARFHEBARTEE ZNEEZE R
EE#&? )tb//nﬁi.

BWEM/ AR BPAEE

Heads of Business units/individual departments identify and assess whether potential or
developing events may constitute inside information*

FBHBMFEEREELBRTOENZ

DB ARIEE

-

If yes, report to senior management of the Company
(the usual channel is through Company Secretary of the
Company)

MR BRAALFEREERE (—
ERB)ER

By F SRANYNEIPNGE

Responsible senior management considers with the Chairman/managing Director
whether the information may constitute inside information

A AREEERESR ESAREETEZEANR

LB ARE R

h 4

If yes, report to the Board with supporting documents
through the channel of Company Secretarial
Department of the Company. The Company Secretarial
Department considers potential disclosure implications
(with assistance of legal counsel if appropriate) and
arranges for collating and circulating relevant information
to the Board for further consideration

ME B HEAEX X RAARRARBERE
EEER- AARERSERECNREYE (NEHE &
RUEEBER 2 HY) RS NELZEHEN TESS
FE—FEE

HEFETRZENERRBRAREELE

The Board considers whether the information may constitute inside information and
whether disclosure and/or request of trading halt would be required

s
ﬁ‘E

ERER/AFBERFEYL

h 4

If yes, the Company Secretarial Department of the
Company arranges for trading halt and/or preparing
announcement

MR ARRAERMEBELHAFEEERRHER
/N

N

the Stock Exchange after approval by the Board
REGESENER RORY

Trading halt is made and announcement is published on the websites of the Company and

FRREARR R

PR & NS

The Head of Business units/individual department can consult
the functional departments of the Company, if he/she has any

query about what constitute inside information
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Directors or employees of the Group in possession of the
inside information must maintain strict confidentiality of
unpublished inside information until it is announced and
ensure this is the strictest security of the information is
observed within the Company and its advisers and if the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained,
an announcement shall be made as soon as reasonably
practicable; or if inside information has been advertently
divulged, an announcement shall be issued immediately
so as to disseminate such information to the market as a
whole.

The Board monitors the inside information disclosure
having regard to the SFO and Listing Rules requirements
and the Company ensure that the dissemination of inside
information to the Shareholders and other stakeholders is
dealt fairly in order to avoid any person having a privileged
dealing position.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practice and be in line with code provision
E.1.5 of the Code requiring all listed issuer to disclose its
dividend policy in their annual reports, the dividend policy
of the Company has been adopted by the Board on 18
December 2018, which includes setting standard rules and
guidelines to be followed by the Board in deciding whether
to recommend dividend out of the profits and the amount
of dividend per share to be distributed. The objective of the
dividend policy is to reward its Shareholders by sharing a
portion of the profits, while also ensure that enough funds
are retained for future prospects of the Company and strive
for a balance between the growth of the Company and the
benefits of the Shareholders.
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When considering the decision on dividend declaration, we
will take into account both the internal factors and external
factors.

For internal factors, we will consider the: (i) profitability of
the Company; (ii) liquidity position and the availability of
free cash flow; (iii) capital requirements for growth plans
of the Company which may require funds preservation and
internal funds generation, both internal and external; (iv)
investment opportunities available with the Company; (v)
borrowing capacity of the Company so as to capture any
growth opportunities, inorganic or otherwise; (vi) ability
to receive dividend from the Company’s subsidiaries and
associated companies; and (vii) Shareholder’s expectation
of a profitable return on their investment to maintain their
investment in the Company.

For external factors, we will consider the: (i) statutory and
regulatory requirements and restrictions on the dividend
distributions; (ii) contractual restrictions/restrictions in
debt covenants which affect the Company’s ability to pay
dividends; (iii) prevailing economic climate in the global
including the PRC that will affect the availability of profits
for dividend; (iv) emerging trends in the financial market and
business cycle of Steel cord business that will affect the
growth and performance of the Steel cord industry; and (v)
taxation consideration.

The Board may declare interim dividends at its absolute
discretion in line with the dividend policy, or if the Board
are justified by the profits of the Company available for
distribution. If the share capital is divided into different
classes (if applicable), the Directors may pay interim
dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-preferred
rights with regard to dividend as well as on shares which
confer preferential rights with regard to dividend, but no
interim dividend shall be paid on shares carrying deferred
or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any
preferential dividend is in arrears.
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The Directors may also pay at intervals settled by them any
dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to them that the
profits available for distribution justify the payment.

The Board may recommend quantum of final dividend
payable to the Shareholders at its annual general meeting in
line with the dividend policy, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in the Meeting, based on the aforesaid factors
arrived at as per the audited financial statements.

The dividend shall be paid in the form of: (i) cash; or (ii) a
scrip dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and partly
in (ii) above. The Company may offer the Shareholders the
option of receiving scrip shares in lieu of cash, which may
enable the Shareholders to increase their investment in the
Company without incurring brokerage fees.

The Company shall endeavor to maintain a reasonable
dividend payout ratio, whether as interim and/or final
dividends, subject to (i) capital needs of the Company; (ii)
positive operating cash flows; and (iii) other financial factors
enumerated in the dividend policy. The Company may
recommend a special dividend in special circumstances.

The dividend policy shall be disclosed in the annual report
of the Company. The disclosure is expected to allow
investors to make a more informed decision when investing
in the Company.

The dividend policy would be subject to revision and
amendment under the Articles and the Hong Kong law,
including the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules,
from time to time, on the subject matter. The Company
reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend any
of the provisions of the said policy.
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In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.
issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with
the provisions laid down under the said policy, then such
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc. shall prevail upon
the provisions hereunder and the said policy shall stand
amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.

The dividend policy does not constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare
a dividend at any time or from time to time, but only
represents a general guidance and information purpose
regarding the dividend policy. The Board reserves the right
to depart from and amend the said policy as and when
circumstances so warrant.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees paid/
payable to the external auditors in respect of their audit and
non-audit services to the Group were as follows:

The fees charged by the external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers amounted to HK$1,537,000 for
audit services for audit of annual financial statements. The
non-audit services include interim review of the condensed
financial statements (HK$378,000) and the accounting
advisory services (HK$296,000).
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards to enable the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error. The Directors will subject to statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards, select suitable
accounting policies and apply them consistently, make
prudent, fair and reasonable judgements and estimates and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Group. She reports to the chairman and/or
managing Director. During the year, the company secretary
of the Company has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with Shareholders. In order to maintain
an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders, the Company has
opportunities to directly communicate with Shareholders at
various annual general meetings and other general meetings
where Shareholders are encouraged to actively attend. In
addition, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each of remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee were present to answer any Shareholder’s
questions at the 2019 annual general meeting (the “2019
AGM”). The external auditor had also attended the 2019
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence.
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Procedures for members/Shareholders to convene
a general meeting (“GM”)

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the
directors are required to call a GM if the Company has
received requests to do so from members/Shareholders of
the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members/Shareholders having a right to vote
at GM.

The request:—

(a)

must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

may be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial
Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the
attention of Company Secretary in hard copy form or in
electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.
hk;

may consist of several documents in like form;

must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

must be verified with the share registrar of the
Company, and upon the share registrar’s confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the company
secretary of the Company will notify the Board to
convene a GM by serving proper notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
members/Shareholders of the Company. On the
contrary, if the request has been verified as not in
order, the requesting members/Shareholders will be
informed of this outcome and accordingly, a GM will
not be convened as requested.
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Procedures for members/Shareholders and other
stakeholders to send enquires and concerns to the
Board

Members/Shareholders and other stakeholders are
invited to access the Company’s website at http://www.
shougangcentury.com.hk for up-to-date information of the
Company. They are advised to send enquires and concerns
to the Board:-

(@) by post at the registered office of the Company
situated at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial
Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary; or

(b) by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk for the
attention of our Investor Relations section; or

(c) by filling out the sign up form on the Company’s
website if they would like to be kept up-to-date on the
latest information of the Company.

The Company will make response to their questions
through their required communication channels or deliver
the relevant material directly to their email as soon as the
information becomes available online and make necessary
arrangement for direction of enquires to the Board, if
required.

The company secretary forwards communications relating
to matters within the Board’s purview to the independent
non-executive Directors, communications relating to matters
within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the
chair of the appropriate committee, and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions,
enquires and complaints, to the appropriate Company’s
executive.

Members/Shareholders and other stakeholders can read
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy at the Company’s
website for details and, effectiveness communication. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy was further revised
on 11 July 2019 to maintain candid and constructive
communications with Shareholders and potential investors.
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Procedures for members/Shareholders to put
forward proposals at annual general meetings
(“AGM”)

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, if a
company is required to hold an AGM under Section 610, the
members/Shareholders of the company may request to give,
to members/Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting.

The Company must give notice of a resolution if it has
received requests that it do so from:-

(@)

the members/Shareholders of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all the members/Shareholders who have a right to vote
on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests
relate; or

at least 50 members/Shareholders who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the
requests relate.

The request:—

(@)

must be sent to the registered office of the Company at
Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip
Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary in hard copy form or in electronic
form to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;

must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given;

must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6
weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate;
or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.
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The written request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar who will check if the written request is proper
and in order, the company secretary will notify the Board for
including the resolution in the agenda for AGM.

Pursuant to Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 615 to give notice
of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member/Shareholder of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

If the request has been verified as not in order for the said
purposes, the members/Shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM.

Shareholders’ power to request circulation of
statement

Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, a
member/Shareholder of the Company may request the
Company to circulate, to members/Shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to a
matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with
at that meeting or other business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The Company is required to circulate the statement
if it has received requests to do so from the members/
Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the members/Shareholders who have a relevant
right to vote or at least 50 members/Shareholders who have
a relevant right to vote.

The aforesaid members/Shareholders’ requests (i) may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered
office of the Company, at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour
Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong or
in electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;
(i) must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which it relates.
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Pursuant to Section 581 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 580 to circulate
a statement must send a copy of it to each member/
Shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the meeting in the same manner as the notice of the
meeting and at the same time as or as soon as reasonably
practicable after it gives notice of the meeting. The
expenses of the Company in complying with the Section
581 need not be paid by the members/Shareholders who
requested the circulation of the statement if the meeting to
which the requests relate is an AGM of the Company; and
the requests sufficient to require the Company to circulate
the statement are received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as it give
notice of the meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company puts a high regard for the aspect of investor
relations and recognises that establishment of investor
relations can enhance its transparency, maximize its value
and increase investors’ understanding of and trust in
the Company. Therefore, the management, as requested
may meet with Shareholders, potential and institutional
investors and research analysts. The management will also
provide them with the information of the latest business
development of the Group and answer their queries subject
to the revise of the Continuous Disclosure Obligation Policy
adopted with effect from 10 December 2018 to be in line
with the up-to-date ordinances, rules and regulations and
to enhance the standard of corporate governance practice.
The Continuous Disclosure Obligation Policy is to help
and provide guidance to the Directors and employees of
the Group to fulfill their obligations under the Listing Rules
and the SFO while allowing them to actively inform the
market of the Company development as well as how to
make judgement as to what inside information is and when
disclosure is required. The corresponding presentation
materials subject to the Continuous Disclosure Obligation
Policy are made available upon request, if appropriate.
The procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information has been illustrated under the heading “RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL” above.
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In order to further promote a sound communication between
the public, the Company fully utilises its website (http://
www.shougangcentury.com.hk) as a means to provide the
latest and updated information in a timely manner, and from
time to time enhances the homepage of the website to
reflect its current business development. Also, the company
secretarial department of the Company will respond to the
telephone enquiries and email or correspondences from
Shareholders or investors in respect of various issues
subject to the Continuous Disclosure Obligation Policy.
Any opinions, views and suggestions of Shareholders will
be solicited and brought to the attention of the Board and
management, if necessary.

During the year, the 2019 AGM was held on 11 June 2019 to
approve ordinary and special businesses of annual general
meeting. The resolutions of 2019 AGM were duly passed
by way of poll. A general meeting was held on 1 February
2019 to ratify and approve a connected transaction in
relation to the Subscription for the Convertible Bonds and
the transactions contemplated thereunder. The resolution of
general meeting was also duly passed by way of poll.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was
no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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The Directors herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Further details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 124 to 273.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business model and strategy

Our mission is to be one of the top tier Steel cord and
wire products manufacturers in the PRC capable of
consistently purveying premium quality Steel cords and wire
products; and the evolution into a diversified metal product
manufacturer benefiting from a successful “Eastern”
brand recognition in the PRC and worldwide markets. Our
ultimate goal is to maintain long term profitability, deliver
sustainable growth in our stakeholders’ value under a
prudent and manageable capital structure and contribute to
the economic and social development of the communities in
which we operate.

The Board is responsible for the development of business
models and setting of strategies, planning and development
of the Group. The strategies adopted by the Board will be
executed by the managing Director who will motivate the
staff to achieve the designated business goals and financial
targets under risk tolerance levels prescribed by the Board.
The progress of implementation of the strategies and
business goals will be reviewed and adjusted to respond to
the constantly changing market environment. Corrective and
follow-up actions are made regularly at the Board and/or
other management meetings throughout the years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Review of operations

The Group recorded net profit of HK$108,344,000 for the
year in compared with net loss of HK$8,681,000 from
previous year. Further details in respect of the fair review
of the Group’s businesses, please refer to the sections
“CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, results of operations and financial
position may be affected by risks and uncertainties relating
to the Group’s businesses. These risks and uncertainties
could result in the Group’s businesses, results of operations
and financial position to defer materially from expected or
historical results. The risks and uncertainties set out below
are known to the Group during the year under review:

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s

business operations

1. As the majority of sales of Steel cords of the Group
are domestic, the business and prospect of Steel
cord segment is therefore highly dependent on the
economic performance of the PRC, in particular,
the performance of automotive and transportation
industries and those that involve high volume of road
transportation for commercial and industrial purposes,
such as property development and import/export.
Therefore, any downturn in the economy of the PRC
may cause lower demand for Steel cords and hence
may have material adverse impact to the operations of
Steel cord segment. Despite majority of the Group’s
customers are radial tyre manufacturers located
in the PRC, however their customers, the vehicle
manufacturers that are located in the United States
are affected by the Sino-US trade debacle that has
weighed in sentiment and tariff hike.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)
Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s

FTERBRMAHABEEZE (E)

ARARESEXRBNARNTABE

business operations (continued) %z (#&)

2. The average selling price of Steel cords increased 2. HEAFEOE MESNTFHEELA
during the year under review, attributable to the relief in EHENHERITEELBRNGEIEGFE:
over capacity situation of Steel cord industry together MEMNSIE BRNEREa RSN
with the introduction of new products, effective ReELOMNETAB -HESNEESR
product mix and effort in expansion of exports. The BB R B A RIERME EZERM
selling price of Steel cords is highly dependent on the Bo B -—MaRE At eamER
supply and demand situation in the PRC as well as the EMEMECEEHERSBHEERY
price of its major material — steel wire rod; therefore, 2.
any change in these two factors will have material
impact to the Steel cord segment.

3. The revenue from sales to top five customers of the 3. H“EAFELOE AEEHBEETEHERAR
Group accounted for 52.0% of total revenue of the Pred¥BHEATEASEREETE
Group for the year under review. Any change to the 252.0% - ZERP XK EE BN
business operations, financial conditions or purchasing IERBEA DM AT EHAEER

patterns of these customers may have adverse impact

EEEEADVE

to the revenue of the Group.

The measures to manage the impact on these potential risks
and uncertainties are described in the heading “BUSINESS
REVIEW” of the section of the “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

EEZEEENARMARAERT RO
E7REBCEANFRIEEEWLAR D] —
Eirp [0 R E P

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position

AR A SE B 2 & K M5 AR 89 /& B A
THBREZ

1. The following factors may have negative impact on the 1. T3 I%Tag§¢¢% ) 42 2 28 K H |
revenue and net results of the Group: HEAmTE:
a. Change in the mix of revenue contributions, such a. BEENRRAASMEL - o s

as the income of Steel cord segment from sales of

BROMHBAKRBHERANREE

Steel cord for truck tyres, off the road truck tyres e Ti2tmfa s E g 2t e
and passenger car tyres; o

b. Unfavorable economic development in the PRC b. HEMAERMISAHMNIEELERER
and worldwide markets that may have negative ntewilERgo M EKRBE T
impact on our Steel cord segment; 2
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position (continued)

86

c. Increased market and price competition for Steel
cord segment; and

d. Failure to reduce production and operating costs,
in particular, certain unit fixed production costs of
Steel cord segment can be lowered by increase in
sales and production volume.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the majority
of the revenue of the Group was denominated in
RMB, while there were some borrowings of the Group
dominated in HKD. Attributable to the depreciation
of the exchange rate of RMB against HKD during the
year, the Group incurred net foreign exchange loss of
HK$15,438,000 (2018: HK$20,771,000) for the year.
Hence, any movement of the exchange rate of RMB
will affect to the results of operations of the Group.
Furthermore, the results and financial position of the
Group are denominated in RMB but presented in HKD
for reporting purposes, therefore, the movement of the
exchange rate of RMB will have impact to the financial
position of the Group when translating the Group’s
results and financial position into HKD.

The Group is required to conduct an impairment
assessment on its property, plant and equipment on
a regular basis in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards. Any future impairment
loss to be recognised or reversed depends on
various factors including the general economic and
financial conditions, market competitions, prevailing
product selling price and market interest rates. Such
impairment loss to be recognised or reversed will have
material impact to the results of the Group, however,
it is a non-cash item and therefore will not affect the
future business operations and financial conditions of
the Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position (continued)

4.

The Group utilized a certain extent of bank borrowings
to finance its operations. As at 31 December 2019,
the percentage of bank borrowings due within one
year accounted for 65.6% of total bank borrowings of
the Group, therefore the Group will be exposed to the
liquidity risks of inability of repaying these borrowings
when due. The Group is expected to service the debt
repayments due in 2020 by utilizing cash generated
from its operations, refinancing from banks and other
sources, with an objective to gradually reduce the
amount of interest bearing borrowings of the Group.
However, the Group’s ability to generate sufficient
cash to service its outstanding debts and obligations
will depend on the operating performance of its
various business segments in the future, which will be
affected by factors such as the prevailing economic
and liquidity conditions, the demand of its products
and prevailing selling prices. Whether the Group can
refinance its borrowings also depends on a number
of factors, including the operating performance and
financial conditions of the Group, the prevailing
economic conditions, the prevailing credit policy of
respective lender and the liquidity of the financial
markets. If the Group is unable to service any of its
borrowings due in 2020, this may result in a default
and will have significant adverse impact to the financial
position of the Group as the Group will be requested to
repay full or part of its outstanding borrowings on an
accelerated basis. The management of the Company is
seeking for various banks refinancing to mitigate these
potential risks.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The financial key performance indicators of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are
summarised as follows:

MEBRERAER
AEERBE-E AN N\F+=
A=+ B EEMHENRERIEERS
T

2019 2018 Change
—E-hE —T-N\%F 2E
1. Current ratio (times) MENLL X (%) 1.28 1.19 N/ATiE
2. Liquidity ratio (times) MEERLLE (1F) 1.08 1.01 N/AT i
3. Gearing ratio (%) B 1EE(%) 50.8 714 -20.6ppE 2
4. Average turnover period on FEW IR KT
trade receivables (days) BEECN) 96 97 -1
5. Percentage of past due trade 8 HA e W AR X
receivables (%) B9 (%) 23.7 246 -0.9ppEH
6. Average turnover period on FEFHREEH
inventories (days) (X) 64 58 +6
7. Average turnover period on e IR KT
trade payables (days) BEECN) 110 108 +2
8. Steel cord production capacity MEERERY
utilisation ratio (%) T A & (%) 99.3 97.0 +23ppEIH
Current ratio TENEE =

Current ratio (calculated as current assets divided by current
liabilities) of the Group was 1.28 times at 31 December
2019, higher than 1.19 times at 31 December 2018.

Liquid ratio

Liquid ratio (calculated as current assets less inventories
divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.08 times
at 31 December 2019, slightly higher than 1.01 times at 31
December 2018.

Gearing ratio
Gearing ratio (calculated as total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (included pledged bank
deposits) divided by total equity) of the Group decreased
markedly from 71.4% at 31 December 2018 to 50.8% at 31
December 2019.

AEER-_ZFE-NAF+T-_A=1T—"HHNRDP
R (ARBEERARBEBENE) 51.28
B HER —E-N\F+T_A=1T—HmN1.19

REBES =R

REBR -_T—AFE+_A=+—HBHHOED
BELE (URBDEERTERNUARE BES
H)B1.08fF BR T \FE+_A=+—
HE1.01585 5 -

=R r gz
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R (U EEREBREBTEF AR (B
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

Average turnover period of trade receivables
Average turnover period on trade receivables (calculated as
average trade receivables for the year (exclusive of value-
added tax in respect of sales in the PRC) divided by gross
revenue times 365 days) was 96 days for the year, shorter
by 1 days as compared to 97 days for the previous year.

Percentage of past due trade receivables

The percentage of past due trade receivables (calculated as
the amount of past due trade receivables divided by total
amount of trade receivables) was 23.7% at 31 December
2019, decreased by 0.9 percentage point as compared to
24.6% at 31 December 2018.

Average turnover period on inventories

Average turnover period on inventories (calculated as
average amount of inventories for the year divided by cost
of sales times 365 days) was 64 days for the year, longer by
6 days as compared to 58 days for the previous year.

Average turnover period on trade payables

Average turnover period on trade payables (calculated as
average trade payables for the year divided by cost of sales
(exclusive of value-added tax in respect of cost of sales in
the PRC) times 365 days) was 110 days for the year, which
was 2 days longer as compared to 108 days for the previous
year.

Steel cord production capacity utilization ratio

As the sales volume of Steel cords recorded an year-on-year
growth of 4.9% to 194,006 tonnes for the year, therefore the
capacity utilization ratio in respect of Steel cord segment
(calculated as total sales volume of Steel cords for the
year divided by total production capacity of Steel cords
of 195,422 tonnes per annum) increased from 97% in the
previous year to 99.3% for the year.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

Further details regarding the above and other financial
information, please refer to the section “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report. Key
performance indicators mean factors by reference to which
the development, performance or position of the business
of the Group can be measured effectively which we can
use to monitor progress against our strategies while figures
reporting under accounting standards could not serve such
purpose.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

In the view that uncertainty is one of the main challenges
facing by the Chinese economy, the performance of the
Steel cord industry might be affected unless a strong
cash flow is maintained as well as cost saving and risk
mitigation measures are implemented in order. Details of
future development of the Company’s business, please
refer to the sections “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
the environment and community in which it engages by
controlling and minimizing the generation of wastes, waste
gases emissions and sewage discharges, and at the same
time, complies with the applicable environmental laws, rules
and regulations on the prevention and control of wastage,
waste gases emissions and sewage discharges in Hong
Kong and PRC during the production process.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE (continued)

In order to attach the importance to environmental
protection, the Group has formally adopted an
Environmental Policy (the “Policy”) since 2017, which has
already been implemented all along as part of the Internal
Control Manual. The underlying principle of the Policy is to
reduce, reuse and recycle resources used in the production
lines and offices so as to mitigate wastes and use energy
and resources effectively. Various measures have been
implemented within the Group and are monitored from
time to time, for example, measures on effective energy
conservation to reduce the use of energy, water and other
resources; measures on managing the reduction of waste
and greenhouse gas emissions, etc. had been taken and
complied with since 2015. Detailed discussion on the
environmental policies and performance of the Group will be
set out in the 2019 ESG Report (to be published).

In addition to the above measures, further trainings are
provided to Directors and employees and the Company has
participated in activities organized by various organizations
to emphasize the importance of environmental protection
and to promote occupational health and safety in offices
and production lines. For instance, the “Paper Saving”
campaign organized by World Green Organization (“WGQ”)
to encourage our employees to use less papers, the
“Earth Hour” campaign organized by World Wildlife Fund
to encourage Directors and employees to turn off the light
at night for one hour to strengthen employees’ awareness
on the importance of electricity saving. To promote the
concept of occupational health and safety in offices and
environmental protection, we also participated in the
“Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme” and “Eco-Healthy
Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme” organized by WGO
since 2017. These measures and trainings taken and
provided by the Group in supporting the Policy are based on
the needs and actual circumstances of the Group and will
be reviewed by the management annually.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to comply with the laws and
regulations in which it operates its businesses. During the
year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to
the Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws
such as the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO,
Employment Ordinance and Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance, we have also
complied with laws of the PRC, including the Company Law
of the PRC, Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law
of the PRC, Enterprise Annuities Fund Measures, relevant
laws, rules and regulations in relation to child and forced
labour including the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour and the Law of the PRC on the Protection
of Minors, as well as other environmental laws, relevant
rules, ordinances and regulations on the prevention and
control of wastage, waste gases and sewage emission.
These laws, ordinances and regulations include but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC,
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC, the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the
PRC, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC, the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Product Eco-
responsibility Ordinance, Environmental Quality Standard for
Surface Water, Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge
to Municipal Sewers, Measures for Hazardous Waste
Operation Administration and Solid Wastes of Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC etc.. These environmental laws
will have impact on the Group’s operation since if we do not
dispose all wastages, discharges and waste gases properly,
we might have to bear heavy environmental protection tax
and so increase the cost of disposal of wastages.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS (continued)

Furthermore, the Group has started to attach more
importance to gender equality and the protection of
women’s interests, as well as on the compliance with the
related laws of Hong Kong such as the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, which the underlying principle is also enshrined
in the Basic Law, and related laws of PRC such as the
Law on the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests
and Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female
Employees. To acquire further knowledge on this topic, we
have nominated a representative to participate in activities
related to gender equality and gender mainstreaming such
as participating in Seminar on Gender Mainstreaming to
unleash potential in the workplace (the “Seminar”) organised
by the Women’s Commission (An organization which actively
engages in activities in relation to women empowerment
and advancement) in 2018 for the purpose of understanding
the current role and status of women in business sector
and different parties’ concerns on gender mainstreaming.
In the light of the need to address these issues and to put
our knowledge into practice, the “Policy on Prevention on
Sexual Harassment at Workplace” has been formulated as
a way of the Company to show respect to our employees,
especially female employees.

The Group also notes the importance on human resource
management in which the representative of the Company
has learnt from the Seminar that good human resource
management on effective communication when handling
verbal violence at work and such message has been
conveyed. In addition, a new measureable objectives of
2019 has been adopted by the Board to build a healthy
workplace that encourages work life balance. Further
discussion on human resource management will be also
contained in the 2019 ESG Report (to be published).
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS (continued)

To ensure compliance with these requirements of laws, rules
and regulations, the Company has implemented an effective
internal control and approval procedures, and to obtain high
level oversight of the operation of various business units.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and/or
business units of the Group immediately. Certain discussion
regarding the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
is also contained in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” section on pages 40 to 82 of this annual report
and the 2019 ESG Report (to be published).

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
The Group’s success also depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise employees, customers,
suppliers, Shareholders, government and regulators, as well
as banks and financial institutions (creditors).

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. Most of the management
have been serving the Group for a long period of time.
However, young talents are also provided with opportunities
to work in the Group. The Group does not only offers
competitive salaries and benefits, but also provides training
programmes or courses for the Mainland employees at all
levels from different departments, as well as Directors and
employees of the Company in order to further enhance
their management skills, expertise and knowledge, and at
the same time, make continual contribution to the Group.
Different activities such as celebration of Chinese New Year
and Christmas, celebration of the anniversary of operation
of Steel cord plant of TESC, TESC’s tug of war competition,
fun eating watermelon competition as well as annual dinner
had been organized by various business units of the Group
for general employees together with the management to
participate in order to strengthening their partnership and
communication. In the early 2020, the Group has arranged
Hong Kong employees to join a Shanghai trip, aiming to visit
the Shanghai office and meet the colleagues in Shanghai, so
to have a better understanding of their daily operations.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(continued)

Customers

The major customers of Steel cord segment are the radial
tyres manufacturers. Most of them have been customers for
more than 5 years and in return of their loyalty, we provided
them with good quality products and after-sale services.

Suppliers

The major suppliers of Steel cord segment are the steel
wire rod suppliers. We have co-operated with most of the
suppliers for more than 5 years and have maintained good
relationship with them through regular face-to-face meetings
and visits in order to achieve cost-effectiveness and obtain
long-term commercial benefits.

Shareholders

The ultimate operational goal of the Group is to maximize
our Shareholders’ return. The major Shareholders are
Shougang Group and its controlled corporations, Bekaert
and Li Ka Shing Foundation and minority Shareholders. It is
grateful to have Shareholders who are being supportive to
the Group for a long period of time in particular the times
when market conditions are adverse and challenging.

To set standard rules and guidelines to be followed by the
Board in deciding whether to recommend dividend out
of the profits to reward the Shareholders, the dividend
policy of the Company has been adopted by the Board on
18 December 2018, Details of which is contained in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” section on pages
40 to 82 of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(continued)

Government and Regulators

Decisions made by the government and regulators can
significantly affect our Group’s operations. It is important,
therefore, for us to maintain good relationships with
local officials to anticipate legal or regulatory changes or
community developments that may affect our business.
In view of the need to maintain good relationships, we
have arranged occasional visits and face-to-face meetings
whenever necessary.

Banks and Financial Institutions (Creditors)

Banks and financial institutions are lenders of our Group
who help us to finance our businesses, asset purchases and
supply purchases. As a trustworthy borrower, we always try
our best to meet every payment deadlines responsibly and
consistently, and at the same time, we strive to improve
our financial performance so that we have a greater chance
to receive quality financing in the future. Through regular
meetings and visits, we have maintained stable relationships
with them.

For further details regarding the above, please refer to the
sections “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS”
and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” in this annual
report and the section “STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT
AND MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT” in the 2019 ESG Report
(to be published).
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group, is set out below:

MBENRBE
ATRASERBERBPRFEZERSE
XE BELAGBRE ZFERDBEER
SEzREZEEMBHRE:

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E2-NFE —E-N\F ZT—+F ZT-R§F ZT-hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT B%Tr A% Trx  AETx
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR A& EZ%Fl,/ (E#E) 108,344 (8,681) (68,518) 10,103 (376,985)
TOTAL ASSETS BEBE 3,143,918 3,414,467 3,444,076 3,037,042 3,006,147
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEREE (1,728,846) (2,075,317) (2,052,548) (1,715,077) (1,610,277)
TOTAL EQUITY gk 1,415,072 1,339,150 1,391,528 1,321,965 1,395,870
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, REMERVE BRERKE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the investment properties and
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 16 and 17, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2019 are summarised on page 274 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. Share options granted under the 2002 Scheme
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms
of issue. No share options were granted, exercised, lapsed
or cancelled under the 2012 Scheme. Details of share
options of the 2002 Scheme are set out under the heading
“EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT” hereunder and in note 36
to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 129 of this
annual report and in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made certain amount of
charitable donations.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Su Fanrong (Chairman and Managing Director)

Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (Deputy Managing Director)

Ye Qian (Executive Director)
(appointed as Non-executive Director on 28 June 2019 and
re-designated as Executive Director on 1 January 2020)

Li Jinping (Executive Director)
(appointed on 1 January 2020)

Liao Jun (Non-executive Director)

Yip Kin Man, Raymond
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)

Feng Yaoling (Independent Non-executive Director)
(appointed on 1 January 2020)

Law, Yui Lun (Independent Non-executive Director)
(resigned on 1 January 2020)

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with articles 101 and 102 of the Articles.
Messrs. Yip Kin Man, Raymond and Lam Yiu Kin will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 106 of the Articles, Messrs. Ye
Qian, Li Jinping and Feng Yaoling will retire from office
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Eh]
AEERARBZHEERAFREZEHFE
IR AN FRE1208 2 i3 B a BB R LT
& M 7% s M E38 -

B
RAFER  REBCFELETEEBNR

EE
RAFEARBEARNFREPZESETNOT

BAR(BEFRFEFHKTE)

WESK (EFF/BEE)

X (HITEF)
(RZFE—NFNAZFTNNAEZER
HPNTEFRR -_F-_FF—H—H
BRI RHITEE)

FEF (HTEF)
(R=ZF-_FF—H—HABZF)

B (FBITEF)

ERR (BUIFHTEF)

W (B UHNTEE)

s (B INTEE)
(RZF=ZFF—F—HEZ(F)

BEB (BUHHTESE)
(R=ZF=—FF—H—HEFHE)

RIBEERMANEI101 102162 R E EFA
RARBIBCR A SRS wmEEE - ] BE
B REREAERMBELX A KRB ETT
ZEREAFAE LWESE ETEERLR
BIEEET

RIESRAMAE106FZRE EFEE -F
TR EERBRBRELCESNRAGRIT ZIRR
BERE LHE ENEEBIALREBEES
Feo

98 SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED &REESEFRAF]



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Messrs. Su Fanrong and Tang Cornor Kwok Kau serve as
directors of all subsidiaries of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report. Other than the above
directors, the persons who serve/had served as directors
of subsidiaries of the Company during the year and/or up
to the date of this report include Messrs. Cheung Ngai, Dai
Jihong, Li, Baoren, Li Meng, Wan Chuante, Wang Liang, Yu
Zhigao and Zhao Xuewu.

The list of subsidiaries of the Company is set out in the note
13 “PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES” to the financial statements
and below.

o Rise Boom International Limited
° Clear Vision Investments Limited
o Efficient Investments Limited

° Endless Inc.

o Messiah Investments Limited

° Online Investments Limited

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Apart from information disclosed under the heading
“DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
UNDER THE SFO” and in note 36 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

MEBARESE
RAFEARBEAFHREM HALRELE
EBEAREEEERARRZABEMBLARE
S-REAESII REERE BELEE
FELCEE FREL BIIBELE ETEX
oot EREEREERKTFERNR
IBERFRAPEMEGEEARFZH
BRRIES-

RN A E A AR R R B IS A Y 13
[EEMEAF] RJIEMT e

e REEHBEARRAA

° Clear Vision Investments Limited
o Efficient Investments Limited

° Endless Inc.

° Messiah Investments Limited

° Online Investments Limited

EEZRBEN

EEEETZRREFAG LIREETCLE
EMEERARNRRTLAABHARBRN —FRK
RIEMBAXMNEE OXEBERIN 2R

BRI

EEREROREBEEIZZERN

RRAT REZHRMERAESRKRMG
EREIFINEEARO2EEZRAE ] FEALY
B EM EI6PTIREBEHERIAIN RAFER
AR NATBRKEEFMNBRRHESHE
IR BEEFAFEFEA 2EBK
TABRK T Z FRAIFEBE AR A S E A
TEH 88 2 B fn sl (B A FE T E 15 )2t o

¥y ANNUAL REPORT 2019 99



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Messrs. Yip Kin Man, Raymond and Law, Yui Lun (former
independent non-executive Director) have served the Board
for more than nine years. Messrs. Yip and Law have not
engaged in any executive management of the Group and
Mr. Yip’s solicitors firm and Mr. Law’s company service firm,
and their respective family members have never provided
any service to the Group. They believe their familiarity and
extensive experience with the Company’s business may
place them in a better position to contribute independent
views to the Company and continue to demonstrate a firm
commitment to their role. Taking into consideration of their
independent scope of works and their high integrity when
performing duties as independent non-executive Directors
over the past years, there is no evidence that length of
tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme and
details of movements in the Company’s share options
during the year are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$88,447,000.

BYFHTES
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, DEBENTURES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, save for the interest of the
Directors in the Shares set out as below, none of the
Directors had any interests and short positions in the
Shares, debentures or underlying Shares or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which had to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he
was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred therein or which
were required to be disclosed herein pursuant to the Model
Code.

Long position in Shares
Ordinary Shares of the Company

Total number of

RERZRPERAIESEARG - E#F
HREERD cEERKR

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H BRESHHF
BzBh (BEHFBIENR TN EEFER
ARmREEAAEEE (RES BB G
BISEXVEDZ & ) Z B i ~ B E SRR A D
B E A BIRIEE 5 MR RO EXVER
E7R8D ARG AN N A KB R P 2 AR AT A A
KRR (BIR-REEZ L E GO E BAR
EXREERA BB MORR)  TMEEAAR
IRE S MR IERDIFE 352155 i R R IE Z & B
7 B SARBARZE T B AR A SO B 2 (T ) 1

P VN2
mRIRE

RRG 2R
ERAZEBK

Approximate % of
the total number Capacity in which

Name of Director Shares held of issued Shares interests are held
BHBZEGL
EEps BEROAH WEEBRTRG BHEEZZSH
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (“Mr. Tang”) 10,480,000 0.55 Beneficial owner
(Note)
BBk ([8854 1) ExEAA
(B7at)

Note:  Those Shares were beneficially owned by Mr. Tang and in
which of 200,000 Shares were also jointly owned by his wife.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executives and their associates had any interests or short
positions in any Shares, debentures or underlying Shares
or any of the Company’s associated corporations at 31
December 2019.

Wi ZEROABEEERRES RHE$200,0000%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No Director or his entity connected had a material interest,
directly or indirectly, in a transaction, arrangement or
contract or a proposed transaction, arrangement or contract
that is significant in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors is considered to have interest in the businesses
which are considered to compete or likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules:

Name of entity
whose businesses are

EEERS RHREHF 2R

RAFEARESREMENTERBRNART
sk E AL AP BB A R AT AT ML AR A @ %
BRABEAZRS RHHAHT  TwmER
SEE MERBEaES-

EEEN

RREBAKINN NREEAME LHFAER
RAZWHEMEAREG D EBHNEE RITH
BREMAH-

EERNBFRB RS

RAFEEA B TXFREIN RIE TR
£8.10fF MEEFHR SENEEXBENX
BRI T (TRBERRER)NE
BHlEaRED:

Description of businesses of

considered to compete or the entity which are considered to

likely to compete with the compete or likely to compete with
businesses of the Group the businesses of the Group

Name of Director

Nature of Director’s
interest in the entity

HEBHERARFKERH
BEABRERTHBARE RAAERLKEEKEAREN
EEpE ZEBER THBRRF EREKMEN ESRZER EEME
Liao Jun (Note 1) Bekaert Manufacturing and sale of Executive Vice President North Asia in
steel wire and/or cord products Bekaert group, Member of the Bekaert
Group Executive and Divisional CEO
Specialty Businesses in Bekaert group
B8k (Hizt1) Bekaert HERBERAR /S HESER  BekaertE B TEHITRILH

Yip Kin Man, Raymond  BeijingWest Industries

Bekaerts 17 2 i B [ Bekaert
EEEMEBIEERATE

Manufacturing and sale of automotive Independent non-executive director

(Note 2) parts and components and the
trading of automotive parts and
components

RRR (Hi2) RAET HERHEETHH Rl

BUFHTES

ARBEAEZHHRTH
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (continued)

Notes:

1. Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by the
Company and Bekaert in September 2006 and further agreement
between Bekaert and the Company in February 2015, Mr. Liao Jun
was nominated by Bekaert group as a non-executive Director and
was appointed on 25 February 2015.

2. Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of BeijingWest Industries on 27 January 2014
and does not participate in any decision making on daily operation
of BeijingWest Industries.

In general, directors should owe their fiduciary duties
towards the company as a whole and as such the Board
believes that all Board members shall act in the best interest
of the Company and its Shareholders when they discharge
their duties and responsibilities as Directors.

EERNBEEL o EE (F)
Wizt

1. REBEARF EBekaertit “Z2ZRFNARLZ
REB % K Bekaert B AR RN —E—HFE A
RN 2 — F e Bk Sk EEBekaert B &
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ERT-
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following parties had an interest or long
position or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were required pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred therein:

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

E}E%#&Hﬂ RPN A DT 2
KK 2 S AE B AR 42

RZFE-NF+ZA=1t—H BEFRA
TIALTRARE D KA RO HEE R
RIEE S L ERPIEXVEFE2M30 HRE
TARE 2B a s B RRR  KEFRRE
&7 M B IRDIFE 33615 E i R IR IEZ &P 17
BEZERITRIRE

REOBEBRG ZFR

Total number of Approximate % of
Shares/underlying  the total number

Name of Shareholders Shares held  of issued Shares  Capacity in which interests are held
Fisie,/ HEERTRA
BRRYE S HEROEHA BYACESL BEEZZEH
Richson 148,537,939 7.72  Beneficial owner
EREAA
Fair Union 686,655,179 35.71 Beneficial owner and interests of controlled
corporations Nete ()
BERlA ARXBEE Z RN
Casula 402,395,304 20.93  Beneficial owner
ERBAA
Able Legend 126,984,000 6.60  Beneficial owner
ERBEAA
Shougang HK 906,719,179 47.15  Beneficial owner and interests of controlled
corporations Nete @
BEES ERlAARXBLE R0
Jingxi Holdings 454,545,454 23.64  Beneficial owner Mo ®
REER BB AR
Shougang Fund 454,545,454 23.64 Interests of controlled corporations Mot ¢
EHES REEE RN
Shougang Group 1,361,264,633 70.79  Interests of controlled corporations Nt ®
BHEE REEE w0
Bekaert Combustion 250,000,000 13.00  Beneficial owner "t ®
BB ATRe
Bekaert 250,000,000 13.00 Interests of controlled corporations Nete @
REEE 2 R0
Li Ka Shing Foundation 100,000,000 5.20  Beneficial owner Not¢(®
EHEeE BB AR
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

(continued)
Notes:

(1)  Fair Union is beneficially interested in 135,721,936 Shares and by
virtue of the SFO, it is deemed to be interested in the 148,537,939
Shares held by Richson and the 402,395,304 Shares held by
Casula as Richson and Casula are its wholly owned subsidiaries.

(2)  Shougang HK is beneficially interested in 6,456,000 Shares and by
virtue of the SFO, it is deemed to be interested in the 126,984,000
Shares and the 74,254,000 Shares held by Able Legend and Prime
Success Investments Limited (“Prime Success”) respectively as
Able Legend and Prime Success are its wholly owned subsidiaries
and is deemed to be interested in the 12,370,000 Shares held by
Lyre Terrace Management Limited (“Lyre Terrace”), a subsidiary
of Shougang Grand as Shougang HK is the holding company
of Shougang Grand. By virtue of the SFO, it is also deemed
to be interested in the 135,721,936 Shares held by Fair Union,
the 148,537,939 Shares held by Richson and the 402,395,304
Shares held by Casula as Fair Union has become a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang HK since 9 April 2019 (Please refer to
Note (9)) and Richson and Casula are wholly owned subsidiaries
of Fair Union.

(8) The shares held by Jingxi Holdings represent 454,545,454
underlying Shares to be allotted and issued upon the exercise of
Conversion Rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds (i.e. the
4% unsecured fixed coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$150,000,000 due 2022 (extendable
to 2024) to be issued by the Company to Jingxi Holdings pursuant
to the Subscription Agreement).

(4)  As mentioned under Note (3) above, by virtue of the SFO,
Shougang Fund is deemed to be interested in 454,545,454
underlying Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund.

ﬁ%%%&% SRR RRA DT 2

RXARSMEBERS (&)

RO HEERG 2FR (F)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(5)

106

Shougang Group is the ultimate holding company of Shougang
HK, it is deemed to be interested in the 6,456,000 Shares held
by Shougang HK and by virtue of the SFO, it is deemed to be
interested in the 126,984,000 Shares and the 74,254,000 Shares
held by Able Legend and Prime Success respectively as Able
Legend and Prime Success are Shougang HK’s wholly owned
subsidiaries and Shougang Group is deemed to be interested
in the 12,370,000 Shares held by Lyre Terrace, a subsidiary of
Shougang Grand as Shougang Group is the ultimate holding
company of Shougang Grand. By virtue of the SFO, Shougang
Group is also deemed to be interested in the 135,721,936 Shares
held by Fair Union, the 148,537,939 Shares held by Richson and
the 402,395,304 Shares held by Casula as Fair Union has become
a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang HK since 9 April 2019
(Please refer to Note (9)) and Richson and Casula are wholly
owned subsidiaries of Fair Union. As mentioned under Notes (3)
and (4) above, and by virtue of the SFO, Shougang Group is also
deemed to be interested in the 454,545,454 underlying Shares
held by Jingxi Holdings, a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Group.

Bekaert Combustion is beneficially interested in 250,000,000
Shares.

By virtue of the SFO, Bekaert is deemed to be interested in
250,000,000 Shares held by Bekaert Combustion, which is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Bekaert.

Li Ka Shing Foundation is beneficially interested in 100,000,000
Shares. By virtue of the terms of the constituent documents of
Li Ka Shing Foundation, each of Mr. Li Ka-shing and Mr. Li Tzar
Kuoi, Victor may be regarded as having the ability to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of Li Ka Shing Foundation.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(9)  Restructuring of controlling Shareholder

On 21 November 2018, Shougang HK and Shougang
International, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
whereby Shougang HK agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Fair Union from Shougang International (the
“Restructuring”) as part of the internal restructuring of Shougang
Group.

The Restructuring was completed on 9 April 2019. Shougang
International ceased to hold any share of Fair Union and thus any
direct or indirect interest in the Shares. Fair Union has become
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang HK and the interest in
the Shares held by Shougang HK has remained unchanged at
47.15%.

For details regarding the Restructuring, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 21 November 2018 and 9
April 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Details of the contract of significance between the Group,
Shougang Group, Shougang Fund, Shougang HK and its
subsidiaries are set out under the heading “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” hereunder and/or in note 37 to
the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to practicing and achieving a
high standard of corporate governance and the Board has
approved and adopted the SCCHL Corporate Governance
Code on terms no less exacting than those set out in
the provisions of the Code. Further information on the
Company’s Corporate Governance Code is set out in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” on pages 40 to
82 of this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Set out below are particulars of repurchases by the
Company of its own ordinary shares made on the Stock
Exchange during the year:

BE LEFIBE@D LHES

RAEE R AR BB PR B H E AR A
FHAERIRSIIT:

Consideration

per Share

SRRHER Aggregate

consideration

Number of Highest Lowest paid

Shares B8 BIE BENHENKE

Month of repurchase in 2019 repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$

R-ZB-hEzEEAHR EEEROHA bk B B
November

+—HA 1,060,000 0.185 0.180 194,338
December

+=A 2,730,000 0.202 0.176 510,622

Total
mE 3,790,000 704,960

All Shares repurchased in 2019 were cancelled up to the
date of this annual report.

The above repurchases were made for the purpose of
achieving an increase in the consolidated net asset value
and/or earnings per Share.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company during the year.

HEAFHRAY MEE_T-AFBERND
et

FREEN A AMNERES EEFER
J RERRF -

B b BN R R R AR TR
BT L MIBE - L M E AL
7 L%

108  SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFSEERAR]



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions brought for committed or alleged wrongful acts
against the Directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year, but exclude any criminal, dishonest or fraudulent
acts or omission.

The Articles provide that every Director, secretary or other
officer or auditor of the Company shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against any liability, loss or
expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or
omitted to be done by him as Director, secretary, officer
or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given
in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in
connection with any application in which relief is granted to
him by the court from liability in respect of any such act or
omission or from liability to pay any amount in respect of
shares acquired by a nominee of the Company.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the
benefit of the Directors as required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the report of the directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
Section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
standard. These transactions mainly relate to contracts
entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course
of business which were negotiated on normal commercial
terms and on an arm’s length basis and the Company
has complied with the applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules. Further details are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements. The Group has carried out a connected
transaction during the year, details are illustrated below.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Issue of Convertible
Bonds under Specific Mandate

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a connected
person of the Company) whereby the Company conditionally
agreed to issue and Jingxi Holdings conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount
of up to HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds carry the
Conversion Rights to convert into the Conversion Shares
at the Conversion Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion Shares
(subject to adjustment), and the Convertible Bonds will
carry an interest rate of 4.0% per annum and will mature
on the third anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible
Bonds. Assuming the Conversion Rights are exercised
in full at the Conversion Price, 454,545,454 new Shares,
being the Conversion Shares, may be allotted and issued
to Jingxi Holdings subject to the Conversion Restrictions,
representing approximately 23.64% of the total number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2019 and approximately
19.12% of the total number of issued Shares as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the Conversion Shares, assuming
that there is no other change to the total number of Shares.

The net proceeds from the Subscription Agreement of
HK$149,000,000, are expected to be used as follows: (i)
as to approximately HK$37,300,000 for repaying interest-
bearing borrowings with higher interest rate of the Group;
(excluding borrowings provided by Shougang HK and its
related party(ies)), (ii) as to approximately HK$110,000,000
for funding the capital investment for the TESC Phase I
Project subject to the construction cost and time needed
to supplement the production need for both TESC and
JESC; and (iii) as to approximately HK$1,700,000 being
the remaining proceeds for supplementing general working
capital.

BEALRS (&)
FEXZ -REFERBERTITRRES

R_E—NF+=A+NB " AAFEHFFHE
IR (RARIEEANLT)FI L RIB W Bt - K
ARIEKRHRERTMIRAAEREKGERE
REA RS A/B%150,000,0007T £ A
IR EFH - AT E S I TR - nJ IR E
SRR B H0.33 T (AT FHRAR)EIR A
B - R BARE S G 1L F F E4.0%5
B BRI mRESFFTAREE=@EASF
E A E o R R R R B EITE
I B2 5% A% 1 48 B A 4 B B) - 454,545,454
A& FTAR (0 (BIHRRR AR 15 ) AT TE S IRR HIAR R T
PEERBTTFRAZER BERZ=2T—NF
T A=+ —HEBHITRH B E423.64%LA
REHHRBFETRBEBRNIEREHEEITR
DERE4919.12% o

R 0 5 FT 15 5K IEF 588 % 149,000,0007T 78
HARAE TSI A& ()4 % %37,300,0007T A
REERAEENERSNFEER(EESR
BREBEFRENERRIN (BB
110,000,000t AR AEEMER T —BIIBEE M E
AREREES HEXBRREZKARETR
BINRAREER T CEERKAHRHE:
Ko (iii) P15 FR B #4258 4978 51,700,000 7T FA 1A #8
T—REEED-

110  SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFSEERAR]



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Issue of Convertible
Bonds under Specific Mandate (continued)

The reason for entering into the Subscription Agreement
as this is an appropriate means of raising additional capital
of the Company considering the recent market conditions
which represent an opportunity for the Company to obtain
the funding at reasonable cost for construction of the brass
wire production lines, enhance its working capital and
strengthen its capital base and financial position. Also, it will
not have an immediate dilution effect on the shareholding of
the existing Shareholders and the interest payable under the
Convertible Bonds is more stable and predictable than bank
borrowing. The Subscription by Jingxi Holdings reflects the
confidence and commitment of Shougang Fund towards
the long-term business development of the Group which
is beneficial to the long-term business development of the
Group.

Jingxi Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund, which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Group. Shougang Group is a controlling
Shareholder interested in an aggregate of 906,719,179
Shares, representing approximately 47.15% of the total
number of issued Shares before the date of the Subscription
Agreement. Therefore, Jingxi Holdings is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and is
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

On 11 February 2019, all conditions precedent under
the Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the
completion of the Subscription Agreement took place
and the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$150,000,000 were issued to Jingxi Holdings.

Details of the Subscription Agreement were also disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 18 December
2018 and 11 February 2019, and in the circular of the
Company dated 11 January 2019. The Subscription
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the independent
Shareholders on 1 February 2019.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of
the Group is based on their merit, qualifications and
competence as well as the prevailing market condition of
the industry. Remuneration packages, which include an
element of discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed
annually. The emoluments of the Directors are decided by
the remuneration committee, having regard to individual
performance, the Company’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing
market condition.

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme as incentive/reward to Directors and eligible
participants/qualifying grantees, details of the scheme are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and as at the latest
practicable date, 23 March 2020 prior to the issue of the
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the revenue from sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
52.0% (2018: 48.3%) of total revenue of the Group and the
revenue from sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to approximately 15.6% (2018: 16.5%) of total
revenue of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(continued)

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 50.8% (2018: 61.8%) of total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier, included therein amounted to approximately 15.5%
(2018: 17.1%) of total purchases of the Group for the year.

Save for disclosed above, as far as the Directors are
aware, neither the Directors, their associates, nor those
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Further details related to relationship with customers
and suppliers, please refer to sections “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” in this annual report and in
the 2019 ESG Report (to be published).

AUDITORS

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor
of the Company with effect from 1 August 2018 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and to hold office until the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in
the auditor of the Company during the past three years.

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution
for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong

Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong

24 March 2020
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To the Members of
Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 124 to 273,
which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights

o Impairment assessment of trade receivables
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Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFMUEEBRETSE

(1) Impairment assessments of property, plant and equipment and land use rights

YD - B I 5% 1 BE 1 b 8 A REDRL(EL RT 14

Refer to Note 4(b) (critical accounting judgements
and key sources of estimation uncertainty), Note 17
(property, plant and equipment) and Note 20 (land
use rights) to the consolidated financial statements
BRIEEL I ia 2 F45 & B 53 2 H it 4(b)a1 #1
HEFt THEERAEZEZ EEXR)  Ha17(YF  BELR
&) RATF20( 1+ 1 (E FF )

As at 31 December 2019, the Group owned
certain property, plant and equipment and land
use rights amounting to HK$1,056,830,000 and
HK$95,627,000, respectively, which relate to the
steel cord segment of the Group.

RZE-—NF+A=+—H ESBHEVE K
5 N 7% 1 B + 3t (38 PR # 9 5l 7% 78 %1,056,830,0007T K&
7 #95,627,0007T  HE SREMNMERKSHEM-

Management, taking into account the results of the
steel cord segment for the year ended 31 December
2019 as well as a comparison between the Group’s
market capitalisation and its net assets value,
identified impairment indicators for the relevant
property, plant and equipment and land use rights.

BEHBE_Z-NFT_A=T—HBILFERAERS
HMHELERUARLLER SEECMEMEFEER"
ERERTE TWE - MERRME B ERENRE

BiRe

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights included the
following:

BPEERERENLYE BELARBELIMER
ERE BTIEAEHE:

We evaluated the composition of management’s
future cash flow forecasts used in their value-in-use
calculations, and the process by which they were
prepared. We found that the cash flow forecasts
prepared by management were subject to oversight
and review by the directors of the Company and
were consistent with the budgets approved by the
Company’s board of directors.
BAFETEREEEREEAEREANRKR S
TR BB - A K EE S L TEDORI B B A2 o BP9 B
REBERIINFEEREBARAANEETNEENSE
B WHAREZTGHENTEE B

We involved our internal valuation expert in
assessing the appropriateness and the consistency,
of the methodologies used and key assumptions
and estimates applied.

BAER PR AR EBERFT G BIDERNEE £
—BEMAKRATER AR RRMGE -
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Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFMUEEBRETSE

Management grouped the assets of the Group at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (Cash-generating Units) and performed
impairment assessments in respect of the two
Cash-generating Units of the steel cord segment
identified using the value-in-use method. This
involved significant judgement in determining the
assumptions used in the calculations. The key
assumptions included:

ERER BERBEMNEEN RREKE HAEHEH
BERA MELBEAROBYINEMEEREEM
MBEERA(ReELEN) EEEEDHEREM
F@iﬂﬁ%ﬁ“*%ﬁﬂﬁi?i%haﬂ?ﬂ@
AF - HEPRGAERTETRTEANBIENEXRH

iR EBEBEBRERE:

° rate of annual increment for the steel cord
price; and

MERERNFERE R

° discount rates

BRI R

Based on management’s assessment, no
impairment on property, plant and equipment, and
land use rights was considered necessary as at 31
December 2019.

BREEEENF G R_E-NAF+_A=+—HILE
A E  BE L& ﬁﬁimﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ@

We focused on this area due to the significance
of the balances and the significant judgements
involved in the assessment of the recoverable
amount of the Cash-generating Units of the steel
cord segment including the assumptions used in the
calculations of value-in-use.
BFAIZEERAREHRNER
ARUAEKRESERTSRNERHG (BREFTE
BERANMKRK) -

AR EREE
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We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions made in the forecasts. For steel
cord price, we compared the long-term steel cord
price used in the forecasts against the market price,
and benchmarked the rate of annual increment
to industry forecasts and market trends. For the
discount rates, we benchmarked the rates used in
the forecasts against our research of the discount
rates used by comparable companies in the
industry.

BT ETEREERAPHBARRENAEL &
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We compared the current year actual results with
the amounts included in the prior year cash flow
forecasts to consider the quality of management’s
forecasting, and where any deviations were noted,
we corroborated management’s explanations with
our knowledge of the market and the Group’s
performance in the current year. We also checked
that these relevant factors had been taken
into account in this year’s forecasts and that
management had considered the current year actual
results in the preparation of this year’s forecasts.

BB FEERERE F—FEHeRERATE
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MR EEEREAFEEREEE FFERAHER
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Based on the procedures performed, we found
management’s significant judgements made in
the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights to be supportable
based on the available evidence.

BEFFATHES  RFZHREEBEME  HKFE MR
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Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFMUEEBRETSE

(2) Impairment assessment of trade receivables
P& W SR TR R B AR

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note
4(c) (critical accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty) and Note 23 (trade
receivables/bills receivable) to the consolidated
financial statements

B FEE K5 - 352 B & B B2 1 73.1(0)(i) 57
BRERZE)  4(c)EX &1 AL Hlast THE#EREZ
FERR) KRBT H23( BRI EWREE)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had gross
trade receivables of HK$600,817,000 and provision
for impairment losses on trade receivables of
HK$21,374,000. Provision is made for lifetime
expected credit losses on trade receivables.
RZEBE-NF+A=+—H  EKENERENX
#8 %A 738 %600,817,0007T - & U BR R (B #1878 %
21,374,000t - EBEEEREKEFNE2HEHEES
Bt -

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. Trade receivables relating
to customers with known financial difficulties or
those not responding to collection activities are
assessed individually for provision for impairment
loss. Expected credit losses are then estimated by
grouping the trade receivables based on shared
credit risk characteristics and aging profile and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery. The
expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced over the past 3
years and adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information including macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.
EREERAGTEERNEEBR  UNE MFEM
NEHEFROKEFEEARSRBENRKFIES T
R Rl (B 588 s By i L M8 B BT 1 « EfA R TR ERIE BB 1B RS -
HHANBRERTERETFME  REERNRRES
BOEEERRBEETHE RREEBERXTIEE
BE=FHRENELEEBHRART  WLAAEUARRE
B R ATIEMEE R flan B BE FERN EKRIALE
MR ERE-

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the expected credit losses for trade
receivables included the following:

KRG EHEERBENHRERUREREREEBE 2B
BRABRE:

We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls over credit procedures performed by
management, including the periodic review of aged
receivables and the assessment of the expected
credit losses for trade receivables, including
the identification of trade receivables subject to
individual and collective assessments.

AR A MNBEEEERTHNEREREER
= - B FE H T A B B 78 HA R UK TR K AT Ak FE U kIR
FAHEEERERENER  B1ERTE B YR KA E 5
BRERIES FE R

We obtained management’s assessment of the
expected credit losses for trade receivables and
tested the accuracy of the aging profile of trade
receivables by checking to the underlying invoices
on a sample basis.
BFRETEREERERREREEEBENTI G
iR E MR E % AR T FE MR IA R e iC 8% 1) ZEFE
o

We circulated confirmations to confirm the balances
due from customers on a sample basis.

FAPIAIRAETT S E B T MR S ARER T P BT 8RER o
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Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFMUEEBRETSE

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade receivables and the estimation and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses
for the trade receivables.

BAMRE TR S0 = R AR R B KB - LA RRIE B
T RWBR R TR B E B B IR R 0 I (b A A0 1 o

For trade receivables subject to individual
assessment, we assessed the appropriateness of
management’s assessment based on supporting
documents such as correspondence with the
customers, customers’ responses to collection
activities and relevant public search results relating
to the financial circumstances of these customers.
On a sample basis, we also tested subsequent
settlement of trade receivables against bank
receipts.

S B FF A B FE MR B RAPIR BB E P 89 1 2K K
B REPHERFERENREINKERPIFBIRR
HANAARRERETEE XY EFHTERRE
FHEEVEE M o AR F - AR BIE T R SIA
B8 B AAE TR ITIUE »

For trade receivables subject to collective
assessment, we assessed the appropriateness of
management’s assessment including the credit risk
characteristics based on the customers’ historical
settlement pattern over the past 3 years and market
research regarding the relevant current and forward-
looking information including macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.

HRERAEHNERKES RAFGTEEETED
HEMN BRERNEFEE=FEMNEANEERR
B UNER RATEEERNTSHE BREARY
BEXFPENERFIARNNEZELBERE -

We also tested the calculation of the provision for
impairment losses.

BRI TR ERENE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
judgement and estimates adopted by management
in determining the expected credit losses of the
trade receivables to be supportable based on the
available evidence.

ERNEER HARREEEREUHBRBEER
1R B0 (R A K B RIS A0 BB S8 ©
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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gONSEO\L/I%ATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hFt+-_A=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BET T BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations HEREEK
Revenue E 0 5 2,141,380 2,122,993
Cost of sales 55 AR 9 (1,763,436) (1,855,889)
Gross profit EH 377,944 267,104
Other income E AUz A 7 16,891 3,756
Other losses, net EfhEiE - F 5 8 (13,179) (4,002)
Distribution and selling expenses DI REEER 9 (90,033) (67,786)
Administrative expenses THE A 9 (54,429) (56,782)
Research and development expenses  fiff 3 & F 9 (74,493) (76,941)
Foreign exchange gains, net HNEETE W %S - FEE 2,094 3,770
Changes in fair values of REMEANTEZE
investment properties 16 (718) 4,017
Reversal of impairment losses on THE R 2 R EE K EE
land use rights 20 17,456 -
Net impairment losses on financial TRMEERMEBEBKRFRE
assets 23(c) (1,059) (1,652)
Finance costs, net B TGRS - VR RE 11 (64,704) (78,613)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATSBIATE A, (EE) 115,770 (7,129)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTiS® () 2 12 (4,026) 2,476
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations R BB &L XK 2@,/
(&) 111,744 (4,653)
Discontinued operation BRI K
Loss from discontinued operation REERIEKEEER 2 BE 32 (3,400) (4,028)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHF, (EE) 108,344 (8,681)

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

124  SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFSEERAR]

F134E273 B MM T IR A T IE R R E S

BB e



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

reEmRk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZE_Z—hFt+-_A=1t—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\&F
NOTES HK cents HK cents
Bt 5 AL {1
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings/(loss) per share for EAREEAEBERBEFE
profit/(loss) from continuing meER s wA (HE)
operations attributable to ZEREF(&E)
the owners of the Company
_ Basic —EA 15 5.81 (0.24)
- Diluted —#E 15 5.36 (0.24)
Earnings/(loss) per share for ARABEEAEEREE
profit/(loss) for the year attributable %% (&i8) 2 SREF
to the owners of the Company / (E58)
- Basic — A 15 5.63 (0.45)
— Diluted — 5 15 5.22 (0.45)

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
n‘/_.]_\ éﬁl‘l&

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hFt+-_A=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NIF —ZE-NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BET T BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) for the year REZ B (EE) 108,344 (8,681)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income RERFERKEEK 2H
arising from continuing operations 2@ (&#&) W&
Items that will not be reclassified to EE#TEETEE
profit or loss BamlHE
Exchange differences arising on EHRE 25 EEmE S
translation into presentation bE W, = &E
currency (32,485) (66,297)
Revaluation of leasehold land and HE+THREFER
buildings 17 (2,744) 29,816
Recognition of deferred income tax METHREFEMRZ
asset/(liability) on revaluation of BEFBREE,
leasehold land and buildings (BE)®ER 31 4,606 (5,077)
(30,623) (41,558)
Other comprehensive loss arising RECKRIEREXK 2 HAM
from discontinued operation THEE
Item that will not be reclassified to R TeEHSHE
profit or loss BamHE
Exchange differences arising on R@E27E8mEER
translation into presentation I X =5
currency 32 (1,094) (2,139)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AREZ2mMKZE ()
for the year, net of tax @R (kR E) 76,627 (52,378)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AEE2ERE (EE)
for the year arises from: MREERA :
— Continuing operations — R R 81,121 (46,211)
— Discontinued operation — BRI REET 32 (4,494) (6,167)
76,627 (52,378)

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these  $134F273B WIKIsE Jo4r & M A5 Rk A B A
consolidated financial statements. 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

‘e B AE AR R 3%

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 A —Z—h&+_-A=+—H

As at 31 December

RT=-ZA=+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF T—\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment properties wEYE 16 54,093 55,449
Property, plant and equipment M BB R 17 1,078,262 1,166,333
Right-of-use assets BEEEAE 18 1,569 -
Land use rights S {E R A 20 95,627 70,897
Intangible assets BEEE 21 - -
Pledged deposit on loan from a related K& —RifEE QA A EX
company EEzEBREe 28 - 7,989
Prepayments for the acquisition of BEWE BELRXRBEZ
property, plant and equipment AN 24 10,464 1,724
Total non-current assets ERBEEHT 1,240,015 1,302,392
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 294,981 319,968
Trade receivables JE W BR 3R 23 579,443 690,931
Bills receivable e 23 898,284 924,355
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTR - R & E i fE U 3K
receivables 24 29,463 31,509
Pledged bank deposits 2R ITER 26(a) 53,921 78,630
Bank balances and cash RITEFEERS 26(b) 47,811 66,682
Total current assets RBEEAE 1,903,903 2,112,075
Total assets BEEHEE 3,143,918 3,414,467
LIABILITIES a8fE
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H A FE K 487 566
Bank borrowings RITER 29 210,241 268,407
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 404 -
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFGEMEE 31 25,853 29,617
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBHEE 236,985 298,590

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e ISR AR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 A —Z—h&F+_-_/F=+—H

As at 31 December

RT=-—A=+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF T—/\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 BET T BT I
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables TR K RIE 27 707,010 808,951
Other payables and accruals HENREBRER 27 169,104 130,790
Current income tax liabilities EHIFTS R A 3,493 4,584
Loans from related companies REBERRIZER 28 57,644 226,358
Bank borrowings IRITE R 29 400,461 606,044
Lease liabilities HEEE 18 1,205 =
Financial liability at fair value BERFEFARERZ
through profit or loss THRBE 30 152,944 -
Total current liabilites = #"BREM& 1491861 1,776,727
Total liabilities BEAE 1,728,846 2,075,317
EQUITY EE
Share capital &% 7R 33 1,191,798 1,191,798
Reserves ] 223,274 147,352
Total equity EREE 1,415,072 1,339,150
Total equity and liabilities EREEEHEEHE 3,143,918 3,414,467

The financial statements on pages 124 to 273 were

HINNF124B EF273B v iz 5 IEREE

approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2020 and W _-_Z-ZTF=H - +MMH Z&tﬁ%Aﬁt/ﬁI

were signed on its behalf:

RYEM AHATEEFRAER

Su Fanrong

% LR

DIRECTOR

EF

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Tang Cornor Kwok Kau

B R

DIRECTOR

2o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

an\

== N\ / —
*E/ < 454

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z—%

Bk

—NF+-A=T—HILEE

Property Share PRC
Share Capital  revaluation  Translation option reserve  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total
hA BARE NEEMRE Eiff BRERFE TERGES ZHER ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERT T BET T EET T EET T EET T BETT BETR BETT
(Note ) (Note (i)
(M) (Bisk)
For the year ended BE-Z-nE+2f
31 December 2019 Zt-HLEEE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE-HF-A 1,191,798 23,990 147,598 240,394 1,080 71,145 (336,855) 1,339,150
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year AEE G - - - - - - 108,344 108,344
Other comprehensive Rth2E (58) /i
(loss)/income
Exchange differences arising REERS SEMELM
on translation into presentation EiZE
currency - - - (33,579) - - - (33,579)
Revaluation of leasehold land and RETHRETER
buildings (Note 17) (Mstt7) - - (2,744) - - - - (2,744)
Recognition of deferred income tax ST REFER L
asset on revaluation of leasehold ERMEHAERR
land and buildings (Note 31) (izst) - - 4,606 - - - - 4,606
Total comprehensive AEE2ERE/ (BE)
income/(loss) for the year &% - - 1,862 (33,579) - - 108,344 76,627
Transaction with owners in their ~ EFAEA A 2 i
capacity as owners: BEANRS:
Buy-back of shares e - - - - - - (705) (705)
Lapse of share options BRELK - - - - (1,080) - 1,080 -
Transfer to PRC reserve funds BREHEREES
(Note (i) iR - - - - - 5,411 (5411) -
- - - - (1,080) 5,411 (5,036) (705)
At 31 December 2019 RE-AE+A+-8 1,191,798 28990 149460 206815 - 7655  (233547) 1415012

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these  $134F273B WIKIsE Jo4r & M A5 Rk A B A
consolidated financial statements. 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

v/T\

o\ mwom

*l—\/ 2‘

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z—%

EES

—NF+ZA=t—HLEE

Property Share PRC
Share Capital  revaluation  Translation option reserve  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total
kx  EAGE NEEtEE  EXBE  ERERG TPEREE:  ZHER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AETr BBt AETn BETr BBt BETn RETx
INote () (Note (i)
(W) (BrzE(i)
For the year ended HEZZ-\&+ZR
31 December 2018 Zt-ALtFE
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-F-A 1,191,798 23,990 122,859 308,830 28,894 71,145 (355,988) 1,391,528
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (8,681) (8,681)
Other comprehensive Rth2E (58) /i
(loss)/income
Exchange differences arising REERS SEMELM
on translation into presentation EiZE
currency - - - (68,436) - - - (68,436)
Revaluation of leasehold landand ~ AE T REFER
buildings (Note 17) (Htx17) - - 29,816 - - - - 29,816
Recognition of deferred income tax ~ BELHREFEEZ
liability on revaluation of leasehold ~ EREFIEHE EED
land and buildings (Note 31) (izst) - - (5,077) - - - - (5,077)
Total comprehensive AEE2ERE/ (BE)
income/(loss) for the year 8% - - 24,739 (68,436) - - (8,681) (52,378)
Transaction with owners intheir 25 BEE A 2##
capacity as owners: BEANRS:
Lapse of share options BRELH - - - - (27,814) - 27,814 -
Transfer to PRC reserve funds SRSEEEES
(Note (ii) (Bt Gi) = = - = = - = -
- - - - s - s -
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-A=1t-H 1,191,798 23,990 147,598 240,394 1,080 71,145 (336,855) 1,339,150

F134E 273 B MM T IR A T IE R R E S

B e

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z—%

1:‘"‘) (,%a,%@J %FZ

Notes:

The capital reserve represents the benefit of acquiring a
shareholder’s loan from a previous shareholder upon the
acquisition of a subsidiary in previous years.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and relevant PRC laws and regulations, these subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation,
which is determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to a statutory reserve fund (including the general
reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund, where appropriate).
Transfer to this statutory reserve fund is subject to the approval
of the respective board of directors, and is discretionary when the
balance of such fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of
the respective company. Statutory reserve fund can only be used
to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Il"_.]—\ IE’%/)“JE%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hFt+-_A=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—gE-nE —T-)\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BET T BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from operating activities %%Eﬁéizfﬁﬁmb;
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEL/(BR)2HEE
operations 35(a) 345,967 (122,896)
PRC corporate income tax (paid)/ (B RRZPEMPE
refund, net Fri5 Tt ¥ 58 (3,757) 1,163
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFHBEEB 2KE
operating activities from continuing /E@Jﬁ'ﬁﬁ £/ (8H) 2
operations ReFRE 342,210 (121,733)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RECRIEEEESE 2
operating activities from e EESmEL (BA)
discontinued operation Zfﬁiﬁrﬁﬁ 32 402 (8,367)
Net cash generated from/(used in) meEBESL (BH)
operating activities ZHEFE 342,612 (130,100)
Cash flows from investing activities BREZFHELCZRERE
Placement of pledged bank deposits 7/ R ITF K (53,921) (78,630)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 12 EXE I E1TF R 76,911 57,031
Purchase of property, plant and WEWE HEREE
equipment (38,869) (15,091)
Purchase of land use rights BB 1 ih (5 A (10,616) -
Prepayments for the acquisition of BEWE BERZRBEZ
property, plant and equipment TE K (17,484) (7,965)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE FHEKL&RE
plant and equipment P18 718 35(a) 1,581 4,863
Proceeds from disposals of 18 1) 2 BT S SR
investment properties 35(a) - 6,370
Proceeds from disposals of club HERBEENRIE
memberships 35(a) - 50
Interest received 2 W7 8 865 1,285
Net cash used in investing activities REREEEG 2
from continuing operations REESMEAZ
ReFRE (41,533) (32,087)
Net cash generated from investing REDRIEREEBL 2
activities from discontinued operation &XEEFMEL 2
ReFH 32 140 426
Net cash used in investing activities KREEDSRREFE (41,393) (31,661)

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/_.]_\ Iﬁ:ﬁ/)lb%%‘%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZE_Z—hFt+-_A=1t—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+T—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF T—N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BT T BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from financing activities BEETHELZRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings REBITERZ TS RIE 479,616 433,266
Proceeds from discounted bills REBRIREE 2 TS IE 275,060 300,236
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITENK (743,214) (462,942)
Repayments of loans from related BEFAEANRZER
companies (164,180) (27,949)
Repayments of discounted bills EEANRER (267,075) (168,694)
Interest paid B F 8 (43,970) (46,385)
Payments of share buy-back % 1 B @ (705) -
Payments for principal elements of EEHES TfZK@E‘B%
lease liabilities (1,160) -
Issuance of convertible bonds BT AR EFH 150,000 =
Settlement of convertible bonds B TR & 5 (3,000) -
Net cash (used in)/generated REREEEG 2
from financing activities from MEEE (BA),/
continuing operations EECZR&EE (318,628) 27,532
Net cash used in financing activites KBS R IFE LXK 2
from discontinued operation BMEESBRACESFE 32 (37) (29)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEES () ELE
financing activities ZR&FEE (318,665) 27,503
Net decrease in cash RekBHEeFEERZ
and cash equivalents kA FRE (17,446) (134,258)
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ"i?ﬂzfﬁi&
at beginning of the year ReFEIER 66,682 210,559
Exchange loss on cash RERREEEY
and cash equivalents bE % B 18 (1,425) (9,619)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZHEERRESE
at end of the year HERTEFEERS 26(b) 47,811 66,682

The notes on pages 134 to 273 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ir e ISR YEE

W

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

134

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is an investment holding company and
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing of steel cords.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial
Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties and financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured
at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and

interpretations adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards and interpretations for
the first time for the annual reporting period
commencing from 1 January 2019:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases
Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKAS 12,  As part of the Annual
HKAS 23, HKFRS 3 and Improvements to HKFRS
HKFRS 11 Standards 2015 - 2017

Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interest in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
are disclosed in Note 2.2 below. The other
standards did not have any impact on the
Group’s accounting policies.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_-Z—hF&E+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHZE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEEE(F)
2.1.2 Impact of new and amended standards 2.1.2 XEFIUAKEFUT E HF
issued but not yet applied by the Group ZHET RAZICGTER 2 77 &

Effective for
accounting
periods

beginning

on or after
RTHBEHHz®
RN ETHBER

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB E LR EIFRAEET
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
BB G ERFEIR R
BB G ERE8RMER]
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

—E- N\ EUHBRERER

Amendments to HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39

BRI B mELERNETHR
TR R E LR FEIH &
R G EREIRAER]

HKFRS 17

BB ELERIEITHR

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Definition of a Business
FEHEE

Definition of Material

EANESR

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting

i mRE 2 R EFTHRIER

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

MEREENS

Insurance Contracts

Rig & &

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

1 January 2020
—E_TF—-H—H
1 January 2020

1 January 2020

—E-_FTF—H—H
1 January 2020

—E-FF—H—H

1 January 2021

—E-—4%—H—H

To be determined

R B RELERNFE105 & BREEHABENRSEE QA 5
BB ERIFE285RAEE] ZEEHEREA

None of these is expected to have a BMEZEEARETERE Y

significant effect on the consolidated RNEBE 2 GEMBHmREKE

financial statements of the Group. A& o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 Leases on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1.1 above, the Group has
adopted HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1
January 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under
the specific transition provisions in the standard.
The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2019. The new accounting policies are
disclosed in Note 2.30.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as “operating leases”
under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 5.36%.

(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the Group has used a practical expedient
permitted by this standard to use a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonable similar characteristics.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease
at the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition
date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation
4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

EXSTBEBRE (B)

22 SHBEEE (E)
(i) HEEEHE

HK$’000
PR T T
Operating lease commitments disclosed R —\F+ A =+—HHEEHN
as at 31 December 2018 B E AR 2,982
Discounted using the lessee’s %)’K%Téﬁﬁ H @Eﬁﬁﬁﬁrﬂ/\ﬂ’\]
incremental borrowing rate of EERMEEITINE
at the date of initial application 2,803
Lease liabilities recognised as at R=ZZF-NF-—A—BEIN
1 January 2019 HEEE 2,803
Of which are: B
Current lease liabilities mEBHEAE 1,193
Non-current lease liabilities FERBEEARE 1,610
2,803
(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets (iii) #EAEZENTE
The associated right-of-use assets (including HENFEREEE (RIEEL

land use rights which is presented as a
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of financial position) were
measured at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018. There were no onerous
lease contracts that would have required an
adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to
office premises.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iv) Adjustments recognised in the

v)

consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 January 2019

Prepaid lease payments of HK$70,897,000
as at 1 January 2019 have been reclassified
as land use rights being a part of the right-
of-use assets of the Group.

The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the statement of financial
position on 1 January 2019:

° right-of-use assets - increased by
HK$2,803,000;

° lease liabilities — increased by
HK$2,803,000;

° land use rights - increased by
HK$70,897,000;

° prepaid lease payments — decreased by
HK$70,897,000.

There was no net impact on retained
earnings on 1 January 2019.

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor under operating leases as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 16.

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

2 EXRSHBEME(HE)

22 2

(v)

ATEGRBE ()
(iv)

::&E_]‘Z-ﬁg_ﬁ_ﬂffuf\é
B 7k R 7 I 1 58 Y 58 B

RZZE—NF—A—BrBEE
70,897,000 T 8 1+ # & I8
EEHDE AT HFERAEILK
REBZEEFRAEN—IB
fj\o
EHEREEFRER=_T—N
F—A—BOBBARRERFH
LANIEE -

s ERAEMCHAE-BMAER
2,803,0007T;

e MERAB-EMEE
2,803,0007T;

e THIFERAE-EMAER
70,897,0007T;

o HENMHERBE-RIEE
70,897,0007T -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

140

POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Principles of consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for business combinations
by the Group.

Intercompany transactions balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Principles of consolidation (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-—
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate an
investment because of a loss of control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised
statement of profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

in consolidated
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Business combination
The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred,

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business,

o equity interests issued by the Group,

° fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non—
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the
o consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Business combination (continued)

2.5

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable
in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate,
being the rate at which a similar borrowing could
be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Company’s managing director that make
strategic decisions.

144

2.7

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at the year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and financial liability at
fair value through profit or loss are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, within “finance costs, net”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair values was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that end of the reporting period;
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

146

POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate
on the dates of the transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid,
the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are recognised
at fair value based on periodic valuation by
external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation. All other property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings are
recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve in shareholders’ equity. To the extent
that the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the increase is first recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Decreases that reverse previous increases of
the same asset are first recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the
remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Each year, the
difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and 2%-4%, or over the term of

buildings the leases, whichever is
shorter
Leasehold 18%-20%, or over the term
improvements of the leases, whichever
is shorter

Plant and machinery 4%-20%

Furniture fixture and 9%-20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 11%-20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets
are sold, it is the Group’s policy to transfer any
amounts included in property revaluation reserve
in respect of those assets to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

B HRE M EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction-in-progress represents buildings
and plant and machinery under construction
and pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Costs comprises
direct construction costs, the cost of plant
and machinery and applicable borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period.
No provision for depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as
the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. When the assets concerned
are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated above.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

2.10Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

2 EXRSHBEME(HE)

2.8

2.9

ME- -BERSZE(E)
FRIREEEIFLTENETF.
S R 83 IR AR EHBRRUE
BEIE K ABEEEZERK
N HE R A s B E
EMBREEXRAN - EHRBEET
TIWBAAFERAR - TstAERET
EMhTEeE - E@EEERAFER
- AR B2 B H ¥ 5 - 5 A
R IR BRI E -

REMRE

BREMELSRPESKRAMEE
YIBASBEER - REVEIH
BRAGE BRBBIZKAR
Lﬁﬁﬂ’]1ﬁ“ﬁ}z$ R EMAR
FEIK  RFEEPRESBE
REF -

210 &

WEHBAR ZHEFABTE
E-AEATEE HESFETH
B HEEEHRBERNER
RNEEB A BERERELERTN
BB RIS WIRACA R Rt E R
BIR - HEBERBZNAEXEERE
EREHEERAMENE ZEmE-.

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁ#ﬁd: |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

2.11Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.12Discontinued operation
A discontinued operation is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area
of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale. The result of
discontinued operation is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.13Investments and other financial assets
(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value, and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

2 EXRSHBEME(HE)

2120 RIS ETE
ERIFSEXEBRELENDER
BELEMRR —EEREBHB NG
EoMBLFBEERHNERMOERK
B B EREBR MRS DY
ZEBNE—HEFTEN M
HE—REREE B KU EE R
BAR ERIEEEBHNFEER
REBERERTPERZY -

23R ENEMEMEE
(a) 7%
AEBKESREEIE RN
TErE%E5R:

o BERUADFEE M

o BERUAEERAFE-

DHEEBRR AR EE SRS E
NEBERNMEBE S RENEF

fER3K o

BEATESBOAEMNE -
o2k R IR SRR & A2
iEO

EHEZHERELEEMNRE

BEA AR NEEA
SHEBREETEN IR

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.13Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
(b) Recognition and derecognition

152

(c)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories to
classify the debt instruments:

(1) Amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

2 EXREFBEHBEE)
2IBREMAMEMEE (&)

(b)

(c)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]

78 R AL TEFE
NEETAEEZEREER
RZBER RHARAEE
AAEBERHEEEZH i
WER B IR IR & 2 #ER fE

HER Ezﬁﬁlﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%@
REBoy b Ko PG B 87 -

ﬁ'J”ﬂ:ﬁEwirﬂﬁE

it &
SART A X IR IR AP ER AR
LEMEEME  REVIIR

NEEMERE E‘J%E’\HQ%EZA
MEERXGHANER - AR T
TEE*EE—%%:%@JE‘I—ATE E’jﬂ':
MEENR KA AGZER
HE-

EHTA
75 T A BRI BEURRA
REEREENEHEARE
EMRE T BHY- A= ma
BRI LAY BB T RIS
o

(1) ##HEXK

A WELE B3R &R m
ERNEE MRELRS
MERKRAT A EH
ST BRI A% B E AR R T
BE-GLTREENNE
Yo A BR A B BR A ROKF
AT EUA » 8 TR

EREMEERERE
BEREABBARMER B
BEEERGSEBERRT
AT A B FIIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.13Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

@)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income

Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses,
exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously

interest income and foreign

recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in “other
losses, net”.
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in “other losses,
net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Interest income from these
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

154

POLICIES (continued)

2.13Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
(c) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

(8)  Fair value through profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables and bills receivable,
the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.15Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating
capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Trade receivables, bills receivable and
other receivables
Trade receivables and bills receivables are
amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of
business.

If collection of trade receivables, bills receivables
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables and bills receivable are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value, and subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less provision for impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short—
term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity instruments, for example as
the result of a share buy-back or a share-based
payment plan, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company as treasury shares
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

2.19Trade and bills payables and other

payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay
for goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and bills payables and other payables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowings 22018 &

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as “finance costs, net”.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.22Financial liability at fair value through

profit or loss

The Group has convertible bonds which are
classified entirely as liabilities because they were
issued in a currency other than the functional
currency of the Company. As the instrument
contains an embedded derivative, it has been
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition and as such the
embedded conversion feature is not separated. All
transaction costs related to financial instruments
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the convertible
bonds are carried at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
2.23Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable or recoverable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property
will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are
not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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(a)

(b)

POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
accumulating sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The
assets of the Pension Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the
Pension Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, in accordance with the
rules of the Pension Scheme.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Post-employment obligations (continued)

(c)

The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as an
employee benefit expense when they are due
and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the Group is required to
contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately
9% to 21% of the wages for the year of
those employees in the PRC. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the Group. Contributions
to these retirement benefits schemes are
charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses and profit-sharing
based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.25Share-based payments
The Group operates an equity-settled share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for share options of the Group. The
fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and
non—-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition 227 R AR

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
good or service may be transferred over time or at
a point in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the goods or service.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple elements,
the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on their relative
standalone selling prices. If the standalone
selling prices are not directly observable, they
are estimated based on expected cost plus a
margin or adjusted market assessment approach,
depending on the availability of observable
information.

166  SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFSEERAR]

EEm RGN EHEEBEEP
5 RE AR UL » AR IR A R 5 KA 8
KA R HER - 7 an 3 AR 75 B9 12
] DA B ] 72 2R (il B PR RAE 1T 88

1% o

7 an X AR 75 RO 122 I BE B R E 1T B B
MREBARTIT:

s REMAFERREIITEFH
N&:

o  SKEHITRIEZSUERETFEH
MEE =X

. "SRR AAKEEMAERDN
BEMEBHEARITHN
R UETTES RIEE K
HYERTT ©

AR E W) K AR5 E 2 1 i = B
MEBMER  WAESRHRE
BLETERIRBENEENEE
R-BR WAEEFPERSHE
D 3K Bl 795 0 122 Tl ) Py ] B 4 FRERD

WRERFRZEERHHE Al
RHERBRELREIBILHER
ROEKREBEABHNET WREL
HEERTREERER ARER
HIR AN EZ RIS R A TR
HEAE ARPUARAIBEEM
FY Al A o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁkﬂnﬁﬁi |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group manufactures and sells steel cords,
processing and trading of copper and brass
products. Revenue is recognised when the
control of the products are transferred to the
customers at a point in time, when products
are delivered to the customers, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customers,
and either the customers have accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. A receivable
is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

2.28 Earnings/(loss) per share
(i) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated
by dividing:

° the profit/(loss) attributable to owners
of the company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares

° by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year.

EXSTBEBRE (B)

227 AR (&)

AEERENHEEMER WRE
AMEREE MIRES -EEM
MATEREREER EnXTi
EF BEFHUHEEEREBMER
ExemRiEfg YAXAEEREAE
ﬂi)%ﬁﬁ’\]%%%ﬁﬁ@%;%ﬁﬂig
MmN EXREEREAEREA &
EmDEEE TR #&JE%ME
KOERCEBEEPAEFPER
RHEAREXEm RURTE
KM SAAKEEEBEBERAH
BREZEEGD T BRERRE
EMRNEEEGRTNER BB
ENREBPZARFELBRE
&

2285 REBA (FH#E)

(i) EZREXEF (EHE)
BREARAF(EE) 25T
EhEA:

e HRERARAHEBAZ
wH(BR) T8
B AR DA SN 2 A AR 32 A
R

s BRURFHREFEEANDHE
TEBAKZIMEFY
BURFARAEITZE
B Z AL TR AF

%éo

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,.\/T\ 7f ﬁkﬂnﬁﬁi |Zﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Earnings/(loss) per share (continued)
(ii) Diluted earnings
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings
per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and

° the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

2.29 Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

2.30Leases
As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where
the Group is the lessee. The new policy is
described below and the impact of the change in
Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a
significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group as
lessee were classified as operating leases (Note
34). Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to consolidated statement of profit and
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

168  SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHREFSEERAR]

EXSTBEBRE (B)

228FREA (FHE) (B)

(i) ZFREERF
BRESRANARECTRE
REFERER 28T LAFH
N

e HEGHBELAKRAMH
ZF B &ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁf@$
ZHAERREE

e BREMBEBEEEELAE
PRt RIS E 1T
Z BN B A A0 S 1
e

2.29 R 2w A

B A A B B R R 32 s ] L
EEE/L,

2.30fA4

o X EE2. 20t - AN E A
{’E%Eﬁrﬁ/\ﬁ’ﬁﬁ% AR © T
KA TPt R LIRS 5T R

BENFEFSRME2.2

EE-ZE-\Ht+-A=1+—8"
52 Fr 5 #E B0 [ F AN #R B o O AR
AUPIAREREARNEE (ERAME
NHOEERDBREEHEE (K
it34) - KEMENFER (ks HHE
AGETHOEMNEENE) £ HEH
NIREHET ARz



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁ#ﬁd: |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.30Leases (continued)
From 1 January 2019, prepaid lease payments
are reclassified as land use rights, other leases
are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received;
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.30Leases (continued)
° uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the landlord, which does
not have recent third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its leasehold land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment,
it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use
buildings held by the Group.

170  SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFSEERAR]

EXSTBEBRE (B)

2.30% Y (&)

o HNIHMRESRERENHE
B R AR E R A R SR
MR INE - WIRRBENER
R ETHE A

o HHEEMEORKERNE MHE
B BER BB LEM-

HENTBERSMBEERZ M
ETOE -MEBREHEHAG
ARz - A IR B TE &Y 38 5 1 A ==
HEHEBERBITENS -

BEERBERATE 8%

HERENVIRFIESR:

o HHEHMMAKZANA
HE AR IR W R r T E R
B

s BEERER UK

o HERMA

BEERE-REEENEMRSSH
HA S HMREEN R NRE R
AR E -NMAEESERTES
TEBERE MEENEENER
SoHERNYEEFRE IR
E-XAKEHINBRASTBE BFE
RENHELHMETNEEE
TEM BEREZEHMFANRE
RERZEYEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.30Leases (continued)
Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
16). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held
as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

2.31Dividend distribution
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

2.32Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised in
“other income” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

2.33Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Other development expenditures are expensed
as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as
an asset in a subsequent period.

EXSTBEBRE (B)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s foreign currency
transactions are mainly denominated
in RMB, HK$ and United States dollar
(“US$”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$
and US$, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk
arising from commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities
denominating in a currency other
than RMB, HK$ and US$ which are
the functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group.

The management considers the foreign
exchange risk with respect to US$ is
not significant as HK$ is pegged to
US$. The exchange rate of RMB to HK$
is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 &HZE—Z— NS+ _-_A=+—HItFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHXERERE(E)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

&1M¥H@l%(ﬁ)

(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THEE(EZ)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SINEREE (&
For companies with HK$ as their LETRA 177 ﬁ’é%ﬁ #ay
functional currency A /:7
As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had —nF+=A

weakened/strengthened by 5% against
HK$ with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been HK$12,000
lower/higher (2018: post-tax loss for
the year of the Group would have
been HK$30,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of RMB

\ng

_+—E| AR R
BB FH{ES% M
Fﬁﬁﬁ’rﬁff“ ES R

g AEEBFHNKRB
?ﬁmfrl |18 > 18 0
12,000t (=ZZ — N\
FAEEFAKRBIRE
BB A IR D
30,0007T) ' EEHRKE

denominated bank balances and cash HEUARBRBAAIER

and the current account with group TEERReREER

companies. AT RERE EAIINEZE
HAH

For companies with RMB as their UANREBATIGERH

functional currency #9232 &]

As at 31 December 2019, if HK$
had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the
year of the Group would have been
HK$7,111,000 lower/higher (2018:
post-tax loss for the year of the Group
would have been HK$42,505,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange difference on
translation of HK$ denominated bank
balances and cash, trade receivables,
other receivables, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank
borrowings, loans from related
companies, financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss and the
current account with group companies.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEERKBERE (&)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1 MBEBEE (&)

174

risk

As the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets, the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.
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(a) Market risk (continued) (a) mHERE(E)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMERE (B
For companies with RMB as their KAR Mﬁﬁ I 5E &
functional currency (continued) #y 2N a] (&)
As at 31 December 2019, if US$ R-_ZE—n&F+=-H
had weakened/strengthened by 5% =t+t—HB - fWETHA
against RMB with all other variables R EE,/FAE% M
held constant, post-tax profit for the Fr B Hfih 7] & [ = 4 £
year of the Group would have been N REBFARKRTE
HK$2,291,000 lower/higher (2018: m*l | ¥R A1 00
post-tax loss for the year of the Group 2,291,000 (=& — N\
would have been HK$2,955,000 higher/ FAEEFAKRBIRE
lower), mainly as a result of the foreign BI85 0, D S
exchange difference on translation 2,955,0007T) ' = EH
of US$ denominated bank balances RBMEAETREBEALE
and cash, trade receivables, other RITRETF LIRS - BUER
receivables, trade payables, other N E bR - RS BR
payables and accruals and the current o Hib AR RTERE
account with group companies. RAEk&EERAERIERE

EEINEZRFAE

(i) Price risk (i) 1B15/E
The Group is exposed to commodity 7N &8 5 TE R R EL O g A
price risk in relation to its steel products mEEOEmERLR
which is largely dependent on the % TiE X ZRURANAEH
market price of the relevant commodity. R TI5ER - AEE
The Group closely monitors the price BERHEEMER A
of its products in order to determine its ETHTEERRK-
pricing strategies.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate (iii) B2 R ANFEFER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

3

B HRE M EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

3 HBEREE(E)

3.1 MBEBEE (&)

(a)

TEmEE (&)

(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk (continued)

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily
arises from bank borrowings. As at
31 December 2018, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease
of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s loss before tax for the
year by HK$1,484,000. The 50 basis
point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next end
of the reporting period date.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group
does not have variable rate borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from pledged deposit
on loan from a related company, trade
receivables, bills receivable, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances.

The carrying amounts of pledged deposit on
loan from a related company (Note 28), trade
receivables (Note 23), bills receivable (Note
23), deposits and other receivables (Note
24), pledged bank deposits (Note 26(a)) and
bank balances (Note 26(b)) represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets.

(b)

(i) BHEHRANFEFER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEERKBERE (&)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

3.1 MBREBRER (f'%)
(b) =EEE (&

176

(i)

Risk management
To manage this risk, deposits of the
Group are mainly placed with state—

(i)

HfIE%NA
EJETID/( ’$%E"]
EE=N E;J_)\*ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂ

owned financial institutions and KERERTEENIR
reputable banks. The Group has 17 o AL E 2 HIE BUER A
policies in place to ensure that sales MRIESTHBEEM

are made to reputable and creditworthy
customers with an appropriate
financial strength, credit history and
an appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable
amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit
risk. Sales of goods to the customers
geographically located in PRC
constituted 74.8% (2018: 79.1%) of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2019. They accounted for
approximately 85.4% (2018: 83.3%)
of the gross trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2019. Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are
closely monitored on an ongoing basis
to minimise such credit risk.

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]

BREH ERELRX
MEE B DL EBNR
MEEREETR  ITHIE
Hfth B2 ¥ 32 SV A BE AR R
R R A 45 s U 1= 280 B E
& o

BEAN - AR B B A (A
ABPRERARERE
K 15 18 {6 B FE W AR X &Y
Al Bl &5 AREIRE B
AR EFKIBE R S
KR EE 18 -

AEEEEESEY R
ol 22— T — N &F
+-—A=+—HLtFE
HEMNEM THRERR
EAEE L X574.8%
—E—N\F:791%) °
RZE—N&F+=A
:+—E H #)(h5 e W
B 7K BR T 42 5 H985.4%
—?—Ai 83.3%) °
REBRBEZT Y EE R
7R (B2 FE LA B2 ) Uk [E]
B BRBEE R
E&Ro



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/_.l_\ jﬁk#&iﬁﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILtFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEERKBERE (&)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

3.1 MEBERBREE (&)
(b) EEmEE (&)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables and bills receivable
for sales of goods of the Group and
from the provision of services are

(i)

2REEME

A B 17 B 0 B MOR
RRERERAYTE
WEEBEAER AR

subject to the expected credit loss ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ? EMRe K
model. While cash and cash equivalents ReFEYRAEMESRE
and other financial assets at amortised é“? MEBBTEEND

cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables and bills receivable

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and bills receivable.
The Group measures the expected

A HOR M AEE
k- BRRAREE KL
FEA-

JEW IR R JEW B

AEBRAEEMB R
HERNFOREEFE
EHEEEE  XMA
FE WK TR K R M R IE
RS TRAREREE - N
SERAEARSEEE

credit losses on a combination of both BHERHEEEE-
individual and collective basis.

Measurement of expected credit loss on 1A 7B B (Z BE BRI AT
individual basis =

The receivables relating to customers ¥ 2 A B S R B ok R ¥
with known financial difficulties or BRIEHEENRF

those not responding to collection
activities are assessed individually for
provision for impairment loss. As at
31 December 2019, the provision of
impairment losses in respect of these
individually assessed receivables was
HK$21,315,000 (2018: HK$20,095,000).

B EWRFKIEGE
B ERERERE R
T-hhEFE+=ZRA=+—
H - BAZE MR A E
W R IE R BB B K B E
4 %4 & 7 21,315,000
T(ZE—NF: B
20,095,000t ) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets

(continueqd)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis (continued)
The following table presents the gross
carrying amount and the lifetime
expected credit loss in respect of

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

(i)

MEERERE (&)

3.1 MEBERBREE (&)
(b) EEmEE (&)

A TR 15 B TR B9 5
£ (#)
T?Ei?ljﬁ/;\ =,=_)\ﬁ5

k—F-NF+t=-A
=+— B ERIFF R

individually assessed trade receivables FIEREREAEREH
as at 31 December 2018 and 2019: TEET R
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BB T T
Gross carrying amount FRE&E (21,315) 20,095
Lifetime expected credit loss & HiFEsHE B E548 21,315 (20,095)

Net carrying amount FREDEE

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are then
estimated by grouping the receivables
based on shared credit risk
characteristics and aging profile and
collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery.

The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical credit
losses experienced over the past 3
years and adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information
including macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continueqd)

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the provision
of impairment losses in respect of these
collectively assessed receivables was
HK$59,000 (2018: HK$29,000) based on
weighted average expected credit loss
rates up to 0.15% applied on different
groupings (31 December 2018: up to
0.10%), which does not have a material
impact to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Impairment losses on receivables are
presented as “net impairment losses
on financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

(i)

MEERER (&)

3.1 MEBERBREE (&)
(b) f=EmE (&)

M EENRE (F)

ERAR FAEEE
faﬂﬁﬁg (%)
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2 5T FE I GRIB KR B
Ta%%éﬁ%,%ﬁ%g 000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERABRER(E)

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEREE (&)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets

(continueqd)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (continued)
The following table presents the gross
carrying amount and the provision
for impairment loss in respect of
collectively assessed trade receivables
as at 31 December 2018 and 2019:

(i)

(b) =EmEEE (&)

M EENRE (F)

LAY FEREEE
Beyit £ (&)
TREINRZ=ZF—N\F
k—F-NF+t=-A
=t B&REFHER
IR H) BRH 42 (B ERUE
BRREE

Lifetime
expected Gross Lifetime Net
credit carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
28 28
B fEE B EE
BR= REAE Bi FEFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BETT
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZE-h%F
+ZB=+-H
Aging category R
Up to 90 days (Note) +Z90A (Biz) 0% 407,713 - 407,713
91 to 180 days 91E180H 0.02% 156,246 (35) 156,211
Over 180 days %1180H 0.15% 15,543 (24) 15,519
Net carrying amount FHFE 579,502 (59) 579,443

180  SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFSEERAR]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁ&#ﬁi |3ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on

3 HHXERERE(E)
3.1 BKRBREZE (£)
(b) ERE (&)
(i) =M EEHEBE (&)

LAY FEREEE

collective basis (continued) BryitE (&)
Lifetime
expected Gross Lifetime Net
credit carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
2 28
EitEE BiEE
BEX REZE Bi REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
As at 31 December 2018 R =-Z—/\F
+-A=t+-8
Aging category AR
Up to 90 days (Note) L Z90A (FzE) 0% 509,968 - 509,968
91 to 180 days 91£180H 0.01% 161,457 9) 161,448
Over 180 days %1180H 0.10% 19,535 (20) 19,515
Net carrying amount RHFE 690,960 (29) 690,931

Note: Expected credit loss is close to zero
as trade receivables within this aging
category have no recent history of
default.

P & - IEEE ﬁ%r“ﬁ"‘ﬂﬂ?jﬂ
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
(continueqd)
Pledged deposits on loan from a
related company, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances
There is no provision for impairment
losses for pledged deposit on loan from
a related company, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances as at 31 December 2019
(2018: same).

(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including long-term and
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group’s finance department maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate
amount of cash and cash equivalents and
flexibility in funding through having available
sources of financing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/_.]_\ ZI-?FK#EH:MT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 &HZE—Z— NS+ _-_A=+—HItFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHXERERE(E)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1 MBEBEE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Surplus cash held by the operating entities
over and above the balance required for
working capital management are transferred
to interest-bearing bank deposits with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall
liquidity position. As at 31 December
2019, the Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$47,811,000
(2018: HK$66,682,000) that are expected to
be readily available and sufficient to meet
the cash outflows of its financial liabilities,
hence, management considers that Group’s
exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s
total available banking facilities, amounted
to approximately HK$612,295,000 (2018:
HK$901,553,000), of which approximately
HK$610,702,000 (2018: HK$874,451,000)
has been utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
grouping based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying
values as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

(c)

FEELERE (&)
Z<<<M€%;‘fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’aiﬁﬁﬁi@
5L§ EEFTENHRE
A%Bz%é)\ﬂﬁm HAPR &Y
#ME TR AR B8R
FEEMRR - RZF—NLF
+-—A=+—8 A58 #
EREMREEBEENEE
47,811,0007C (=T — /\F:
# 1#66,682,0007T ) - T8 HiBE
RAESATEAREEMAaRE
WEREEmE Bt BEER
B AEBEMAINREBES
BRI TE K o

R—ZZE—NAF+=-—A=+—
H AEEZJHRITHE
BEH A 612,295,000
(ZZE—NF: 8K
901,553,0007T) ' HH E &)
FA %7 #610,702,0007T ( —
T — )\ & : 5 #874,451,000
JT) °

4l

TRIBRFEEEESRTHEZE
HWEHEND *ﬁ’Hﬁ$‘$@E’J
FNEERBES REHDIN
HARR - TRATBKBENESRER
BHARMRACRE - AR
BT E K #R+ @A
NE B ARBESNER®T
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
v/T\ jﬁ&#ﬁiﬁﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEERKBERE (&)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1 MBEBEE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) nEBELELE (&)
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Less than 4-6 7-12 Over undiscounted
ratt  On demand 3 months months months fyear  cash flows
METHY tZ PN
ERRE  EZREE OR=@ER MEAER il gR-F REeHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ay A¥Tr  Bfr AETn %t EETn RETn
(Note)
(Rsk)
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-NE
T2A=1-A
Trade, bils and other payables ~ EREZT EHZRER
EfEREH - - 756,921 85,561 - - 842,482
Loans from related companies  KEBELE &5 450 - - 58,769 - - 58,769
Bank borrowings ROER
- fixed rate i 424 - 198,718 137,173 79,455 210,760 626,106
Financial iabity at far value ~ RAFEF A BEZ
through profit or loss tRARE 4.00 - 3,000 - 3,000 159,000 165,000
Lease liabilities HEEE 5,36 - 29 300 609 404 1,609
- 958,935 281,803 83,064 370,164 1,693,066
As at 31 December 2018 \ZE-N\E
+-h=1-A
Trade, bils and other payables ~ EREZ EHZRER
Ef R - - 813,750 96,861 - - 910,611
Loans from related companies ~ KEBELF &5 457 - 32,990 7,234 195,334 = 235,558
Bank borrowings HIER
- fixed rate ~EEflz 546 - 209,009 216,439 100,865 - 586,313
- variable rate L 523 - 14,256 - 14,641 284,425 313,322
- 1070005 30053 310840 28445 2045804

Note: The weighted overage effective interest rates

are based on the rates of the borrowings at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/_.l_\ jﬁk#&iﬁﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEEREBRER (&)
(continued)

3.2 Capital management 3.2 EXERE

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as
capital. The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
interest bearing borrowings of the Group
(including loans from related companies, bank
borrowings and financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss) less bank balances and
cash (including pledged bank deposits) divided
by total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

AEERGERRERGERERN A
SEEREANBNAREAEE
BEARSBEETABRRIEH#D

¥R OA Re 7% B At ) 25 45 B8 7 5 2R A
@ WHBRREERNEBRD

RERFSABRERNERE ~NEEA
HAEABRRIARENERE HBE
AEETERR BITHBRMODILE
BENRDEE-

AEBUERB B REREEER
AZEE ZHERAEBZEE
mE(BRXaEEARZERK:
RITERMBERAFESAREZS
BEE)RRTEFEARE (B2
BRI R AR B RR A
8RB MR R KRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/_.l_\ Zrﬁk#&imj-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HRRKER(E)
(continued)
3.2 Capital management (continued) 3.2 §$%’IE (&)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the gearing RZBE-NFRZZFE-NAFTA

186

3.3

ratio was as follows:

E+*EI /§$%%H§$-

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Loans from related companies REBERRZER
(Note 28) (FF7E28) 57,644 226,358
Bank borrowings (Note 29) RITE R (F5E29) 610,702 874,451
Financial liability at fair value through E QA FEFFAEBZRZ
profit or loss (Note 30) TRl B & (Ki5E30) 152,944 -
Less: Pledged bank deposits B B IRIRITER
(Note 26 (a)) ( Ff5E26(a)) (53,921) (78,630)
Bank balances and cash RITEFERE
(Note 26 (b)) (Fi3E26(b)) (47,811) (66,682)
Net debt fa 8 H5 719,558 955,497
Total equity ARz 1,415,072 1,339,150
Gearing ratio BERLX 50.8% 71.4%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial Zli'il/i\%ﬂﬁFE’JEEﬁﬁ BHE R
assets including pledged deposit on loan from B—RAER FAEEE 2 2B
a related company, trade receivables, bills 2e- }ZLISZEEW JZH&Z?RTJ% we Rk
receivable, deposits and other receivables, E@Eﬁ”&ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and TRERBAS keRAaRE 21
cash; and financial liabilities including trade and fﬁ%% K e R IR~ B R AT

bills payables, other payables and accruals, loans
from related companies and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wm
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

4

B HRE M EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are evaluated based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the current tax and
deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

4

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

EXRETHHENEFH TREREZ
EFERIR

PR e B4R B B A5 3R 2 il 5 S 0 I -
DERBELRIEMGAZ BHEES
BREAMBELTHESELE ZEMH
i o

AEEEHBBARR G RER B
ZBE FEEEAELEERCE
I%.:%?FEH°TX*TQEZ1HQ+&TE““
EEU T EVBRFEEERABL
HEEKRERTE -

(a) Fif& ﬁ& % FIE Bt 18

HGHECRER FEFLE
y%#ﬂ%ﬁ a?%ﬁa%&? “E’JEE'*ZQ

EEEEET BRENMRE

i % ) 50 AR & 55 T [R] B ﬁfﬁ%%ﬁ
K B E RN E AN IEMIELT
MIEEENEE-

EEEEBRLSBRREAJEAER
A5 a8 ) LA 4 85 B Br (4 22 R =K AT 2 A
MBERER FRETERIEEZRE
&%ﬁ%féﬂéﬁﬁﬁkﬁlﬁiﬁ?%uﬁﬁ
R-BERERANGERAIETH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w$
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

IR E M EE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

188

(b)

Impairment assessments of property, plant
and equipment and land use rights
Property, plant and equipment and land use rights
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
change in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on the
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell calculations.

The calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying amount of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the rate of annual
increment for the steel cord price or the discount
rates assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

4 EREFHEMGFIREREZ
FERR(E)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/__]_\

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

B HRE M EE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the expected credit losses
allowance calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Provision for inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
written down to net realisable value when there is
an objective evidence that the cost of inventories
may not be recoverable. The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly
or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have
declined. The cost of inventories may also not be
recoverable if the estimated costs to be incurred
to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying
value and net realisable value of the inventories.
In determining whether the inventories can be
recoverable, significant judgement is required.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent by
all means to which the amount will be recovered.
During the year, certain inventories written down
in prior years have been subsequently sold at
prices higher than their then net realisable value.
Provision regarding these inventories have been
reversed.

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

EXRETHHENEFHITREEREZ

Igﬂslﬁ (I\/\>

(c) EWRERE
AEERBHEORBRMELRIBEL
EHRF  HEKRKGRRER

(d)

BB AKREREAKEBEE
2o BRAEMRMEEREHRAOF
HFIMH.# 15 PR # T 1E I 2 F R AR

FEERHEEEERETENE
ABUE -

FERE
FRELDEAARAZER FERE
ZHEBEEAR-WEEEZBER
/T\TTEJZK&T HﬁZIEI E‘Jiﬂlﬂ?@

EHB&*M}@%%EETE%
E'JEJ%E BEd @77 B AR o e i
ﬁ%%ﬂ%%?iﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%$im'ﬁ
AREEHTREETFERA-

RIFABERRMENSRRTFEN
REERSRFEHNER-
REETE AT 7 B A AN R A (E
BEARHE - RNIEL BB H B - A
SEEFE(EREE) REMS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

v/T\
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

4

190

B IR R S M

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4 EASHHAHENGEFTIBEERRZZ
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION FERR(E)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(e) Fair value of investment properties and (e) REMERME HERRKREW
property, plant and equipment measured AT ERERESETE
at revalued amount
The fair value of investment properties and BEHEEFENREMERY
property, plant and equipment measured at ¥ BERRENAFENERASZ
revalued amount is determined by using various BEERNETE - B Ao RRR
valuation techniques. Details of the judgement MFBE R 16 R17THEE -
and assumptions have been disclosed in Notes 16
and 17.
(f) Fair value of a financial liability at fair () BRAFEFTABERZZTRARE
value through profit or loss WA FE
The fair value of a financial liability at fair value EATFEFABRZEHABEND
through profit or loss is determined by using TEEBAFRSEMERITEE
various valuation techniques. Details of the B o B Bl H T R R e R R B R
judgement and assumptions have been disclosed FE30 55 -
in Note 30.
REVENUE 5 EXH
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing AEBXTERETHESRE - NFER
of steel cords. Revenue recognised during the year are REVHADT
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF — N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BEREER
Sales of goods — Manufacturing of BEmiE —®iE
steel cords o BE AR 2,139,930 2,121,189
Rental income e WA 1,450 1,804
2,141,380 2,122,993
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:v/T\
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

6

B HRE M EE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Company’s managing
director, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods delivered.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable
segment under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is steel
cord segment comprising the manufacturing of steel
cords.

In September 2019, the Group discontinued the
processing and trading of copper and brass products
business in the PRC (Note 32).

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each
segment without allocation of changes in fair value of
investment properties and financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, certain foreign exchange gains
or losses, central administration costs, the emoluments
of directors of the Company, interest income on bank
deposits, finance costs and rental and other income.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

6

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

2 EE R
SRERD RS RRBEFEMRARR

Zi%%@%ﬁ% EE**LRﬁ%(Fiy
BARE])2BMNER KPR
EmmER-

RIBEFEBMBMELERFSRE LD
AEEZREREE2RD A AEL
RO BR BIR B AR AR o

E-Z—NFENA AEBERIEEE
RAAEENEE SRR M INE 5%
% (5E32) °

DEMEEEEDWBZEBR A TBHED
BRENEZAFEZE & TIHIKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/_ﬁ jﬁk#&d:mj-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 oHER (&)
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) PHEXBERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s NTAREBIREE REZHHD
revenue and results by operating and reportable LEEBRER 2O
segment:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—-hE+=-A=+—HL
FE
Steel cord
o 58 43
HK$’000
BET T
Sales of goods EmHE
Segment revenue from external customers DEEERERBINSEF 2,139,930
Segment results D EBELE 204,719
Unallocated amounts RO EHE
Rental income e WA 1,450
Other losses, net and foreign exchange HEiEsE FRRINEER
gains, net W R R (2,269)
Changes in fair value of investment BEWMELATFEZE
properties (718)
Expenses =] (22,708)
Finance costs, net KA - R 5E (64,704)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 %% A & A 115,770
Income tax expense Bz (4,026)
Profit from continuing operations KEFBEREEL 2 H 111,744
Loss from discontinued operation REBRIEREEE 2 BB (3,400)
Profit for the year RE[E 4 A 108,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬂ: |Zﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

6 ZoWMEH(E)

(a) Segment revenues and results (continued) (a) PHEEBERESE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT-\F+-A=+—HL
FE
Steel cord
i 5% 4%
HK$’000
ok
(Restated)
(&31)
Sales of goods EmiEE
Segment revenue from external customers DERE HERE IR B INEBRF 2,121,189
Segment results DERELE 93,264
Unallocated amounts ROBLE
Rental income e A 1,804
Other losses, net and foreign exchange HihE1E  FERINEE K
gains, net Was - /?%E (3,094)
Changes in fair value of investment KREMERNTEZE
properties 4,017
Expenses & A (24,507)
Finance costs, net BATERC S VA (78,613)
Loss before income tax B P15 Bt Al S 18 (7,129)
Income tax credit Frisfis e 2,476
Loss from continuing operations REFEKEER 2 BB (4,653)
Loss from discontinued operation REERIERLEHERE 2 BE (4,028)
Loss for the year REEEE (8,681)
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an\ 7f ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬂ: |Zﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 oHER (&)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

(b)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s
assets and liabilities by operating and reportable

segment:

Segment assets

THEERAR

AT RAEEREENE2HD B

ZEERBEZDN:

7 EEE

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

(Restated)

(E3)

Steel cord il BE AR 2,967,813 3,177,793

Total segment assets DEEERTE 2,967,813 3,177,793

Bank balances and cash RITEF LIRS 47,811 66,682
Pledged deposit on loan RE—HBEZEQRER

from a related company Bz EBERIZS - 7,989

Pledged bank deposits EIRIBIEITER 53,921 78,630

Unallocated assets RAOBEE 74,191 75,606

Discontinued operation BRI E T 182 7,767

Total assets BERTE 3,143,918 3,414,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁ#ﬁd: |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 HWER (FH)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) b) ?HBEEREE (E)
Segment liabilities T EHEE

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

As at 31 December

BR+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Steel cord 3] 5% 4% 893,191 952,814
Total segment liabilities NHEBEERE 893,191 952,814
Loans from related companies REBERAFZER 57,644 226,358
Bank borrowings RITER 610,702 874,451
Financial liability at fair value BRATEFABRZ
through profit or loss THAE 152,944 -
Unallocated liabilities AAOBEEBE 14,272 21,651
Discontinued operation BAR |48 2 T 93 43
Total liabilities BERE 1,728,846 2,075,317
For the purpose of monitoring segment ldﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%fﬁ&ﬂ@ D EE IR
performances and allocating resources between ZR®zEms:
segments:
e all assets are allocated to operating segment e KRETYE BELEZME &

other than certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets, certain prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, pledged deposit on
loan from a related company, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash.

all liabilities are allocated to operating
segment other than current income tax
liabilities, bank borrowings, loans from
related companies, lease liabilities, financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss,
deferred income tax liabilities and other
unallocated payables and accruals.

BYX EEERAE FTHE
(/AR E A E R
B—HBEEAREREEZE
HHre EEMRTERE
RUTBERAERI MBEE
ERDEBEESEL-

e KEHMGHRARE RITH
RREBMEQRRZER M
E8E BATEAABREZ
TREE BREMSHABRK
H At R4 0 B /0 B 5% B FE R
ERIN IBEREDHKOEE

@ Ak 3
KEDHER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
v/T\ j%ﬂz#ﬁiﬁﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 SEHER(E)
(c) Other segment information (c) HittpHBER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-—ZE—-NF+=-—A=+—HL
FE
Steel cord
o 358 43
HK$’000
BT T
Amounts included in the BRERGAESHEEDS
measure of segment assets SEERE S
or segment profit or loss:
Capital expenditures BEARRY 55,811
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - B E M & E 2 T & 99,557
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEMGAEZINE 1,199
Amortisation of land use rights TE 478 & RRIE 2 8 1,929
Net impairment losses on financial assets TRMEERMEBERKXFERE 1,058
Reversal of impairment losses on THE R R ERKEE
land use rights (17,456)
Provision for inventories, net FERE F8 9,096
Losses on disposal of property, HEME BEREZHZ
plant and equipment, net B8 F R 995
Amount regularly provided EHREFEIELE
to CODM but not included AREEBFTEBER
in the measure of segment FTESHEBEER D
profit or loss or segment EEREBEBEZSHE:
assets and liabilities:
Income tax expense Frig i > 4,128
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 SEHER(E)
(c) Other segment information (c) HittpHBER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT-\F+-A=+—HL
FE
Steel cord
i 5% 4%
HK$’000
ok
Amounts included in the BRERGAESHEEDS
measure of segment assets SEERE S
or segment profit or loss:
Capital expenditures BEARRY 53,059
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - B E M & E 2 T & 129,416
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE T 38 & RKIE 2 8 4,681
Net impairment losses on financial assets S REERERKFEE 1,652
Provision for inventories, net FEREE F5E (740)
Losses on disposal of property, ﬁ’%%¥ VJE e
plant and equipment, net = RE 1,796
Amount regularly provided EHREFEIELE
to CODM but not included REEZEETRBER
in the measure of segment FFESHEER S I
profit or loss or segment EEREBEBZSHE:
assets and liabilities:
Income tax credit FiEHEe (3,124)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6

(d) Geographical information

The Group’s operations, non-current assets and
substantially all of the customers are located
in the PRC (including Hong Kong) which is the
country of domicile of the relevant entities of the
Group. Accordingly, no further analysis of revenue

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

DEER (E)
(d HEER
REBZLE FERHEERBA

BOEFHLUNANEBEIERAEEE
WAERR fE(BFEEE) - A
b WEZFIREINREF 2 &
BRIERBEEN MR D ERHE—

from external customers and non-current assets THHT e

by geographical location is presented.

Revenue from customers contributing over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

KEEAKEBLEXBAI0% T
Py :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+t—HLEE

2019 2018
—B-nE —T)\%F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Continuing operations BEEEEK
Customer A (Note) BEEA (M) 334,290 370,743
Customer B (Note) EFB (MzE) 260,579 265,503
Note: Revenue from steel cord segment. MisE: REMEES B2 EEE-
7 OTHER INCOME 7 HilA
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+t—HILLEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Continuing operations BESEER
Government grants (Note) BT AL (BYsE) 13,190 1,097
Sales of scrap materials HEREEDR 3,701 2,659
16,891 3,756
Note: The government grants represented immediate financial FEE - AT 40 B 48 2R B HR B3t 75 B B9
subsidies granted by the local governments in the PRC. BEEMBER-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

8 OTHER LOSSES, NET

8 HtER FHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(&751)
Continuing operations BEREER
Net fair value gains/(losses) on ?—rT’EE BEZTETAZ
derivatives held for trading NEEFEWZ S (EiE) 2,228 (1,956)
Fair value loss on financial liability at fair TE’&?TEJ)\TE 5.7
value through profit or loss (Note 30) eRAEGEZATEER
(Ff3E30) (5,944) -
Loss on disposals of property, LEME BMELREEZ
plant and equipment, net Eie - 58 (995) (2,154)
Losses on disposal of club memberships  HE &% 2 EE - (225)
Impairment losses on property, M WEREEBZRERSK
plant and equipment (Note 17) (MI5E17) (9,745) -
Others Hity 1,277 333
(13,179) (4,002)
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9

200

IR E M EE

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution
and selling expenses, administrative expenses and

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

9 RUEIINEH
DHNMHEER TTREHR

research and development are analysed as follows:

RIFERA 5
RITEERZERDITMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E3)
Continuing operations BEREER
Cost of inventories sold (including HEKAN (BEE®R
net provision for inventories FEFESE)
recognised) 1,744,208 1,844,208
Employee benefit expense (including EERAFAX
directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (BREZ=MS)
(Kt3E10) 217,242 220,910
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BERZEZIE
equipment 100,860 130,205
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEGCAEZITE
(Note 18) (Mf5E18) 1,199 -
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 20) o b {56 A A 2 B B
(Kt3E20) 1,929 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease A E FRIE 2 #
payments (Note 20) (Hf3E20) - 4,681
Auditor’s remuneration FETAI A B &
— Audit services — BT AR 7 1,537 1,495
- Non-audit services —IEEFH RS 674 428
Provision for/(reversal of provision for) GERE(BERD) -
inventories, net (Note 22) FEE (FfeE22) 9,096 (740)
Operating lease rentals in respect of BFeieEfEgrmse
buildings - 3,896
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZ—_ZT— NF+_A=+—HItFE
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 10 EET/AMAX
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E7%)
Continuing operations BHEKEER
Wages, salaries, allowances and Fe IE 2RUR
other benefits H At 48 A 197,239 197,943
Pension costs — defined contributed plans R K4EF| 5t 8] 2 5% 234 312
Pension costs — social securities in the PRC :E K& 7|5t 2l 2 iz 7 72 Bl &9
HeRES 19,769 22,655
217,242 220,910
Five highest paid individuals EeiuEFMzES

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 included two (2018: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
39. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2018: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

BE_ZT-NAFT_A=+—HL*HF
B -AEBEFMESNAREARCTER
Z(ZE-N\F ZR)EF HEMzC
[ BRI P FESOFT /R B 0 4T R © FF R B A
BRI=B(ZT-N\F WE)EENFH
BT

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—2-hrE —EF-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Continuing operations HEREXEK

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EREMER 3,395 2,619

Discretionary bonuses KB ABMIEA 917 291

Pension costs — defined contribution plans E/AEFl 5t 2 2 3 151 126
4,463 3,036
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_ZT—hF+_A=+—HIFE
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 10 EEREFMZ (&)
Five highest paid individuals (continued) BEeEuFMzES (&)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: PesEWT :
Number of individuals
EEAH™
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-NEF
Continuing operations BHEKEER
Emolument bands il & &6 [
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 T2
75 #1,500,0007T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 . &
75 #2,000,0007T 1 1
3 2

Two (2018: three) executive directors of the Company,
constitute senior management of the Company, their
emoluments were within the following bands:

ME(ZE-N\F: =ZB)RREINTE
F BRARASREEAS ENEB
RIATEEE

Number of individuals
EBEA™
2019 2018
—E-nE ST\

Continuing operations BEREER
Emolument bands i & &3 &
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 T &

75 #2,000,0007T - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 78 %2 000,001 . &

¥ 12 500,0007T .

3

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, BHE-_ZE—N\EER=ZE—NALFE+A

no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or other members of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join, upon joining the
Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

=t+—BLEFE- ZK%I*E}E,%E\I‘MEHW
ShUFMcBENEFTHEMKES
NS AERRSIEEMAKR A
REER 2 Be W ERBERAE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

11 FINANCE COSTS, NET 11 BBRE FHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—B-hE  —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E3)
Continuing operations FREREER
Finance income B U A
Interest income on bank deposits RITF A B YA 865 1,285
Finance costs ﬂJﬁ]’%EEZF
Interest expenses on bank borrowings RITERZFELZ T (37,667) (42,084)
Interest expenses on loans from related L= EﬁL AERZ
companies B H (8,261) (12,790)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABZMNEXE
(Note 18) (FF7E18) (115) -
Amortisation of loan transaction costs BERR A 2 B (1,994) (2,422)
Foreign exchange losses on borrowings ,\TA&ﬁ@SHE FFAER
and financial liability at fair value ZERmBEZINEER
through profit or loss 518 (17,532) (24,541)
(65,569) (81,837)
Amount capitalised BARLEE - 1,939
Total finance costs B ISP AN 4B 5B (65,569) (79,898)
Finance costs, net B RS R A - R B (64,704) (78,613)
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12

204

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

12 FEHxH  (ER)

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-BA=+—HLHEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Current income tax: EHIMEMN
- China corporate income tax —FR B EMSH 4,003 886
Overprovision in prior years VAR [ M RR B 18 (1,294) (1,254)
Total current income tax EHMSNARE 2,709 (368)
Deferred income tax (Note 31) EERTST (F5E31) 1,317 (2,068)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frisfizd/ (E&) 4,026 (2,436)
Income tax expense/(credit) is Frisfizd/ (E&)
attributable to: EERN:
- Continuing operations —FEKE 4,026 (2,476)
- Discontinued operation (Note 32) —ERIEREERR
(HM$5E32) - 40
4,026 (2,436)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 as there is no
assessable profit subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
both years.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC effective from 1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law”),
companies in the PRC are subject to income tax of
25% unless preferential rate is applicable.

If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as
High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the
applicable CIT tax rate is 15%.

The applicable CIT tax rate for Jiaxing Eastern Steel
Cord Co., Ltd (“JESC”) was 15% for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019.

RBE_Z-\FE-_FT-h&F+=A
=T HLEFE AEEYEEAAS
NEBMNSHOERY G - B R W
EEEHEFBNEHR < BEE-

BEE-_ZTZNF—A—HBHEBZHH
TEMSHE (TEEMESHE]) BRIE
BEREER TARTRENARARK
4N25% H FT 15 H57 o

MM BRARIREBEEEABIIENAE
RaBHEA M E (TSHxme
R Z2EBEWR BRANEERMGEHRER
15%

REZE_ZE—NEX_FT—NLE+_A8
T+ BUHFE ZHREANERER
NA ([ZEHRF ) NEEMEGHRERES
15% °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE—T—NF+Z-ZA=+—HIFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12 FiBHixd (E&R) (8)
(continued)
The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income AEERABHINEF, (BB) NFHE
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would HEAEANSERZEENEGHER
arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable wm A E IR EA BN IERm SR
to profits of the consolidated entities in the respective ZFEMAT:

jurisdictions as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T ok
(Restated)
(E7%)
Profit/(loss) from continuing REFELCEEB 2RAE
operations before income tax Marss, (&) 115,770 (7,129)
Loss from discontinued operation REERIEKEEHEE 2
before income tax R P15 30 Al & 18 (3,400) (3,988)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BR P15 B AR A1, (&E) 112,370 (11,117)
Tax calculated at domestics tax rates REAREXFENEAR
applicable to profits/(losses) in the EBER, (BE)MFE
respective countries (Note (i) (M EG)) 12,989 (4,504)
Expenses not deductible for taxation TR ENB B2 E A
purposes 9,265 16,667
Income not subject to taxation DEFATIE 2 WA (4,086) (8,869)
Tax losses for which no deferred income 7k HE 321 1 Fr 15 5 O Bt 75
tax was recognised E518 3,424 8,291
Utilisation of previously unrecognised AR ERERN N EE
tax losses (13,502) (10,117)
Tax incentives for research and & AP B K 37 FfY B 1 B | B 3
development expenses available for X IS B2 (B =E (i)
a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC
(Note (ii) (6,008) (4,330)
Withholding tax on dividends RE ZTEIRTIR 2,417 -
Withholding tax on interest income MEWAZ FBRHIE
(Note (iii)) (B (i) 821 1,680
Overprovision in prior years NATFERMBELERS (1,294) (1,254)
4,026 (2,436)
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
(continued)

13

206

12

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

FEBXH(ER) (8)

Notes: Bt 5

i The weighted average applicable tax rate was 7.3% for the i HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HILFE"
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 4.9%). The change MEFHBEABER73% (ZT—/\F:
is carried by a change in the profitability mix of the Group’s 4.9%) o BB T R A 7R 5 B A 5 B A BT B
subsidiaries in the respective countries. NEIBFRENHEE LR -

i The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority i 755 B [\ AP B A 7 A R ER A 7 A AR R
relating to the research and development expenses of a BARMBERATIMNER - REZREESR
subsidiary in the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the 1R ANEE A MR BB EERENE
Group may claim an additional tax deduction up to 75% FEHAMBRAFEEANTSS (ZZ—N
(2018: 75%) of the relevant research and development G 1 75%) 8 BEINBEUUR & o
expenses incurred in a year approved by the PRC tax
authority.

i The withholding tax rates on interest income earned from i RERETEERZFEBARERHE
entities in the PRC was 7% (2018: 7%). BT% (ZZT—)\F:7%) °

SUBSIDIARIES 13 MEAR

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 HE_Z—N\EER-_ZE—NLF+=A

December 2018 and 2019: :‘f’—EIJt’E;cW%AﬂZﬁ%ZZD—F-

Place of incorporation/
registration Particulars of issued Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries and operation and paid-up capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
WA R LB B/ ZMESens CRTRAZRKAFERE AEEEGREESE TEEH
2019 2018
“E-hE ZE-N\F

Bigland Investment Limited Hong Kong/PRC HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment

AEREERAR &t/ HEH oL Y NERE

Eastern Century Metal Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of metals and

Products Limited B 7&11,000,0007T investment holding

EEeBERBRAT tBE S RREER

Everwinner Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

KENREER AR BH 75%1,000,0007T REER

Fair Win Development Limited ~ Hong Kong/PRC HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property investment

BRERERAR &%/ PH 7#500,0007C NERE

Heroland Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment

REREBRATA ; BT MERE

Hing Cheong Metals (China &  Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100%* 100%*  Processing and trading of

Hong Kong) Limited Ak 7% 1%4,000,0007T copper and brass

RERE (FE)BRAF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

13 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

13 B A

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

8 (&)

registration Particulars of issued Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries and operation and paid-up capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ol NGRS BRI/ ZMESens CRIRMERKAES AEERERERIL TEXRH
2019 2018
“E-NE ZT)\E
Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord PRC US$70,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of steel
Co., Ltd.* (“JESC”) i 70,000,000 7T cords
FRRHHREERA A SHEHER
Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord ~ PRC US$94,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of steel
Co., Ltd.* (“TESC”) (Note (a)) (2018: US$82,000,000) cords
BN HESERDR" 94,000,000 7T SUEMER
(PiEE(a)) (ZZ—/\4:82,000,000
E7)
SEFTSARAR! PRC US$5,700,000 100% 100%  Processing and trading
H 5,700,000% 7T of copper and brass
products
PREAMHMIRE 5
BREE(LE)EBRBRAR PRC US$7,000,000 100%* 100%*  Provision of management
(Note (b)) (FiE (b)) F (2018: US$2,000,000) services
7,000,000% 7T REEE RS
(ZF—/\%:2,000,000
%)
# A wholly foreign owned enterprise 8 2HNERE

*

Directly held by the Company

* ARREEFA

%R ANNUAL REPORT 2019

207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wm
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

13

14

208
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SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(@) The paid up capital of Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co.,
Ltd. increased from US$82,000,000 to US$94,000,000 on
26 November 2019.

(b) The paid up capital of EEBE(LEB)EEER QA
increased from US$2,000,000 to US$7,000,000 on 16
December 2019.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital and
issued any debt securities subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2018: same).

DIVIDENDS

On 24 March 2020, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per fully paid
ordinary share, with total amount of approximately
HK$19,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil). The final dividend is subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The final dividend proposed after 31
December 2019 has not been recognised as a liability
as at 31 December 2019.

13

14

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

M 2= (48)
GEE

(@) BMEAHHESKBRAFANBERANR=
T —NF+—A=+7SHHH82,000,000%
JC3E 1 294,000,000 T °

by BREE(LA)EEARAFAMNEH
RERAR-ZF-—AF+=A+EBEAH
2,000,000 7T 3% il 7,000,000 T, ©

ARAPMEERA ERINEBARFZH
BRAIDEBEZEARFERE EX
AEBEEFEZCEZHOHZMBER
Ale ARAREERRFIEMKHE R A
ZEMBEERRREN TR

BB B R F R R AN RE
BRMECAEBEAKEETEMAE

BEs (ZFE—/\F:1EH) -

g
EFXEERN-_ZT-_ZEF-_A-tHBEE=R
MERAREERBRER AN E ﬁﬂx
1B ZZE-N\F &) AHEE

—jli‘f’fﬂ:‘f‘—ﬁﬂzif;%ﬁﬂx%’\ﬁ
K 8 %) /& 75 #19,000,0007T ° & Hi % &
FEAHREARREEAFRE LERR
- RZFE—NF+ZRA=+—H%
BEKORBRETETFARZE—NE
+ZA=+—HMAaE-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 &EHZ—Z— 1§ +=
15 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company by the weighted

A=t—RIFE

15 SREF, (FH#E)
(a) EX
SREARF, (BE)DRARA
AE AEIEAREZERF, (EE)
B4 0 B BT i AR N4 1 B st

average number of ordinary shares in issue during Ho
the year.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—RHLEE
2019 2018
—B-hE  —E-N\F
Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners &K QRI#A AEEAFE
of the Company used in calculating mA, (E1E) ARETE
basic earnings/(loss) per share: BREARRF, (BE) :
- Continuing operations (HK$’000) —REEEEY
(BE®FIT) 111,744 (4,653)
- Discontinued operation (HK$’000) —ERIEREEER
(B®FIT) (3,400) (4,028)
108,344 (8,681)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (shares)

BRI T 1T B
1,922,900,556 1,922,900,556

From continuing operations attributable 7 A &) % A A fE(5 K B

to the owners of the Company

SERERB O

Bl

(HK cents) 5.81 (0.24)
From discontinued operation REBERIEEEER

(HK cents) () (0.18) (0.21)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share PN/NCIE RN

attributable to the owners of the BREXRRER, (EE)

Company (HK cents) () 5.63 (0.45)
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15 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

210

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated
by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. The
Company has two categories (2018: one category)
of potentially dilutive ordinary shares: convertible
bonds (Note 30) and share options (2018: share
options). For the convertible bonds and share
options, calculations are done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired
at fair value (determined as the average market
share price of the Company’s shares for the year)
based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding convertible bonds
and share options.

For the year ended 31 December 2019,
convertible bonds issued are considered to
be potential ordinary shares and have been
included in the determination of diluted earnings/
(loss) per share from their date of issue. The
convertible bonds have not been included in the
determination of basic earnings/(loss) per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, as the
outstanding share options would result in an
anti-dilution at earnings/(loss) per share, the
diluted earnings/(loss) per share equals the basic
earnings/(loss) per share.

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

15 BREBR (F#E) (8)
(b) #8

BREBERFN(EBE)HEBHA
O BT T AR B EARRE
EBINAETHEEBRMEE -
AR BEMB(ZZE—N\F:—8)
BIEEEL AR TRKRES (K
F130) MiERE (2T —N\F : BR
) AR ESRBEREMNS
Eﬁﬂiﬁﬁ‘%ﬂ&ﬁ%&ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ
MREENEEEBTE  UE

AEAFE(EAAEAR TJ‘&PHHF?
NEFEHEME)EBENRNEE -

HE-_T-NF+ZA=+—HL
FE- %é WA R BEF W R R
BEMT@ER YEBEEBET
2 AREESRESRF (EE)
o RESRITATRELRR
A,/ (EBER)MEES -

BE_ZT-N\F+-_A=1+—HB1Lt
FE - HRAETEBRESYE
REM,(BR)EEREE 8K
BERN (BER)SERERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.vT\ jﬁk#ﬁiﬁﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

15 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 15 BRER (EE) (8)
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) #E (&)

Year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=+—BHLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE  —T)N\F

Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners 72 & B A fE(h
of the Company used in calculating REE&H, (EE)

basic earnings/(loss) per share: ARGTEESRER
&H, (E8) -
- Continuing operations (HK$’000) —BEELEEL
(BBFIT) 111,744 (4,653)
- Discontinued operation (HK$’000) —ERIEREER
(BT (3,400) (4,028)
108,344 (8,681)
Profit adjustment for convertible bonds A ] # i% {& %5 iy 58 & 5% 7
(HK$’000) (B¥ETT) 12,999 =
121,343 (8,681)
Weighted average number of BT EBRMEF S
ordinary shares in issue (shares) (HXT/\) 1,922,900,556 1,922,900,556
Adjustment for convertible bonds MR ES MR (RH)
(shares) 403,486,924 -
Weighted average number of ordinary S EE&EF 2
shares for diluted earnings per share I 18 i% N - 15 £k
(shares) (R&15) 2,326,387,480 1,922,900,556
From continuing operations RAGIHEB ARGRE
attributable to the owners of REsEER (GBI
the Company (HK cents) 5.36 (0.24)
From discontinued operation REERIEEEER
(HK cents) () (0.14) (0.21)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share KAREA AELEER
attributable to the owners of the BERN(BE)
Company (HK cents) (L) 5.22 (0.45)
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v/T\

IR E M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

16

212

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The movement of the net book amount for investment

properties is as follows:

16 REWHE

REMENEmFEE

Leasehold
land and
buildings
HEL i

RETF
HK$’000
BT T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—\F—H—H 70,790
Changes in fair value recognised in ERBREANERZ ATEZS (M)
profit or loss (Note) 4,017
Transferred to property, plant and EREYE - KEKFZE (HE17)
equipment (Note 17) (11,600)
Disposals & (6,370)
Exchange differences MW ER (1,388)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZEB-N\F+-A=+—H 55,449
At 1 January 2019 ﬁé—;ﬁ—ﬂi—ﬂ—a 55,449
Changes in fair value recognised in ERBEAERZ A TFEZS (KT
profit or loss (Note) (718)
Exchange differences HE X ERE (638)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NF+_A=+—H 54,093

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/_.l_\ jﬁk#&iﬁﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REWE (&)

Note:

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3)

The investment properties of the Group represent industrial
property units located in Hong Kong and residential property unit
located in the PRC with following details:

Wi :

ERAEANEZIBEERGABBETAVENE
(F=8)
AEBNREMERUNRBEBN T EYEEN
MR EREEYREMN  FHIENT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ok
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong UREBN T EYEEN 24,800 26,300
Residential property units located in the PRC MNRPABEMFEEFEEN 29,293 29,149
54,093 55,449

The fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 were assessed
by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers”).

The valuations were determined using the direct comparison
approach. Sales price of comparable properties in close proximity
are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot/square meter.

AEBZEREMER T N\FR_F—hF
tTZA=+—BZA ?@E*E}Féﬁizliﬁllﬁi
MEZ BT A AR E X E R &R
BRARAR (TBMEHE]) -

HEEERAERLEE - REFEXNNSHSE
BN ER BRI EEHEER G-
EEFEREENBAZE TR FH KD

B
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IR E M EE

an\

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z_—%

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16
Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (level 3) (continued)

(@)  Industrial property units located in Hong Kong
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units located in Hong Kong as at 31
December 2018 and 2019 are:

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

rREME (F)
GEZNE))

EAEANELIBRERARBETATETE

(B=8) (&)

(@) HMRBEBHNIEMEEAM
RZBE-N\FERZZE-NFE+ZA=+—
B AR EBH T Y B MG ERER
WEZEZERBASBEOT :

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2019 2018
fHER % EEBREARE —E-NF —ZE-)\#F
Direct comparison approach Adjusted market price per square foot HK$5,800 HK$6,200
HELBE BV RAEEOTISER 78 #5,8007T 78 #£6,2007T
As at 31 December 2019, if the adjusted market price per —NEFTZA=+—B WRFE

square foot decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss
would be HK$1,240,000 (2018: HK$1,315,000) lower. The
lower the adjusted market price per square foot, the lower
the fair value.

(b)  Residential property units located in the PRC
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
residential property units located in the PRC as at 31
December 2018 and 2019 are:

Valuation technique

fh{ER &

Unobservable inputs

BEEERARE

&miﬁﬁRm%FﬂT&W6W%%

V825 A8 11,240,0007T (ZZ— )\
iw@%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ)ﬂ%@%l?ﬁ
RS ERBE A FEBRE-

(b) FIRFEEEEMFEEL
RZE-N\FERZZE-NEFE+ZA=+—
A R BEOEEYEEMGEENER
WEZEEEREABITENAT

As at 31 December

®t=A=+-8
2019 2018
—g-1E  —T)\F

Direct comparison approach

HERLLEOE

214

Adjusted market price per square foot

FFHRABROTISER

Ranged from
HK$39,000 to

Ranged from
HK$38,000 to

HK$61,000 HK$52,000
EIE & h

B #39,000TE 138,000 2
7 61,0007T 75 152,0007T

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/_.]_\ ZI-?FK#EH:MT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE
16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REWE(E)
Note: (continued) B aE: (4D
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable FHEANELIESH AR ETATLETSE
inputs (level 3) (continued) (=) (&)
(b) Residential property units located in the PRC (continued) (b) MRFENEEWEEMM] ()
As at 31 December 2019, if the adjusted market price per R—ZBE—h&E+—_A=+—H WESF
square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss ﬁyﬁmzﬁ{jigﬁxz}x;ﬁi 5% - Elj%’ﬁ§¥
would be HK$1,465,000 (2018: HK$1,457,000) lower. The 2 U8 A1 465,000 (ZE— )\ F:
lower the unit replacement cost per square meter, the lower ,?Pf #1,457,0007T ) © i;‘j—*mgﬂug},@
the fair value. R - A FEBIE -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were HE—_T—hE+—_A=+—HIt&EE "
no transfers of investment properties between fair value FERNEEMELNTEERDE 2R ER
hierarchy classifications during the year (2018: same). B (—Z=— N\E:HA) -
At 31 December 2019, the Group had no unprovided contractual R-ZT—hE+-_A=+—H ~XEFBLEEFH
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2018: same). ARFENENETAHBBEBRIES (=2
—N\F:HEHRA) e
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated L TREBEERGEEEmERER:

statement of profit or loss:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF T )\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T Mok
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Rental income e A 1,450 1,804
Direct operating expenses arising from RAFEEERSWARNRENMEZ
investment properties that generated HELEEA
rental income (8) (96)
Changes in fair values recognised in the ERGEERRERZ A TESE
consolidated statement of profit or loss (718) 4,017
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wm jﬁk#ﬁttM%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16
The period of leases whereby the Group leases out it
investment properties under operating leases ranged
from two to six years (2018: one to six years).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, investment
properties of HK$11,600,000 has been reclassified
to property, plant and equipment as a result of
commencement of owner-occupation on 9 September
2018.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown
above comprise land and buildings in Hong Kong and
other regions in the PRC are as follows:

?ﬁﬁ%%(f‘?)
AEERBEREHSEHBEEKREMED
MEBMA—Z F (ZE—)/\F: —EX
F) -

BE_Z-/\F+T_A=+—HL*F
& &Y %8 %11,600,0007T B % +
BR ER-Z-N\FAANLBEHFD
BRDE BENMRE-

PR EMENEHERREEERTE
Hib ey L3 MABFT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2019 2018
—8-hE -—T-N\%
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Hong Kong B8 24,800 26,300
PRC F 29,203 29,149
54,093 55,449
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an\ 7f ﬁkﬂnﬁﬁi |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17 ME - BEKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Construction
land and Leasehold Plant and and Motor in
buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles progress Total
AELH fig Gi-%#E
kEF NEEE  BRERES RE&E RE EEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BRI BT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-NE-F-A
Cost or fair value RAESREE 352,533 4313 2,381,715 32,763 20,511 49,436 2,841,211
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZHTERAE
impairment loss - (3,788)  (1,517,889) (28,047) (17,626) - (1567,344)
Net book amount FEFE 352,533 525 863,832 4716 2,885 49,436 1,273,927
Year ended 31 December 2018  BZ=%-NE+=f=1-H
LEE
Opening net book amount BOEEHE 352,533 525 863,832 4716 2,885 49,436 1,273,927
Additions HE - 763 1,315 467 1,745 49,941 54,031
Disposals e - (354) (6,842) (242) (682) (101) (8,221)
Transferred from investment aRaRENE (o)
properties (Note 16) 11,600 - - - - - 11,600
Transfers a% 671 724 91,454 2,367 - (95,216) -
Depreciation e (36,818) (318) (91,967) (949) (291) - (130,343)
Revaluation (Note) aff (f) 29,816 - - - - = 29,816
Exchange differences EXZE (15,030) (26) (48,443) (273) (163) (742) (64,677)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 342,772 1,314 809,349 6,086 3,494 3318 1,166,333
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-N§+ZB=1-A
Cost or fair value RAEAE 342,772 3,825 2,344,202 31,417 15,888 3318 2,741,422
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZHTERE
impairment loss - (2,511) (1,534,853) (25,331) (12,394) - (1,575,089)
Net book amount FEFE 342,772 1,314 809,349 6,086 3,494 3318 1,166,333
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SRR EM T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

n\/_ﬁ

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 ¥ - BERRZE (E)
(continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Construction
land and Leasehold Plant and and Motor in
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles progress Total
HELH i) Bi-%E
REF NEEE  HERES ET ] HE ERIE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTL BETT BETTL BETTL BT BETT BETT
Year ended 31 December 2019  BZ-Z-AE+-A=1-A
LEE
Opening net book amount BNEEFE 342,772 1,314 809,349 6,086 3,494 3,318 1,166,333
Additions AE - 28 580 240 1,825 53,956 56,629
Disposals f - - (2,237) (248) 1) - (2,576)
Transfers a5 - - 19,250 8 - (19,258) -
Depreciation nE (9,728) (636) (89,140 (947) (437) - (100,888)
Revaluation (Note) &ff (M) (2,744) - - - - - (2,744)
Impairment loss (Note 8) A (rsie) - - (,745) - - - (9,745)
Exchange differences EXzE (6,992) 247 (20,785) (89) (337) (791) (28,747)
Closing net book amount HRERFE 323,308 953 707,272 5,050 4,454 37,25 1,078,262
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-AF+ZB=1-A
Cost or fair value AAESEE 323,308 3,788 2,284,230 28,646 15,057 37,25 2,693,154
Accumulated depreciationand 2 ERAE
impairment loss - (28%5)  (1,576958) (23,59) (11,509) - (161489
Net book amount REFE 323,308 953 707,212 5,050 4,454 37,25 1,078,262
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an\ 7f ﬁkﬂnﬁﬁi |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE
17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 ME -BERRE (B)

(continued)
Note:

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3)

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group represent industrial
property units located in Hong Kong, commercial property unit
located in the PRC and industrial property units located in the
PRC with following details.

GEE

FREANELIBEZGARBETAFETE
(F=5)
AEBWHEETHREFAUREBNITEY
B RP BRI EEYEEN RN T B
TEYESEN FBEWLO T

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—8
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong I A& 2 T ¥ E 7 17,300 18,400
Commercial property unit located in the PRC 7R B 7 pg W2 B 893 913
Industrial property units located in the PRC I A B 2 T ¥ E 7 305,115 323,459
323,308 342,772

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group are carried at
revalued amount. If the leasehold land and buildings had not been
revalued, they would have been included in these consolidated
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation with carrying amount of HK$227,752,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$245,051,000).

AEBMOBAE L RIEFIREGEEEYE - M
HETHMEEFHAEMG AIER=T—1F
T AT HRELRANRRATE 2K
M {8 /&7 #227,752,0007C (— T — /\F : B
245,051,0007T ) 5t A4r & B 5 3R 3% o
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an\ 7f ﬁ#ﬁd: |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE
17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 ME -BERRE (B)

(continued)
Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3) (continued)

The revalued amount as at 31 December 2019 were assessed by
the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Vigers (2018:
same). The valuations were determined using either:

- Direct comparison approach: Sales price of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square foot/
square meter; or

- Depreciated replacement cost approach: Current cost
of replacement/reproduction of the properties. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is replacement
cost per square foot/square meter.

Quantitative information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (level 3):

(a) Industrial property units located in Hong Kong
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units located in Hong Kong as at 31
December 2018 and 2019 are:

BfeE: (#8)

ERAEANELIBEGAMBETAFENE
(E5=%) (&)

RZF—NF+_A=+—"BNEHSERE
VHABEXEERNMGEEMBEBEHFG(=ZF
—N\F:HE) - EERBATE-TEEE:

- EERLBUERINIME AT B 7 5
EERSATEBE (FlNYEEE) 2
ZRELFE - WEETEZRERGA
BEREFARFIHRMER: &

- ENESERRE ERWEBERAK
BEUER AR WEEST EZHRERBAE
RETFIR/FHRONEEKAE

BEEREAN B ABREABEY AT ES
B (E3MMERER

@ GREEZTRWEEL
RoE-NER=F-NE+ZA=+-
B - GRS A0 T 3 0 3 B AT (2
0 BRLRE R ABBNT

As at 31 December

R+=BR=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2019 2018
fRE T % EEBREARE —E-NEF —E-N\F
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price per square foot HK$6,100 HK$6,500
M5 L E A KPAEGTHRMHER 76,100 T 75 16,5007T

As at 31 December 2019, if the adjusted market price
per square foot decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$865,000 (2018:
HK$920,000) lower. The lower the adjusted market price per
square foot, the lower the fair value.

RZFE—NF+—A=+—H WLHAE

l$ﬁRm%FWT$5%£E@ RA U
HE R E 8 A7 #865,0000T (= F — \
£ : 5 %920,0007T) R L - AR E T

FRMSERSE REEBR-
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an\ 7f ﬁ#ﬁd: |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (level 3) (continued)

(b) Commercial property unit located in the PRC
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
commercial property unit in the PRC as at 31 December
2018 and 2019 are:

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

17 W% -BERRE (E)

BfeE: (#8)

FREANELIBEZGARBETAFETE

(B=4%) (#)

(b) MIRFREZEHENMEEN
RZZE—N\FR=ZFE-NF+_A=+—
B R BIe Y EECAERMER
WEBELEREASIENT

As at 31 December

R+=BR=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2019 2018
fRE R % EEBEEARE —E-NEF —E-N\F
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price per square foot HK$20,100 HK$20,500
MG E A KPAEGTHRMHER 720,100 T 75 120,5007T

As at 31 December 2019, if the adjusted market price
per square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$45,000 (2018:
HK$46,000) lower. The lower the adjusted market price per
square meter, the lower the fair value.

(¢)  Industrial property units located in the PRC
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units in the PRC as at 31 December 2018
and 2019 are:

Unobservable inputs

BEBEBARE

Valuation technique

fh{E 7 %

RZB-AF+-A=+—0 WNEHE
lﬁﬁ*m%ﬁ%Wﬁ%ﬁEmFé

J& b4 V=5 M45 0007T ( —ZF—N
-%%%Dmmnw\ﬁ%ém#¥E
KIS ERBE 2 FEBIE-

() MRHBZzIEMESN
W:%fAE&:%*h$+—ﬂ:+*
RIS B ) T X B AL EFTE
mzx DEBRBABIRMT

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\#F

Depreciated replacement cost Unit replacement cost

approach per square meter
EEEEXAT A BERAREMNEERA

Adopted depreciation rate

ERAZITESR

Ranged from Ranged from

HK$1,100 to HK$1,289 to
HK$1,300 HK$3,029
gE M #[El i
11,1002 1,280 &
7 11,300T 75 #53,0297T

Ranged from
52% to 90%
gEH
52%Z%90%

Ranged from
55% to 91%
#EMR
55%%91%
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:MF
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

IR E M EE

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Note: (continued)

222

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3) (continued)

(©)

Industrial property units located in the PRC (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, if the unit replacement cost
per square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$15,256,000 (2018:
HK$16,173,000) lower. The lower the unit replacement cost
per square meter, the lower the fair value.

There were no transfers of leasehold land and buildings
between fair value hierarchy classifications during the year
(2018: same).

As at 31 December 2019, leasehold land and buildings
located in the PRC amounting to HK$189,388,000 (2018:
HK$201,312,000) and plant and machinery amounting to
Nil (2018: HK$90,404,000) are pledged to secure bank
borrowings and loan from a related company as set out in
Note 25.

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

17 W% -BERRE (E)

BfeE: (#8)

ERAEANELIBEGAMBETAFENE
(=% (&)

()

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]

URFRBZ TEYEENM (&)
R_ZE—hE+_A=+—8 WEFH
KEMBBERA FFE5% HHAMERE KR
%;%Hﬂ%;‘% #15,256,0007T (= Z— )\
F : % %16,173,00070) B - FF HKE
EERABRE AFEGE-

FR-HETHERETORXITFTEBRDHE
WEEH (ZF— \F:48R) -

T—AF+=_A=+—8 fuR+H
Eﬁ?’rﬁf’fiﬁﬂ&ET £t {745 %189,388,000
70 (ZF — )\ : ##201,312,0007T) &
BMEREELEEE(ZE—N\F: B
9040400075)E%££W’E7%fﬁﬁé ST
B—RHBEARZERZER  FERKH
525 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e B AE ER S B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&E+-A=+—HILFE

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position

18 EERAREKEERE

(a)

REVBRRRABINEHE

A B R R AR A0 T 5 6 5 6

shows the following amounts relating to the MAEYEIHERRM:
leases in respect of office premises:
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
R-EB-h& KRIZ-NF
+=A=+-H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETIT
Right-of-use assets EEFAE
Offices premises i RNEL S 1,569 2,803
Lease liabilities HEAE
Non-current R 404 1,610
Current RE 1,205 1,193
1,609 2,803

No additions to the right-of-use assets during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

BE_ZT-NAFt+-_A=1+—HB1t
FE BEERAELEIRN-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

—NF+AS+—BLEE
18 BEFAREREEERE (F)

(b) HREBRBRABIBNEE

224

(c)

statement of profit or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss
shows the following amounts relating to the
leases in respect of office premises:

A B RTIT T A& ERRA
wyE S HEGM:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—B-hE  —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BEKEER
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BECRAENITEEZER
(Note 9) (Pt 5£9) 1,199 =
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBENIEER
(Note 11) (Hg3E11) 115 -

The total cash outflow for leases during the year
ended 31 December 2019 is HK$1,312,000.

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 3
years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 &R IASDE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Financial assets at amortised cost: REBHEAATEDN
SREE:

Pledged deposit on loan from a RE—EEERRE KA
related company 2 BERRES - 7,989
Trade receivables JE Wt BR X 579,443 690,931
Bills receivable JE W =% 898,284 924,355
Deposits and other receivables ¥ & N Bt g R 3,038 4,251
Pledged bank deposits BIREEITER 53,921 78,630
Bank balances and cash RITEF LIRS 47,811 66,682
1,582,497 1,772,838

As at 31 December

BR+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZZF-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REBERATER
cRAE:
Trade and bills payables BB EEE 707,010 808,951
Other payables and accruals HENREEREA 168,005 131,231
Loans from related companies RE ﬁﬁz_ Al ZE® 57,644 226,358
Bank borrowings RITER 610,702 874,451
Lease liabilities el fi\ﬁff 1,609 =
1,544,970 2,040,991
Financial liability at fair value through BEATEFABRZ
profit or loss: cRAE:
Convertible bonds AR ES 152,944 =
1,697,914 2,040,991
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_-Z—h&t+=-A=+—

20 LAND USE RIGHTS 20
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent the prepaid lease payments under
operating leases.

HIEFE

+ it {55 A A
ARBEREELIOREFHRARKE
EHETHRMAENRE-

Prepaid

Land use lease
rights payments

AR

=+ i 5 FARE HENRE
HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT

At 1 January 2018 R-ZE—N\F—H—H = 79,042
Amortisation (Note 9) B (FMI7E9) - (4,681)
Exchange differences MEHZERE - (3,464)
At 31 December 2018 R_Z—N\F

+=ZRA=+—H - 70,897
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H - 70,897
Reclassification on adoption of HKFRS 16 % i & /8 B 7% i &5 2 8

F16HMEF DA 70,897 (70,897)
Additions 0 10,616 =
Amortisation (Note 9) oy (fFE9) (1,929) -
Reversal of impairment losses (Note) AEELERE (M) 17,456 =
Exchange differences ME N ER (1,413) -
At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-IF

+=A=+-A 95,627 -

Prepaid lease payments of HK$70,897,000 have
been reclassified to land use rights, being a part of
the right-of-use assets of the Group as at 1 January
2019 upon the adoption of HKFRS 16. During the
year, amortisation expense of HK$1,929,000 (2018:
HK$4,681,000) has been included in costs of sales.

m—%fhifﬂfaﬁéimﬁ%ﬁﬂ&
WwWELERFE169 8 BNEERIB B
70,897, OOOEE%&E%E’\*EEiiﬁl@FH
B RAAEEEEFREN—D -

RAFE - #iHE A %1,929,000T
(ZZT— \F:5%4,681,0007T) D5 A
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

B HRE M EE

20 LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)

21

Note: In 2017, an impairment was made for the carrying amount
of the land use rights for the three parcels of land amounted
to HK$72,500,000 after TESC received a notice regarding
the rescission of confirmation letter in respect of successful
bidding of state-owned land for construction from Tengzhou
City Natural Resources Bureau (formerly known as
Tengzhou Municipal State-owned Land Resources Bureau
regarding the Lands in the state of being idle.

In August 2019, Tengzhou City Natural Resources Bureau
issued the land use right certificates to the Group. The
Group obtained the project planning permits on the total
planned construction area of 46,614 square meters in late
October 2019 for TESC Phase Il Project. The Group intends
to develop the TESC Phase Il Project in different stages.

The Group commenced the construction work in November
2019 and made a reversal of impairment losses on land
use rights of HK$17,456,000 accordingly. The construction
project planning permit on the remaining area (120,660
square meters) has not yet been obtained as at 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, land use rights amounting to
HK$59,591,000 (2018: HK$62,859,000) are pledged to secure
bank borrowings as set out in Note 25.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to one of the CGUs of the Group,
comprising a subsidiary in the steel cord segment,
JESC. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on the value-in-use calculation.

Goodwill allocated to the CGU had been fully impaired
as at 31 December 2018 and 2019.

20

21

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

T fEARE(E)

Mizk: R-Z—1F BMRITERBEMNTER
BRE (ABBENME+ERRD) hZzE
FEEAEN T HORR (BEESR
R ENE H ER R ERE) BAEE
B =18 1 A + 5 A A BR T (B VB R
B ¥ 7% ¥72,500,0007T °

T-NAFNA BNTERERRE
%fvf.‘ﬁifmfﬂ%% TAEE -AEBER
—E-NAF+ATARMNEL ZH1EE
EN%T%E%\JE%&EFE%GMJ?E%Z
ERIRBAIFTAE - AEERS T
fEER B R E 5 —HAB A -

E-Z—NF+—PARBERIRE"
37 AH FE B B + b 55 A AR (B B R B I
17,456,000 R —E— AL E+ - A
=+—H ' MARISFIETE(120,660F
FKR) BB IRBEFAZ-

—NF+=ZA=+—H £BEHEBE
59,591,000t ( == — /\ & : % 62,859,000
To) 2 T fE A IR LERITE AR -
=15 # 5 BB E25 o

/\\\ﬁ/ﬁ?ﬁ
ESE s
BEEWAEE— IE?‘EFE%Q -

BREEKSRI MBIV —HNERR -
ﬁ%ﬁdﬁiiziﬁum—ﬂﬁﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁ)}

REEREEFEEE-
R-B-—NER=_F-AF+-_A=1+—
E@E?fiiﬁi E UM EEE 2808
Be
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

22 INVENTORIES 22 ®FE
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Raw materials JR# 104,954 123,301
Work in progress v O 58,719 59,498
Finished goods 2P mh 144,508 141,530
Less: provision for inventories, net B EERE FE (13,200) (4,361)
294,981 319,968

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales
during the year amounted to HK$1,744,208,000
(2018: HK$1,971,365,000), which included provision
for inventories of HK$9,096,000 (2018: reversal of
provision for inventories HK$740,000).

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE

FAHENEAFHNTFEXNRNAABE
1,744,208,000C (=T — N\F: B K
1971 ,365,0007T) - A BEFEEE
7 #9,096,000T (ZE— N\F : FE&
1%%%@5%%740,0007‘5) °

23 BEWERT EWEE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2019 2018
—®-hE —Z-\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEUBR 3 (B 5E () 600,817 711,055
Less: provision for impairment losses on  Ji : & U BR BURE 18 kB 5

trade receivables (Note (c)) (M 3E(c) (21,374) (20,124)

579,443 690,931

Bills receivable (Note (b)) fE U ZE & (KT (b)) 898,284 924,355

1,477,727 1,615,286
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE
(continued)
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables and bills

23 EWERR EKREE (&)

R K R R B REENL TIE

receivable are denominated in the following currencies: ¥atE -
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE ZZZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
RMB AR 1,387,151 1,499,981
USD E7T 66,083 70,484
Others H B 24,493 44,821
1,477,727 1,615,286
(a) Trade receivables (a) FEWERR

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range
from 30 to 90 days. The aging analysis of the
trade receivables primarily based on invoice date
was as follows:

AEE-—KETFTEESHEFI08E
WHMEERM -EUWEREER
BEZAHREH 2RO T 250
—|T:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2019 2018
—®-hE —Z-\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Up to 90 days £Z=90H 407,713 509,968
91 to 180 days 91£180H 156,211 161,457
Over 180 days %1801 36,893 39,630

600,817 711,055
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE 23 EWERMR EWERIE (&)

(continued)

(b) Bills receivable
The aging analysis of the bills receivable primarily
based on invoice date was as follows:

(b) EWRFEE

RRBREETEREZZBHRH
RE D250

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-8
2019 2018
—®B-nE —B-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Up to 90 days FZ=90H 103,376 91,277
91 to 180 days 91%180H 320,396 339,157
Over 180 days % #1808 474,512 493,921

898,284 924,355

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bills
receivable mature within one year (2018: same).

(i) Transferred receivables

The carrying amounts of the bills receivables
include receivables which are transferred
to banks or suppliers by discounting or
endorsing those receivables on a full
recourse basis. Under these arrangements,
the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating to these
receivables. The Group therefore continues
to recognise the transferred assets in their
entirety in its consolidated statement of
financial position and measuring them at
amortised cost.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE
(continued)
(b) Bills receivable (continued)

(i) Transferred receivables (continued) (i)

23 EWERE

The relevant carrying amounts are as follows:

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

X ERERE (&)

(b) EWRFEE

BWszEE (&)
ERREENT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2019 2018
—E-AF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok e
Bills receivable discounted to RE2HEREEXCHRF
banks with full recourse RITZEWERE
Transferred bills receivable i o2 i U 2 4 166,455 162,157
Associated secured borrowings BB EFERK (166,455) (162,157)
Bills receivable endorsed to BEEHEREXCEET
suppliers with full recourse RITZEWRERE
Transferred bills receivable EREREWREE 565,186 601,547
Associated trade payables 1 28 B 1~ BR 3K (464,412) (557,728)
Associated other payables HE 28 8 5 3R (71,714) (25,999)
Associated prepayments ElEZREEREN (29,060) (17,363)
Associated deposit paid for HEBEWME BE R
the acquisition of property, Bk
plant and equipment - (457)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE 23 FEWER EWEE (&)
(continued)

(c) Provision for impairment losses on trade (c) BEUWERFBERXLXEE
receivables
The movement on the provision for impairment FEWER BB B LA BENEZHNT

losses on trade receivables is as follows:

As at 31 December

Rt+t=-—A=t+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

At beginning of the year F1 20,124 19,742
Net impairment losses on trade RNEE W AR FORE

receivables for the year BRFE

- Continuing operations —HEREE 1,059 1,652

- Discontinued operation (Note 32) —BERIEREED

(Hf3E32) 521 (287)

Exchange differences PE = Z 5 (330) (983)
At end of the year FR 21,374 20,124
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the REEBE SREERRA L
reporting date is the carrying values of each ERRVFENEEE R
class of receivables mentioned above. The Group */\E&_?*hﬁJr_ﬁl =+—
did not hold any collateral as security for these ARV EFEEMERmE
receivables as at 31 December 2018 and 2019. ﬁﬁxﬁﬁguﬁﬁlﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ% o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24 AR EERHEMERX
RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December

Rt=B=+-8
2019 2018
—g-nE  —F)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Current portion BNV D
Prepayments SEENES 26,425 27,258
Deposits e 615 625
Other receivables H A & WK 2,423 3,626
29,463 31,509
Non-current portion FREIBSD
Prepayments for the acquisition of property, B E ¥ ¥ - BE M &RE 2
plant and equipment TEfT K 10,464 1,724
39,927 33,233
The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits TERT R 1R K H h B W 3R & AR T B A
and other receivables are denominated in the following T3 EEEE:
currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T PR T
RMB AR 38,656 32,239
UsD e 5 247
Others H i 5 1,266 747

39,927 33,233
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

25 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 25 EBEE
RZE-—NFEZZFE-NF+ZH
=+—H BETERERETENER
(M5E27) - REBEEQRER (H5E28)
MERTTE R (Wid29) MRFEZ EERA
BR:;

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the carrying
amounts of assets pledged as security for bills payable
(Note 27), loans from related companies (Note 28) and
bank borrowings (Note 29) are:

() leasehold land and buildings: HK$189,388,000
(2018: HK$201,312,000) (Note 17);

(i) plant and machinery: Nil (2018: HK$90,404,000)
(Note 17);
(i) pledged bank deposits: HK$53,921,000 (2018:

HK$78,630,000) (Note 26);

(iv) pledged deposit on loan from a related company:
Nil (2018: HK$7,989,000) (Note 28); and

(v) land use rights: HK$59,951,000 (2018:
HK$62,859,000) (Note 20).

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH
(a) Pledged bank deposits

26 BEABRTER BRITEFRAE

EEABITER
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Pledged bank deposits EEMRITER

53,921 78,630

Pledged bank deposits represents bank deposits
of the Group which were pledged to secure credit
facilities on bills payable granted to subsidiaries
of the Company for the purchase of raw materials.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged
deposits were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest
rate on pledged bank deposits was 0.97% per

annum (2018: 0.61% per annum).

(b) Bank balance and cash

Eﬁ%ﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ XIEARERRITHE
REBRMURARR ZHEBRAH
BERMHZENZBRGEER
B AREEE EMTF AR EE A
AR¥FHE-

R-_ZE—AhF+-_A=+—8"
E%Eﬁ?ﬂifﬁﬁr THEBRFENX A
0.97% (—Z—/)\F: 0.61%) °

(b) RTEEFRES

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8~
2019 2018
—E-hfF —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Bank balances and cash RITEFELRR®

47,811 66,682
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 26
BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
(b) Bank balance and cash (continued)
The carrying amounts of bank balance and cash
were denominated in the following currencies:

EEARTER RITEERES

(b) RITHERRE (#)
SRATHTE R PR A T 31 5
W EHE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-8
2019 2018
—®B-nE —B-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

RMB AR #& 30,209 44,361
HKD ke 16,161 2,701
uUsD ETT 1,347 11,614
Others H i g 94 8,006

47,811 66,682

As at 31 December 2019, funds of the
Group amounting to HK$31,455,000 (2018:
HK$35,904,000) were deposited in bank accounts
opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange
control.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of
the Group as at 31 December 2019 were
HK$47,743,000(2018: HK$66,568,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest
rate on bank balances ranged from 0.01% to
1.15% per annum (2018: 0.01% to 1.0% per
annum).

RZZE-—hF+ZA=+—H K
&= B 5 8178 %31,455,0007T (=

— J\ % : 5 #35,904,0007C ) 77 X
FEHREERNRITRAYARITERS
mMABRE ST ESEIINEEH -

RZE—NF+_A=+—8"
AEBNEAGERRABK
47,743,000c (=2 — \F: B
66,568,0007T ) °

R—ZZE—NhF+_A=+—8"
RITEFERFFNER0.01%E
1.15% (ZE—\F:0.01% =
1.0%) °

236  SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREEEEBRAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁ#ﬁd: |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER 27 ERERRERE HttENSRKEE
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS REH
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF — N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BB T
Trade payables (Note (a)) FETBR X (FY5E () 569,666 655,809
Bills payable (Note (b)) ANESE A IEE(s)) 137,344 153,142
707,010 808,951
Other payables and accruals HttENREEREA
Contract liabilities (Note (c)) GHEE (M) 1,586 125
Accrued wages and salaries BRI kFHE 22,921 18,010
Other tax payables H A FE 18 5,472 8,858
Payables for property, plant and equipment 1% - = K :& & 2 B 5% 77,146 67,004
Other accruals Ehigie 3,653 4,460
Other payables H b T 30 58,326 32,333
169,104 130,790
876,114 939,741
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, REBEHENERR BNRE & EME
bills payables and other payables and accruals are NRRBRERANEEENL T Tt
denominated in the following currencies: 8
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T ST
HKD s 5,689 12,911
RMB AR 851,148 910,033
uUsD ETT 15,929 10,761
Others H 5 3,348 6,036
876,114 939,741
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27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER 27

238

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

(a) Trade payables
The Group’s credit period granted by the
suppliers is 30 days. The aging analysis of the
trade payables primarily based on invoice date
was as follows:

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

ENRRRREE HUESRRE

RER(E)

(a) EFRMK
HEF—RETAKE0ANEE
R -ENERTERBEERAH
MRl 2 BRE D250 T

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2019 2018
—g-nE ZEF-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Up to 30 days %308 135,320 127,868
31 to 90 days 31£90H 193,141 189,506
91 to 180 days 91£180H 203,667 245,983
181 to 365 days 181%365H 36,221 78,844
Over 365 days % mM365H 1,317 13,608

569,666 655,809

(b) Bills payable

(b) BENRE

The aging analysis of the bills payable primarily
based on invoice date was as follows:

ENEETERBZEZAHEH
R DM 25000T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
Up to 30 days %=30H 34,607 37,206
31 to 90 days £90H 50,827 64,814
91 to 180 days 91=180H 51,910 40,007
181 to 365 days 1812 365H - 11,115
137,344 153,142

The bills payable of the Group are secured by
pledged bank deposits as disclosed in Note 25.

AEBzERNZBEACERRETE
R (P FE254 58 ) (EHE AR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER 27 BENERIRERE HttENSRERE

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) REA (?ﬁ"i)

(c) Contract liabilities (c) &HaE
As at 31 December 2019, the contract liabilities RZZE-hFT+A=+—RH4&
for the advanced payments received from the Z’JQTEZ?EH&E\}E‘%*IEE’Q\%@JEH
customers included in the other payables and ;& TEIR B A H 55 %1,586,000
accruals amounted to HK$1,586,000 (2018: T_E (ZZE—N\F: 5 %125,000
HK$125,000). JL) °
The Group applied the practical expedient and AREBEERWMTUERITHAR K
does not disclose the information relating to the BEERBTERBR A —FH—F
remaining performance obligations that have N THFERBETREEENEM -

original expected durations of one year or less.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 HE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HL
December 2019 that was included in the contract FEBRANEA  BREFINE
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year HBEP - HEHE%125,0000T (=
amounted to HK$125,000 (2018: HK$93,000). T— )\ : B%93,0007T) - A&EE
The Group expects to deliver the goods to satisfy EAE SR EEFRARNE
the remaining performance obligations of these V) ANBIT L ENAENFIHE
contract liabilities within one year or less. HWEME-
28 LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES 28 REBEEARZEN
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000

BET T BT T

Loan from Shougang (Hong Kong) REEH(BEB)HBEER

Finance Company Limited (Note (i)) RNR)ZE K (HIEEG) 57,644 205,534
Loan from South China International K E mABBREERR

Leasing Co., Ltd. (“South China Leasing”) 2al([EAHEE])Z

(Note (ii)) (D)) - 20,824

57,644 226,358

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 239



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁ#ﬁd: |§ﬁ

REBEARZER (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE
28 LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES 28
(continued)
Notes:

(i) The amount represents the loan from and interest payable
to Shougang (Hong Kong) Finance Company Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Shougang HK”). The Company is an associate
of Shougang HK. The loan is unsecured, bears interest
at 4.5% per annum (2018: 5% to 6% per annum) and
repayable within one year (2018: same).

(ii) On 29 June 2016, TESC had entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement”) with South China Leasing whereby TESC
had drawn down a loan of RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$81,159,000) from South China Leasing
on 16 August 2016 on a sale and leaseback arrangement,
which was to be repayable by 12 quarterly instalments plus
interest at 5.13% per annum and obligated to pay lease
handling fee of RMB2,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,454,000). South China Leasing is an indirect 75%
owned subsidiary of Shougang Concord Grand (Group)
Limited, which is in turn held as to approximately 50.84%
by Shougang HK. As such, South China Leasing is an
associate of Shougang HK.

As collaterals for the above financing,

(i) TESC transferred the ownership title of certain machineries
and equipment (“Machineries and Equipment”) to South
China Leasing;

(i) TESC placed a pledged deposit of RMB7,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,989,000) to South China
Leasing; and

(i)  the Company entered into a guarantee agreement in favour
of South China Leasing for the payment obligations of TESC
under the Agreement.

Upon discharging TESC’s obligations under the
Agreement, South China Leasing will return the
ownership title of the Machineries and Equipment
to TESC for a nominal purchase price of RMB1,000.
Despite the Agreement involves a legal form of a
lease, the Group accounted for the Agreement as
collateralised borrowing in accordance with the actual
substance of the Agreement.

GEE

() ZEBRARKEEHER (FE)BRA
(TaZEEE]) 2 —R2ENB AR — %ﬁﬂ
(BB MBERDANEREENFE -
ARBREEEEENBERE - ZEHRR
EIE A45% 2 FH X (ZF—\F:
LAB% 6% 2 G F K ) 5t E I B J i — F
NEER(ZZ-N\F:HAE)-

iy MZZE—AR"FEXNAZ+HLB BMEH
HE e —BpE ([ZhEl)
Bt R—ZE—RNENA+SBE—H
EREALTHEEBMNRSREHAER
A R #70,000,0007T (S5 EH ABBE
81,159,000 ) fE R B - & H 12811 F
MEA5.13% 2 FF XA EF SERBRT
ANHEEFEE ARE2,100,0007T (£E
m%%maﬁ¢mw@°ﬁﬁﬁ§%*ﬁ
HERMNS (5@)ERAR (BEES
FFE#50.84% 1% ) HE A 75% Em
NIRRT ﬁﬁ?’rﬁiﬁ%%ﬂl%ﬁém

/N
1B LAt 3 & Ay 4 o -

0) %J‘I%ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%%?ﬁé&%%%&?&ﬁ
(Mg RRiE] ) MmARE:

iy BMESEEHFEAEFEE AR
7,000,0007T (B4 A7%E#7,989,0007T )
WEKIFZRS &

(i)  ARBREIMNRITZBHEER T AEAEN
REBITLNEHHERZ B ANER -

TEREMR T RZIBREB THE RS E
BREF - M HERE A ARKE1,0007TH
%ﬁ'l&%?ﬁ%ﬁﬂiﬁd‘l\l%7‘51%%&%@&

BREOMEE-BEZBEIREED
EERN BASEREZBENER
WA B ZBEIECERER -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

28 LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES

29

B HRE M EE

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of loan Jp—_
from South China Leasing is HK$20,824,000. The
balance is fully settled in August 2019.

BANK BORROWINGS

H Eh
H TA

HE1

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

28 REBELAFAZER

—N\NE+—A=+—B A@EH
/Y BR M (B & 7% ¥20,824,000

ToWBRBER _E-NF/N\AZL2EE

pal

= ©

29 RITERX

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—8H

2019 2018

—E-hF —\F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BEET T BT

Bank loans BITER 445,840 715,430
Less: loan transaction costs BB SR (1,593) (3,136)
444,247 712,294

Discounted bills with recourse BB RERE R R E

(Note 23(b)(i)) (B EE23(b)(0)) 166,455 162,157
610,702 874,451

Non-current portion EREI D 210,241 268,407
Current portion mE R o 400,461 606,044
610,702 874,451

Secured [ 194,363 219,221
Unsecured 45 11 4 416,339 655,230
610,702 874,451
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZ—_ZT— NF+_A=+—HItFE
29 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29 SRITER(E)
The Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as AEBEMRITERKBEENT
follows:
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Within 1 year —FR 400,461 606,044
Between 1 and 2 years —EF[ 210,241 118,407
Between 2 and 5 years —ERFH - 150,000
610,702 874,451

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
fixed rate borrowings and variable rate borrowings
are HK$610,702,000 (2018: HK$577,587,000) and Nil
(2018: HK$296,864,000), respectively.

The bank borrowings of the Group are secured by
leasehold land and buildings and land use rights as
disclosed in Note 25.

As at 31 December 2019, total undrawn facilities
amounted to HK$1,593,000 (2018: approximately
HK$27,102,000).

iR 1 fETAE’]EEﬁTE :FTE*H%"

T-NF+ZA=+—H8 BETEF
T‘*“m);z/ﬁiﬁu?fﬁmZEﬁEfﬁﬁ%lﬁ%
#%610,702,000T (ZF— N\ F: B
577 587,0007T) R E (ZZE—NF &
#296,864,0007T ) °

AREBNRITEREREEL W RETFT
Ko LA+ 3 56 P 4 1 75 19 Q0 7 B RE 25 3

E‘E‘,o

—hE+ZA=+—08" KEW
BB EEE A BB 1,593,000 (= F
— \4F : 497%%27,102,0007T ) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

29 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29
The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contractual interest rates) on bank borrowings
are as follows:

fﬁﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁ (&)
RITERZERANE (FESERETLF
%)W%BH!IDT :

As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hE ZZZE-N\F

Effective interest rate per annum: ERFR X
Fixed rate borrowings & 7 F & B R
Variable rate borrowings FEFMEER

2.55% t0 5.44%  3.40% to0 6.50%
2.55% % 5.44% 3.40% £ 6.50%
3.97% 10 5.17%

- 3.97% 2 517%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBERITERNREMENL TS EEET
B :

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

HKD ke - 296,864
RMB AR 610,702 577,587
610,702 874,451
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30

244

IR E M EE

FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

On 11 February 2019 (the “Issuance Date”), the
Company issued convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$150,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”)
to Jingxi Holdings Limited (“Jingxi Holdings”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co.,
Ltd (“Shougang Group”, which is the substantial
shareholder with significant influence of the Company).
The consideration for the Convertible Bonds was
HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds are interest
bearing at a coupon rate of 4% per annum.

The holder of the Convertible Bonds has:

(i) the option to demand the Company to redeem
the Convertible Bonds on 11 February 2022 (the
“Original Maturity Date”) at 100% of the principal
amount outstanding plus any accrued and unpaid
interest;

(ii) the option to convert the Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion
price derived on certain conditions at the
date of conversion falling 6 months from the
Issuance Date and up to the maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds; and

(iii) the option to extend the Original Maturity Date
twice by one year each to the date falling on 11
February 2024.

The Convertible Bonds, together with the
abovementioned options, were designated as a
financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

30

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

BRAVEFABRGZZESRAE

RZZT—-NEF=-_A+—RB ([#178]) -
RARIMAEZERBR AR ([REAEE
Bl (EHEEERAR([BHE
Bl AARZEEEZENETER
RIWNEZEMBRARETASBEAE
#150,000,000T W) AJ R AR E % ([ A ]
REH]) A BRBRESFHRERBE
150,000,0007T ° A #2 iR & 5 IR & F4 %
WEEMNEEE -

AMEESFHAEARR

() RZZF-_—_F-A+—R([RHKEF
H A |) ERARFIZ100% = K E
BEARDE S NEFER RNAFEME
O] AT #2 i (B 75 1) S 12

(i) HBME (REBATBRBESET
BEEZ2HA E/NEA SR A
HTIRME) BT ESER SR

NAEBBRAEE K

iy ERRAHHEMA BLX—F2E
—EMNFE-A+—HIEMEE-

TRBES EA LUEE B E AR
ATFEHAREZERAE
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an\

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

30 FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE 30 BAFEFTAEZZERERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (%&)

The Convertible Bonds are initially recognised at the
fair value as financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss. The fair value of the Convertible Bonds as at
31 December 2019 was valued by the independent and
professionally qualified valuer, Greater China Appraisal
Limited. The valuation was determined using Black-
Scholes model with Trinominal Tree method.

The movement of the financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2019 is as below:

AR EFNSREAFEERRRAF
Bt ABZZERAE - TTRRESFH
AP EHHBYARAERERNMGE
MEEFERRARN G -ZEENE
FERMEM K o HTR B TR A 8 = X
Pl

BE —NWE+ZA=+—HILF
Z i‘E/ $TEE+)\TE£T&Z$EEET§E’UEE
EFRBREEIOT

HK$’000
BEE T
As at 11 February 2019 —hE_-A+—H
(the “Issuance Date”) ([E&17R1) 150,000
Settlement =N (3,000)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss ERERAERZ AT EEE
(Note 8) (HF7E8) 5,944
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H 152,944
Note: B &

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3)

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2019
are:

Valuation technique

FEREANELZBEN ARBETAERE
(F=#&)
RZZE-—NFE+_A=T—"HBRAZEEELSH
R ABBRERATESFAERZeRAE
=2

Unobservable inputs

fHES % EABREARE
Black-Scholes model with Trinominal Tree method Risk free rate 1.99%
M « TR AR AL B = XX B U 2 2R
Volatlllty 50.51%
EIES
If the risk-free rate shifted upward by 1%, the impact on profit or fMERRWEE EA1% EE L8R EHE
loss would be HK$1,837,000 lower. The higher the risk-free rate, #n 85 1,837,0007T © &R ﬁHﬂZﬁTl Hm ATEE

the lower the fair value. K-
If the volatility shifted upward by 5%, the impact on profit or loss iR BN EF5%  ER 8L ing B f’x’]%”%
would be HK$3,601,000 higher. The higher the volatility, the higher 3,601,000t - ERER W E M A FEE

the fair value.
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31

246

IR E M EE

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

DEFERRED TAX 31 EEHIE
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EIEFTIS & E B B E A A E 58
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax MITERNBEEEHMEHaE A UE
recoverable against current income tax liabilities and MRARIRERGHRER - KRERE
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same BARE - TLAHE -
fiscal authority.
The movement in deferred income tax assets and BEMSHEERBERAFECE
liabilities during the year is as follows: LU
Withholding
tax on
Provision for distributable
Accelerated  impairment Total of Decelerated profit of Total of
tax loss on trade Provision for Tax deferred tax Revaluation subsidiaries deferred tax
depreciation  receivables inventories losses  tax assets depreciation of properties  in the PRC Others liabilities Net total
RAEHE
AAZASE
MEFE ERETAE EERHERE ABZER BERER R
g BXERE FEERE BBER B8 BEREER NEER B Hib #% FHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BETR BETT BETT BETR BETR B¥TR B¥TR BETR B8R B8R
At 1 January 2018 R=2-N\%-5-AH (12,577) (5,489) (2,262) (5,876) (26,204) 11,549 32,101 8,529 1,069 53,248 27,044
(Credited)/charged to R/ GEA) B
profit or loss (2,854) (1,313) ©10) (1,766) (6,843) 2,812 2,319 - (356) 4775 (2,068)
Charged to other EL 2 ERA NS
comprehensive income - - - - - - 5,077 - - 5,077 5,077
Exchange differences ExzE 204 418 8 480 1,099 (812) (720) - ) (1,5%) (436)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+-B=1+-H (15,227) (6,384) (3,175) (7,162) (31,948) 13,549 38,777 8,529 710 61,565 29,617
At 1 January 2019 R=2-h%-5-A (15,227) (6,384) (3,175) (7,162) (31,948) 13,549 38,777 8,529 710 61,565 29,617
(Credited)/charged to (GtA) /B
profit or loss (281) 3,457 (305) (950) 1,921 (3,237) 925 2,417 (709) (604) 1,317
Credited to other A2 ERA NS
comprehensive income - - - - - - (4,606) - - (4,606) (4,606)
Exchange differences EXER (@] 53 (31) (90) (72) (50) (352) - (1) (403) (475)
At 31 December 2019 R-B-AF+-B=1-H (15,512) (2,874) (3,511) (8,202) (30,099 10,262 34,744 10,946 - 55,952 25,853
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated R—ZZE—NhF+_A=+—H K

unused tax losses of HK$101,678,000 (2018:
HK$268,624,000) which shall expire in four to six
years (2018: five to seven years) and estimated unused
tax losses of HK$299,377,000 (2018: HK$316,958,000)
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arise.

%*ﬁﬁ%ﬁiiﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬂéﬁ;‘%ﬁ%
101,678,000 (=& — \F: B
268,624,0007T E&ﬂz%ﬁz%lmi/\i (=
T-N\F:-RHELF) WHERBDAM
TA &5 18 78 299,377,000 ( = — N\
F : %5 %316,958,0007T ) ] R HA A R
HKEEEREFHNEELEBBZRATHN
PN b
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31

32

B HRE M EE

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$215,125,000 (2018:
HK$240,402,000) which no deferred tax asset has been
recognised, as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In September 2019, the Group discontinued the
processing and trading of copper and brass products
business in the PRC. Accordingly, the financial
results of the discontinued business are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
discontinued operation in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sales and Discontinued
Operation” issued by the HKICPA. Comparative
figures have been restated. The financial performance
presented is for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019.

31

32

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

EEBLE (&)
R-ZE—AE+_A=+—H8 A&£H
B B #215,125,0000T (=T — N\F : /B
#240,402,0007T ) &9 AT H R R T 14 =
H EKREHEESTERTEMNA TN
R I EERBEETIBEEE -

ERIEREEK
EZTE—NFNLA AEEERIELES
RAEERAERERAMEOMIRE S ¥
BBl ERIEREEBR T HER
BERESHMASHEMN (FETK
%£W>%wﬁhﬁ%%2#ﬁ@§
ERERIESEER] REKRIEKEE
BEIRGEBRaRREGEE2ARER
R RBFEEI -MINTHRE
REE_ZT— N\FERZE—NF+=ZA
=+—HIEFE-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

32 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 32 BRUEREEK (&)

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+t—HLEE

2019 2018
—E—hE —ZT—N\HF
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Revenue =E 3 - 131,177
Cost of sales $HE AR - (130,814)
Gross profit E 7 - 363
Other gains/(losses), net Huplezs, (Ei8) 388 2 (555)
Expenses 2H (3,018) (4,066)
Net impairment losses on financial assets & gt & E R BB K F5E

(Note 23(c)) (M 7E23(c)) (521) 287
Finance income/(costs) , net WA (BA) R 137 (17)
Loss before income tax BT RIS (3,400) (3,988)
Income tax expense (Note 12) FriEfi i (fgaE12) - (40)
Loss from discontinued operation REBRIEKEEB 2 BB (3,400) (4,028)
Other comprehensive loss HttZHEER
Exchange differences arising on translation E#HE 2 %I & ¥ i &£ £ &

into presentation currency PE & =& (1,094) (2,139)
Total comprehensive loss from REERILEEEXRHZ

discontinued operation FHEEARE (4,494) (6,167)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KmEESELE (BA)

operating activities 2R FRE 402 (8,367)
Net cash generated from investing activities X & /EBE L 2 IR & F 5 140 426
Net cash used in financing activities BEESBRACEEFE (37) (29)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ¥4 KRIE 4 ZHEER
equivalents 23800, (b)) F R 505 (7,970)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 &HZE—Z— NS+ _-_A=+—HItFE
33 SHARE CAPITAL 33 A
Number of
shares
f&1n &k B
Thousand HK$’000
T i BT
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRARKRA:
At 1 January 2018, RZZE-N\F—-—HA—H"
31 December 2018, —NEFE+-_A=+—8"
1 January 2019 and —NWF—HA—Bk
31 December 2019 —NF+=-_A=+—H 1,922,901 1,191,798
Share buy-back = i i% 12

During November and December 2019, the Company
purchased 3,790,000 ordinary shares on-market in
order to achieve an increase in the consolidated net
asset value and/or earnings per share. The buy-back
was approved by shareholders at last year’s annual
general meeting, and the payment was made out of the
Company’s distributable profits with no reduction of
capital.

The shares were acquired at an average price
of HK$0.186 per share, with prices ranging from
HK$0.176 to HK$0.202. The total amount of
HK$705,000 paid to acquire the shares has been
deducted from retained earnings within shareholders’
equity.

AETHENERGAEEFAER RE
REAM AARR —_ZE—AF+—A K
+_ﬂﬁﬁi%i@g%3790000%ﬁ\
@ﬁﬁﬂxfﬂaﬁiimﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁk\
J:?% SRR B - RIEHR A RA A 2B
A R - E¢/x7§5ﬁ9\’§$°

B RN EFHERAETRE0.186
T BREEABEK0176TLE B
0.2027T ° Bl AR 10 FT X Y 4R BB R B 1K
705,0007T * B fEAR R AE 2= 1 &9 K 2 B A
R HBR o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE—T—NF+ZA=+—HIEFE
34 COMMITMENTS 34 &IE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST
Commitments in respect of BEWE - WERZE
the acquisition of property, 2R IE
plant and equipment
— contracted for but not provided —BERIOEEARGE
in the consolidated financial WIS s E B
statements 143,513 1,484
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) B&EHEN
The Group as lessee ArEBERAHEE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had RZE—N\F+_A=+—H 1
commitments for future minimum lease payments BAARESCERY AEERT

250

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

B B 2 H 2 R SR SR A & 32
EMT

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok e e
Within one year —FR - 1,312
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZFERFEN - 1,670
- 2,982

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets for these leases, see Note 18
for further information.

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R Y R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

34 COMMITMENTS (continued) 34

(b) Operating lease commitments (continued)
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

A (4E)

(b)

REEN (8)

rEEESLBEE

REEHR AREREFOTE 2
AREZEREESARINT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within one year —F R 1,530 1,175
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERFN 1,747 1,563
Over five years ZRAF - 63
3,277 2,801
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

252

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before (a) SBRETEBHAER, (FHE)HA
income tax to cash flows used in
operating activities

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

35 GmERESHRERHTE

CEEBHRES

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t-HLEFE

2019 2018
“E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
(Restated)
(Z31)
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELCHERE
Continuing operations FELEEK
Profit/(loss) before tax BBALET (B8) 115,770 (7,129)
Adjustments for: KR
Net impairment loss on trade receivables YRR BB X FE 1,059 1,652
Provision for/(reversal of provision for) FERE/ (BERD) 38
inventories, net 9,096 (740)
Amortisation of land use rights TR 1,929 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BREERE 2 #H - 4,681
Bad debts written off EEREH - 319
Changes in fair value of investment properties ~ REMEAFEZ2E 718 (4,017)
Change in fair value of a financial liability BRATEFABRL
at fair value through profit or loss tRABATEZE 5,944 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - HRE&REZNE 100,860 130,205
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFRENNEER 1,199 =
Impairment losses on property, mE BEREERERE
plant and equipment 9,745 =
Reversal of impairment losses on T A2 REEXEE
land use rights (17,456) -
Losses on disposal of HESE ER F8
club memberships, net - 225
Losses on disposal of property, HENE BERREL
plant and equipment, net BB 58 995 2,154
Interest expenses and amortisation of MELHRERR HKA 2 B
|oan transaction costs 65,569 55,357
Interest income FEMA (865) (1,285)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 MEBSREXRMT (E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before (a) SBRETEBHAER, (FHE)HA
income tax to cash flows used in BRARETHHRAES (B)

operating activities (continued)

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
(Restated)
(E3)
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELCHERE
Continuing operations BEREER
Operating cash flows before movements RBESEDR LERENE
in working capital 294,563 181,422
Changes in working capital: LEEREY:
Inventories BE 9,190 (44,115)
Trade receivables JE I B 5K 93,911 (71,681)
Bills receivable BREE 3,249 (283,331)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ FBFF & & E R UL X (2,150) 59,269
Trade and bills payables ERERREE (92,181) 50,175
Other payables and accruals HttE R kERER 39,385 (14,635)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BeEL/ (PR 28 345,967 (122,896)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 MEBSREXRMT (E)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before (a) SBRETEBHAER, (FHE)HA
income tax to cash flows used in BRARLIHHARSE (H)
operating activities (continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, RiFERERERY HEWE
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and MERERE REMERSE M
equipment, investment properties and club BRIBHAT

memberships:

Year ended 31 December

BZ+=-HA=+—H

LFE
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E3)
Continuing operations BEREEK
Net book amount REFE 2,576 13,662
Losses on disposals of property, HEWE BER&ME-
plant and equipment, investment REMERSEZEE
properties and club memberships (995) (2,379)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  MEMEHE-
plant and equipment, investment BEMEREEZ
properties and club memberships P15 518 1,581 11,283
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE
35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 ZEREHREBRME (B)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) HREZBELENEGEZHE
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRFAVNAEERREETDEEN
liabilities arising from financing activities, BEZEY EREERIIFRE
including both cash and non-cash changes. H-HBAEERDELENABEZS
Liabilities arising from financing activities are REMEFRREERBEGRAE
those for which cash flows were, or future BaREReRERMIEREETH
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s EEXRERNEE-.

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

Financial

liability

Discounted  Loans from at fair value

Bank bills with related through Lease

borrowings recourse companies  profit or loss liabilities Total

BAVER

WEZEN REBE AE&Z
#7ER  ERREE  QNEZER SREE HESE Ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
BT BT i BB BB BETT
(Note 29) (Note 29) (Note 28) (Note 30) (Note 18)
(Mit3t29) (Hizro9) (Hizros) (HizE30) (ft18)

At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\E-f—-H 760,683 37,403 250,924 - - 1,049,010
Cash inflow BEMA 433,266 300,236 - - - 733,502
Cash outflow Bewkd #62942)  (168,694) (27,949 - - (59589)
Exchange differences EiZER (20,304) (6,788) (1,355) = - (28,447)
Non-cash movement FRENY 1,501 - 4738 - - 6,329
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NETZA=1-H 712,294 162,157 226,358 - - 1,100,809
Recognised on adoption of EARABREHAEE

HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) 165 ([1F2.) - - - - 2,803 2,803
At 1 January 2019 R-2-hE-f-A 712,094 162,157 226,358 - 2808 1,103,612
Cash inflow BERA 479,616 275,060 - 150,000 - 904,676
Cash outfiow Béwt (43214 (67075 (1703%) (3,000 (1312 (1,184,99)
Exchange differences EiER (5,992) (3,687) 763 - - (8916)
Non-cash movement FRERY 1,543 - 918 5,944 118 8,523
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NAF+-A=1-H 444,247 166,455 57,644 152,944 1,609 822,899
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36 LUEBRHXAXHZRSH

(@) The Company’s share option scheme

A share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company at
the annual general meeting held on 7 June 2002.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors
(the “Board”) of the Company shall, subject to
and in accordance with the provisions of the
2002 Scheme and the Listing Rules, grant share
options to any eligible participant to subscribe
for shares in the capital of the Company. A new
share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) was
adopted and the 2002 Scheme was terminated by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2012.

The 2012 Scheme became effective on 29 May
2012 upon the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange granting approval of the listing of, and
permission to deal in, any shares falling to be
issued and allotted upon the exercise of the share
options granted.

The share options which have been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2002 Scheme
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with
their terms of issue.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(@) The Company’s share option scheme
(continued)
The Company operates the 2002 Scheme
(subsequently replaced by the 2012 Scheme) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their contributions
to the Group or potential contribution to the
Group. Eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme
include any director (including executive and
non-executive), executive, officer, employee
or shareholder of the Company or any of the
subsidiaries or any of the associates or any of
the joint ventures and any supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser, agent, partner or business
associate who will contribute or has contributed
to the Group.

Qualifying grantees of the 2012 Scheme include
any director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive), executive,
officer, employee, shareholder of the Company or
any of the subsidiaries or any of the associated
companies or any of the joint ventures and any
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, agent,
partner or business associate, who will contribute
or has contributed to the development and growth
of the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2012 Scheme will remain in force
for a period of ten years from 29 May 2012.

36 URHOXZAXHZRES (&)

AR zERETS (E)

RABRI T 518 (EE®
T FERR) EEEE R
BEEMATHASEMEL 2T
Rk Al REE 2 BBl e Z T T —5f
B2 AEBALBEEARARET
R BT B8 2 B sk EL A AT Bt & X R s EL
FERHEESCECARNES (B

BRITRIEHIT) 1TTHRAE @&
BE - BEERBRE R AIHER-
BE HAACER REA-AE
ASEBBREAL ZEKERE
MAEEELERM AL

T CHEZAERARABE
AAFHE A B R R KETM
Bt N RSk AR R R E Y
FHEE (BERT ERTRE
SIEHIT) CTTHRAR - 2AABE -
BESXRERTREER TP
BRACEM - REBA -EBASE
BHREAL ZEBSRERESE
EERRERELEERMZAT R
FEM S BAE BRASON =T — —&F
B —_E——FRAA-_t LB
TERNER-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36 LUR#XNAXHZRE (&)

(continued)

(@) The Company’s share option scheme
(continued)
The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted
under the 2012 Scheme is 192,290,055 shares
which represented 10% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date
of this annual report. The maximum number of
shares issuable under the share options to each
qualifying grantee in the 2012 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue
under the 2012 Scheme. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the
2012 Scheme may be accepted within 60 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.
An option may be exercised under the 2002
Scheme and 2012 Scheme at any time within 10
years from the date of grant of the options or
may be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion. The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised
will be determined by the Board at its discretion.

The exercise price per share in relation to an
option under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme
shall be a price to be determined by the Board
and shall be no less than the highest of (a) the
official closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date on which
the option is offered to an eligible participant/
a qualifying grantee, which must be a business
day; or (b) the official average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of option to an eligible participant/a
qualifying grantee.

(a)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(@) The Company’s share option scheme
(continued)
Pursuant to the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme,
share options held by any eligible participant/
qualifying grantee will lapse automatically upon
their termination of employment but the Board
is empowered to extend the exercise period of
the concerned share options at its discretion.
Relevant exercise period of share options held
by the eligible participant whose employment
terminated during the previous years was
extended and approved by the Board. Such
change does not constitute modification of the
2002 Scheme.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

No share options were granted under the 2002
Scheme during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2019 since the 2002 Scheme had
terminated. During the year ended 31 December
2019, no share options granted under the 2002
Scheme had been exercised or cancelled while
4,000,000 (2018: 103,700,000) share options have
lapsed.

No share options were granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the 2012 Scheme
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019.

36 URHOXZAXHZRES (&)

(a)

AR zERETS (E)

BE—ZFTT 8 KE=_ZF— it
- EREEBRALABEAR
ABRIEBREGH EHBZER
EEAELAN BEESSARLR
ZEBRENTESRR - BETAE
BRATRBEFERILLERAD
a2 BRESREWESST
REME - ZERLTTEHERK S
T eIz B

BREZHEALTR T WIS
IRBRAE EIREZHERF

E-ZZE_HEERL #E==F
—NFERZE-NF+ZA=1+—
BIEFE UTEBERERE_-ZZT
“HERE - BE_T-NF T
A=+T—RBLtFE RE-_TZ=
FE TEREH BREDEITE
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HIEFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36 LUR#XNAXHZRE (&)

(continued)

(@) The Company’s share option scheme
(continued)
The following table discloses details of the
Company’s share options granted under 2002
Scheme held by eligible participants and
movements in such holdings in relation thereto
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and

() ARFAzBERES (8)

TREBESERALTER -

EE -

==

AEBARNRARBEREER REH

—N\Er_ZE—NF+=H

SH-BLEFREZRRED:

2019:
Number of share options for 2019
ZE-nEEREHE
Lapsed Exercise
during Date of Exercise Price per
Grantees At 1.1.2019 the year At 31.12.2019 grant period share
RZB-n% RZB-n%
ERFRREAL -B-H FR%¥ T=A=t-H READ fEHE BRHERE
(Note a) HKS
(Fizta) ik
Employees other than directors 1,200,000 (1,200,000) (Note h) ( HizEh) - 13.7.2009  13.7.2009 - 12.7.2019 0.680
of the Company
BB (AAAEZRIN) 1,200,000 (1,200,000) (Note h) ( Fi5h) - 1372009 1.1.2010- 12.7.2019 0.680
1,600,000 (1,600,000) (Note h) ( HizEh) - 18.7.2009 1.1.2011 -12.7.2019 0.680
4,000,000 (4,000,000) -
Exercisable at year end
REEATR -
Weighted average exercise price
METHREE 0680 0.680 -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&E+-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36 URHOIZINAXZIHZRZ (E)
(continued)
(@) The Company’s share option scheme (a) AT zBEBRESTSE (8)
(continued)

Number of share options for 2018

Z2-\FRREHA
Lapsed Exercise
during Date of  Exercise Price per
Grantees At1.1.2018 theyear  At31.12.2018 grant  period share
H-g-N%F
H2-NF +2A
ERTEREAL -f-A EREN =t-A REAE REH SRTEE
(Note g) HKS
(i) A
Directors of the Company 39,400,000 (39,400,000) (Note (5) ( £b) - 28.1.2008  28.1.2008 - 27.1.2018 0.864
ARAES 5,400,000 (5,400,000) (Note c) (FifzEc) - 1372009 13.7.2009-12.7.2019 0.680
5400000 (5,400,000) (Note c) (Fifzc) - 13.7.2009  1.12010-12.7.2019 0680
(Note ) (F3Ei)
700,000 (7,200,000) (Note c) (Fifzc) - 1372009 1.1.2011-127.2019 0.680
(Note | ( 3£
57,400,000 (57,400,000 -
Employees other than directors 28,700,000 (28,700,000) (Note d (KzEd) - 28.1.2008  28.1.2008 - 27.1.2018 0.864
of the Company 100,000 (100,000) (Note &) (FizFe) - 28.1.2008  28.1.2011 - 27.1.2018 0.864
B8 (RAAESRHM) (Note k) (FEK)
1,350,000 (150,000) (Note f) (A3 1,200,000 13.7.2009  13.7.2009 - 12.7.2019 0.680
1,350,000 (150,000) (Note f)(Fi5£9) 1,200,000 1372009 1.1.2010-12.7.2019 0.680
(Note i) (Fif3E)
1,800,000 (200,000) (Note f) (Fif3E9) 1,600,000 13.7.2009 1.1.2011-12.7.2019 0.680
(Note ) (A2
33,300,000 (29,300,000 4,000,000
All other eligible participants 17,000,000 (17,000,000) (Note g) ( H&Eq) - 28.1.2008  28.1.2008 - 27.1.2018 0.864
FEAAERAL
107,700,000 (103,700,000) 4,000,000
Exercisable at year end 4,000,000
REEAE
Weighted average exercise price 0.826 0.831 0.680
METaRE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

262

(continued)
(@) The Company’s share option scheme
(continued)

The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant to the beginning of the exercise period
except for the share options set out under Note (i)
below.

A total of 39,400,000 share options at the exercise
price of HK$0.864 held by Mr. Li Shaofeng (“Mr. Li”),
Mr. Tang Cornor Kwok Kau, Mr. Leung Shun Sang,
Tony (“Mr. Leung”), Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond and
Mr. Law Yui Lun lapsed during 2018, in which Mr. Li
resigned as an executive Director and chairman with
effect from 18 January 2018. Mr. Leung retired at the
annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018 and did
not offer himself for re— election.

Following the resignation of Mr. Yang Kaiyu (“Mr.
Yang”) as an executive Director and managing
Director with effect from 31 January 2018, the
18,000,000 share options held by Mr. Yang, with the
exercise price of HK$0.680 have lapsed.

A total of 28,700,000 share options at the exercise
price of HK $0.864 lapsed during 2018 in accordance
with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

100,000 share options at the exercise price of
HK$0.864, which have a vesting period of three
years from the date of grant, lapsed during 2018 in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

A total of aggregate 500,000 share options lapsed
during 2018 due to the resignation of an employee.

17,000,000 share options at the exercise price of
HK$0.864 lapsed during 2018 in accordance with the
terms of the 2002 Scheme.

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

36 URHXAXHzRE (F)
(a) ADFRZHEBREE (E)
B

a. BRIV TP EEG)E 2 BAHES  BE
R B B = 1T R AR B 2R 57
B

b. ZFDBSAE ([ZFHLE])  BEKE
ERIEERE ([REE]) ER
REEMBEB T EFEZITER
7 75%0.8647T 2 & £39,400,000/%
BREN =T — \FRKR® - EH
EREA T N\F—A+N\AE
FRTESTREFTR -REERS
T-N\FRATNBRITZRER
FRERE W EREE-

c. BBRAFEE(BEELE]IRZ=Z
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REZHKE BEEFENITE
8 7 #%%0.6807T 2 & 18,000,000
% B8 S e 2K 2 o
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f. & #£5500,0000% i AR B iME B BF
B == — \FRKLK-

9 HEBEMTEFEEABEK.864TTZ
17,000,000% lE R ERIE — T =F
ISR B N ERERR -

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁ#ﬁd: |§ﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(@) The Company’s share option scheme

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

h. A total of aggregate 4,000,000 share options lapsed
during the year due to expiry of the exercise period.

i 5,400,000 share options have a vesting period from
the date of grant to 31 December 2009 and 7,200,000
share options have a vesting period from the date
of grant to 31 December 2010 under the category of
“Directors of the Company”. 1,350,000 share options
have a vesting period from the date of grant to 31
December 2009 and 1,800,000 share options have a
vesting period from the date of grant to 31 December
2010 under the category of “Employees other than the
directors of the Company”.

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s substantial shareholder with significant
influence is Shougang HK, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Shougang Group Co., Ltd., together
with its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
other than the Group, will hereinafter be referred to
as the “Shougang Group”. Accordingly, the Group is
significantly influenced by Shougang Group, which
is part of a larger group of companies ultimately
controlled by the PRC government.

Shougang HK, together with its subsidiaries and
associates other than the Group, will hereinafter be
referred to as the “Shougang HK Group”. Apart from
the transactions with Shougang HK Group, the Group
also conducts businesses with other PRC government-—
related entities in the ordinary course of business.

36 URHXAXHzRE (F)
(a) AARZHERETE (&)
s (&)

h.  &#£%54,000,000/% fE A2 B 1T 2
HifE 2 iR MR AR F R

i. RIARBESE] ERF
5,400,0000% FE AR E A HH A BRZE —
SENE+_A=+—HEEBR
7,200,0000% FE AR E A HH A BRZE —
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SEN AMEEBRAPREBEA
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

37 BEALZRF (&)

() Transactions with PRC government- () EPFERFBEEERZRS

related entities

(a) Transactions with Shougang HK Group (a)

HEREERBEZXE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-HA=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E—hE —ZT—N\HF
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Continuing operations
Consultancy fees paid to
Shougang HK Group
Rental expenses paid to
Shougang HK Group
Issuance of convertible bonds to
Shougang Fund
Loans repayment to
Shougang HK Group
Handling fee paid to
Shougang HK Group
Interest expenses on loans from
Shougang HK Group
Settlement of convertible bonds
issued to Shougang Fund

FEREXE®
XHEERETEERERE

XA TEERREEE

BITENES 2 BRKR
EE2
BEERBEEBZEN

XNTERREEEZ
FEE
KEEZEBEEREZ
ERzMEXZH
ENETRERES
A] HA R B 55

1,110 960

- 1,974
150,000 =
171,166 27,949
- 830

8,261 12,790
3,000 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ jﬁ&%ﬁ&iﬁﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&E+-A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
() Transactions with PRC government- (i)

37 BEALZRF (&)

HEHEBFREER XS

related entities (continued)

(b) Transactions with other PRC
government-related entities
The Group has entered into various
transactions, including sales to, purchases
from and other operating expenses paid to
other PRC government-related entities. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
these transactions are considered as
individually insignificant to the operation of
the Group during the reporting period.

In addition, the Group has entered into
various banking transactions, including
deposits placements, borrowings and other
general banking facilities, with certain banks
and financial institutions which are state-
controlled entities in its ordinary course
of business. In view of the nature of those
banking transactions, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.

(i) Transactions with non-PRC government-

related entities

Compensation of key management personnel
The key management of the Group comprises
all executive directors of the Company, details
of their emoluments are disclosed in Notes 10
and 39, and share-based payment transactions
are disclosed in Note 36, respectively. The
emoluments of the directors of the Company
are decided by the remuneration committee
of the Company having regard to individual’'s
performance, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the
industry and prevailing market condition.

(i)

(%ﬁé‘i)
(b) BEHEKITEEEREZXS
7N £ [E B A b AR B BT [ i
2AIVEZIER G BREEE
F HEBRIMEMEEE
ATHEMTBBTEEETR -
RARREEREB ZEXRSHE
B b A A5 A AN 6 B A HR 45 HR
A& B D REE o

IS - A B2 ) £ 17X B 2R 42
METRITEMBEEERAE
EBBREPIIULZERS B8
BEX - BEREM—RIRT
BE-ZERZFRTIRH 2
B ARBEEBR/BIRE

HIFFEBRFBAEERZRS

FTEEFENEZHH
AEBZEEEEABREARA
FrEMITES  Efe KRN X
Nz R GFHEBD DE'JE/\\\MTJLﬁI‘lO
K 39E Hff E36E B o AN A A
ErMEBAR TZ%M§AE&
BEARE AEB2EXEREF
M MAERIEERERTSHIR
B EEE] ©
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38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

266

IR E M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

N0 A B B AR R

38 XRFNHBMRRARRHEE

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Assets BE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB R R Z R 1,493,646 1,385,001
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T E &E’rﬁlﬁfqﬁl 847 290
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE S B A 168,294 524,677
Bank balances and cash R1T ,%%T?&fﬁfﬁ 14,199 1,411
Total current assets MEEEHAE 183,340 526,378
Total assets EEMEE 1,676,986 1,911,379
Equity and liabilities ERRkEE
Equity attributable to owners of FERAEALGERE AER
the company
Share capital &N 1,191,798 1,191,798
Reserves i 254,399 188,036
Total equity EZEE 1,446,197 1,379,834

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38 AQARMBMBMRRERRFEE (E)

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company RATMBERRE ()
(continued)

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2019 2018
o —N\&
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HiENRKEREA 20,201 29,147
Loan from a related company KE—HBEEARZER 57,644 205,534
Bank borrowings RITER - 28,457
Financial liability at fair value REAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss TRBE 152,944 =
Total current liabilities BB EAEE 230,789 263,138
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Bank borrowings RITER - 268,407
Total liabilities EEHEE 230,789 531,545
Total equity and liabilities EaRkBEER 1,676,986 1,911,379
The statement of financial position of the Company RKARHBERARKER T _FF=H
was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March “tHHREESEeH ETIR TEM I
2020 and was signed on its behalf: HUATESERAEE
Su Fanrong Tang Cornor Kwok Kau
B LR PR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38 AANTMEBMBMRRRRFEE (E)
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves HENEH
Retained
Share profits/
Capital Translation option  (accumulated
reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
REEH/
Exfit Eifie  BRERE  (RHER) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

YT BETT AT BT YT

For the year ended 31 December 2018  HZ-E-NET-A=t-RALEE

At 1 January 2018 RZE-/\E-A-H 23,990 122,685 28,304 (4,310) 171,259
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year RERHE - - - 57,044 57,044
Other comprehensive income Afp2EkE
Exchange difference arising on translation  RHAE 25| ¥ MALNELZE

into presentation currency - (40,267) - - (40,267)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income TEERE (BB)/ WAEE

for the year - (40,267) - 57,044 16,777
Lapse of share options BRESN - - (27,814) 27,814 -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+-R=1-H 23,990 82,418 1,080 80,548 188,036
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves
(continued)

38 AQBNHMBERRERERFEE (E)

HENEEH (F)

Retained
Share profits/
Capital Translation option  (accumulated
reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
REER/
BAGE Eiffe  BRERG  (RHEB) fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT BB BETT BETT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-A 23,990 82,418 1,080 80,548 188,036
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year REEET - - - 87,583 87,583
Other comprehensive income Eb2ENE
Exchange difference arising on translation  R#E 25| ¥ MALNELZE
into presentation currency - (20,515) - - (20,515)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income TEERE (BB)/ WAEE
for the year - (20,515) - 87,583 67,068
Lapse of share options BREXN - - (1,080) 1,080 -
Buy-back of shares RiER - - - (705) (705)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NFT-A=1-H 23,090 61,008 - 168,506 254,399

Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the
benefit of acquiring a shareholder’s loan from a previous
shareholder upon the acquisition of a subsidiary in previous

years.

st : AR ﬂ2£$fﬁ R B 7 LA R E U R
—FﬁFHJE i B8 A\ — Rz AT AR SR B9 B R
Z?’F‘JA"
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+Z-A=+—HILFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 39 EEEMNRER (FEQTMKEH
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED (56622 ) 58383k - Al (KEE
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG EFRBER) RO (5£622GE) &
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. tHRARENEE)

622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEzME
The emoluments of each director of the Company BRESZSZHMEHINBT

is set out as below.

For the year ended 31 December 2019: BEZE—NAF+-HA=1+—H1t
FE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES (FRARBAALAAAMALARE) RECAARYNE

Other emoluments

paid o receivable

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

Employer's ~the management

Allowances  contributionto  of the affairs of
and aretirement  the Company or

Discretionary benefits benefit its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
REZERALT
FENBARXE
EhRn  SENEERE
e §e BERL  RURENEN  RASGEHR  EADEWME it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000

ERTT BT BT BT BT BT BT

Executive directors UiEE
Su Fanrong BNF - 2220 - 27 18 - 2,265
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau ~ 0ED% - 1982 330 7 18 - 2337
Non-executive directors ~ ##{7E%
Liao Jun B& 150 - - - - - 150
Ye Qian (Note &) £ (Wit - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFH{TES

directors
YipKinMan, Raymond ~ EREE 240 - - - - - 240
Law Yui Lun (Note b} BER (Wkb) 240 - - - - - 240
Lam Yiu Kin B2 240 - - - - - 240

870 4202 330 3 3 = 5472
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #HZ_Z—hF&t+-A=+—HILFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 39 EERARER (FBQTEH
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED (5£622F ) #£3831% N El (HEE
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG EFZER)RA ($£622GE) &
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. FTFRABENEE) (B)

622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) ESzMe (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018: HE-_ZT-\F+-A=+—HL
FE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of
the Gompany or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES (TRREAADAUANELIRE) BECALRYME

Qther emoluments

paid or receivable

in respect of

director’s other

services in

connection with

Employer's  the management

Allowances  contributionto  of the affairs of
and aretirement  the Company or

Discretionary benefits benefit its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
HEFERALT
EELGEAES H
2HR EXnEM EORMRBEA
g i g il RAE BRES ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

BRI BRI BRI BT BT BT BRI

Executive directors #nEs

Li Shaofeng 5Dk - - - - - - -
Yang Kaiyu ] - 2 - 1 1l 1320 1,562
Su Fanrong 9 - 1820 - 18 18 - 1,856
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau ~ ED% - 1,981 - 7 5 - 2,040
Non-executive directors ~ ##{7E%

Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2B 72 - - - - - 72
Liao Jun B 150 - - - - - 150
Independent non-executive B FH{TES

directors

YipKinMan, Raymond ~ EREE 240 - - - - - 240
Law Yui Lun EBH 240 - - - - - 240
Lam Yiu Kin B2 240 - - - - - 240

942 4,021 = 2% 81 1,820 6,390
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

39

272

B IR SR

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED

BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

None of the directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting
office as a director during the year (2018: Nil).

Notes:

(@ Mr. Ye Qian was appointed as a non-executive
director on 28 June 2019 and was re-designated as

an executive director on 1 January 2020.

(b) Mr. Law Yui Lun resigned as an independent

non-executive director on 1 January 2020.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during

the year (2018: same).

(c) Consideration provided to or receivable

by third parties for making available
directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company does not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services

(2018: same).

—NEF+TZA=T—HLHFE

39 EEEANRER (FEDQARA
(58622% ) %383fF% - 07 (KEE
ENmER) RO (5622GE) &
EHRAUARENRE) (B)

(a)

(b)

(c)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BREFESEERAF]

EECME (F)

FA BEECAESAREANESTR
32 T W HR 3 i R (R Bl & (=
—N\FRE) -

B &

(a) EFELER-_Z—HAENA=-TAN
BEZEAKRARENTES K
RZZETF—A—HEAFTAX
NEIEITES

b) EEBMELN-_ZTB-_ZTE—HF—H

BEXARABIERTES-
ESENRENRERER

FA-HEEZC LIS WRE
R REN SRR RERN (=T —
FER) -

RENEERBEAE=Fx<HN
ZRE

HE-_T-NF+ZA=+—H
WEFE ARAWERERE SR
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39

40

B IR RS R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 HZE_—F

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND LISTING RULES) (continued)
(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
As at 31 December 2019, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors (2018:
same).

39

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2018: same).

(e)

EVENT OCCURRED AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the country. The
Group will pay close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

40

—NFE+TZA=T—HLFE

EEEARES (FBQAKRH

(58622% ) %383fF% - 07 (KEE
ENmER) RO (5622GE) &
EHRAUARENRE) (B)

(d) FRALUES ZEEF2ZEH
,il)?iﬁﬁi_ﬁﬁ—?% wAZE

EERRAEMIZZ2EHR

R-ZBE-NAF+-_A=+—H8 #
BAER JRFEFTZIXE %‘Jiﬁ
ErEAEERRERGEAZER
EERREMZZRZH (ZF—\
FMER) e

EERNRS ZTHIAEHZEKX
B
ARAERERBITLARA S
HAPETHn kA RREEHZE
BEREAEARDEMNFRALFAE
AREDAFENEARS R
K (ZF—N\F:HR) °

(e)

HERREE

RZZE_ZF 20198 KK T 18 %
(l2019BRAREBRE]) 1% —RHTE
MIZHEREEE2REBERNE i 15
FEET - ANE BB E Y E201957 ik
MEBENER 1%%ﬁ%$%§%
BRAREEHERNTE
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REVMFERE

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group A&£ER-_ZT—hLF+_A=+—HEEZ

as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: KEMEFHIBWOT
Group
interest
Properties Use KEE2z  Category of lease
JES A% Eim  HRER
1. House 5 — 18 and carport Residential 100% Medium term lease
District 5, Legend Garden Villas F= EAFE 4

No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
PRC

FEdE R

5 R 5 &5 K895
BRERNEELRE
5-185% E 2 E 1

2. Workshop Nos. 16, 17 and Industrial and commercial 100% Long term lease
18 on 12th Floor Iz REAF A4
Honour Industrial Centre
No. 6 Sun Yip Street
Chaiwan, Hong Kong
BB SEH FH65
RNIERP L1218
16, 17 218=

3. Apartment Unit 4-14-5, Level 2 Residential 100% Medium term lease
Block 4-8, District 4 FE R EIRR A
Legend Garden Villas
No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
PRC
B R
5 R 5 &5 K895
ERtENZENE
257 30 B} £ 4-81%

4-14-557 =

4. Unit 5E on Level 5 and Commercial and residential 100% Long term lease
Car Park No. 39 on level 2 EEREE REMEL
Jinmin Building

No. 8 Zunyi Road South
Changning District, Shanghai

PRC

HE BT
REREBEMEESH
BEAKE

51E5EZE

K otE HE 1 5395
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DEFINITIONS

EE

I
In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the HEARIRER BXEREHMIE NAEEAR
following terms shall have the meaning set out below: UNPE -

“2002 Scheme”

—=T -z

— =< =< —H

“2012 Scheme”

[—=— 52l

“Able Legend”

[Able Legend J
“Articles”

[EZ488]
“BeijingWest Industries”

[RPEET |

“Bekaert”

[ Bekaert |

“Bekaert Combustion”

[ Bekaert Combustion |

“Board”

=33

A share option scheme adopted and terminated by the Shareholders
at the annual general meetings held on 7 June 2002 and 25 May 2012
respectively

BESINR - EE-_FNALtAR-_E——FRA-+HBETZRERERA
FRE R R 2 BIRERTE

A share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2012 and became effective on 29 May
2012
BRERR-_E-——FREA-_THBBETZRRAFRG LERB/IR _—_T—=
FRAZTHBRERZ FBREE

Able Legend Investments Limited, a subsidiary of Shougang HK
Able Legend Investments Limited @ B2 &5 2 it & A 7

the Articles of Association of the Company
RRREBEIZAA

BeijingWest Industries International Limited (Stock Code: 2339), a
company incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
TAEIBERERAG (RMHMRHE:2339) RASHSIMEIZBERAD
A EROAEBIAER LT

NV Bekaert SA, a company incorporated under the laws of Belgium, a
substantial shareholder (as defined under the SFO) of the Company

NV Bekaert SA" RIFLL MEDERFEMK L AR RRARAIZ FEZRE (1R
BEFAPEEROIIEE)

Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of
Bekaert, is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the SFO) of the
Company

Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V.’ Bekaertz 2 &M B A& - AARQ A
ZEERR (BREZEHLBEGIITEE)

the board of Directors

ARREEE
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DEFINITIONS

“Board Diversity Policy”
[E=EX B ZTEBE]
“Casula”

[Casula |

“Code”

[=r 8l

“Companies Ordinance”
IPNCIEESUN

“Company”/
“Shougang Century”

[ARR]/TBEREE]

“Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy”

[ EREE TBUR]

“Conversion Price”

[ A 2

“Conversion Rights”

(453 ]

“Conversion Share(s)”

[ B A An

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited’s Board Diversity Policy
adopted on 26 August 2013 and revised from time to time thereafter
EREEEEERAFAZEZFERESZTEBRE _T—=F\A -+
BRI A BE & T RFHERT

Casula Investments Limited, a subsidiary of Shougang HK
Casula Investments Limited @ 1% &5 2 [ & A 7

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

EmRAIM SRt Oz CEERERTRD

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
B A E622F X A &I

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

BREEEBEERAG —HRBBTMAK L2 BR R TR ERD B FT
TR ET

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited’s Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy adopted on 28 March 2011 and revised from time to
time thereafter
BEREEEEAERARAZHEEREEARRE_ZE——F=A-_+T\BK
AN T BE 18 TEFERT

HK$0.33 per Conversion Share (subject to adjustment)
TR AR AR 17 7 #50.337T (A TR %)

the rights to convert the Convertible Bonds into Conversion Shares

75 AT #R AR 1 25 88 4R 2 R R i A RO 4 A

the Share(s) to be issued by the Company upon the holder(s) of the
Convertible Bonds exercising its/their Conversion Rights attached to the
Convertible Bonds in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
instrument constituting the Convertible Bonds
RRABRAIRRES A ARBB AT RKRES T AN GRREGRGITER
FREAVHRESMFOERERS TEITORD
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DEFINITIONS

“Convertible Bonds”

[ A3 A& 75

“Copper and brass products”

[§ K 7 §R 41 %

“Director(s)”

[E=]

“Employment Ordinance”

[ 4 15 ik 51
“EUR”
BT ]

“Fair Union”
[ Fair Union |

“Group”
[AEE]

“HKD/HK$”
(&% ]

“Hong Kong”
(&8 ]

“Internal Control Manual”

[ABEPEE1EE 5

“JESC”

the 4% unsecured fixed coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$150,000,000 due 2022 (extendable to 2024)
issued by the Company to Jingxi Holdings pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement
RARRIBERBEHZEIT T RAZERN AN S E5RHE%150,000,0007TH =
T _FHB(AIERE-Z_NF)N4%EERE TR B AT RRES

processing and trading of copper and brass products
R ERAEHINIRE S

the director(s) of the Company

ARAES

the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EREEDIESTE & 1% 155

Euros, the lawful currency of the participating states within the European
Union

BT BEEBEEE SR

Fair Union Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang HK
Fair Union Holdings Limited* B2 &E 22 E B RQ 7

the Company and its subsidiaries
ARRARENEB R E

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BEEEESN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B & B R R 1T R &R

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited’s internal management and
control manual adopted in 1999 and revised from time to time thereafter
BEREEEEERARZANERE REEESI B —NMNANFRALREER
REFERT

Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
FEHERAMESKARAR REFBEEZETIMKLZ A8 BRARE ZE#E
BB RA

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 277



DEFINITIONS

“Jingxi Holdings”

[P A

“Li Ka Shing Foundation”

[F 5

S%‘;

s

K
i3

“Listing Rules”

[ 75 Al
“Model Code”
[ 27 A |

“Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company”

[fR2 AR EEHR]

“PRC”

[

“Richson”
[Richson |

“RMB”
AR

“SCCHL Code”

[BEREETA

Jingxi Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund

RAZEKRBERAR] —RHREFBEEITMALNERAG REHESH
BB A

Li Ka Shing Foundation Limited, a “charitable body” within the meaning
of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), a substantial shareholder (as defined under the SFO) of the
Company

EHESGARAR REBENB112EWRBKROIMAEL [REEE
RERFIZFERR (REZHFLATKRIER)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B PR R AR Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EABMESE T (EMBETAESETESFXSNFRESTAD

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited’s Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company adopted on 18 December 2018 and revised from
time to time thereafter
EREEEEERAAZEREZRAFEZFRRR T NAFT-_ATABRK
AN I 7B 18 T ERT

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report shall
exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

FEARKME RARETHE  FRESE RFIRAHE

Richson Limited, a subsidiary of Shougang HK
Richson Limited * B &E Z B A 7

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR HBEEEEHY

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited’s Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors and Specified Individuals adopted in 2004 and
revised from time to time thereafter
BEREEEBEERARZESTSAEETEATETESFRINFLETAE_F
T F LRI P BE & TNEFER]
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DEFINITIONS

“SCCHL Corporate
Governance Code”
[BEREBEELEERTH

“SFO”
&% & H & & B

“Share(s)”
[ A% 15 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 3R]

“Shougang Fund”

=g
“Shougang Grand”
[E&RMN7]

“Shougang Group”

[ & & |

“Shougang HK”
[EERE]

“Shougang International”

[BREER]

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited’s Code on Corporate
Governance (revised from time to time)
EREEEEARARZEEE AT (TREET)

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BEBIEDIFEST1E B 5 R E &

ordinary share(s) of the Company
PN Dol )i

shareholder(s) of the Company

ARAZBRER

Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd., a company established in the PRC with
limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group
TREHESAERAR —HRPEKYNERECTAR REHNEENS
BB LA

Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (Stock Code: 730), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BROF(KE)ERARA (RMRIK:730) REREFMKLZERA
A EROAEBIAER LM

Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned enterprise under the
direct supervision of the Beijing State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission), a controlling shareholder (as defined under
the SFO) of the Company

BEMEEARAT (—HXNTFEXNINBEERR RItRBEEEEEERE
ZEGHEEEE) RARQA—BEBRBRR (REZFLHARKRIESR)

Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
SFO) of the Company

BHlER (BE)BRAR REBFMKLZERAR BRARRIZEER
R(BEZFMPERIER)

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited (Stock
Code: 697), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BEREBCEBRAA (KRMDA:697) REBZMKIZZBR AR H
MR AP FEBE ZZ P EAR TR
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DEFINITIONS

“Steel cord(s)”
[ 5 5 4% |

“Stock Exchange/HKEX”
[ 36 52 AT

“Subscription”
[REEEIE]
“Subscription Agreement”

[ 587 16 o
“TESC”
[BE MR 7T |

“TESC Phase Il Project”
[BeINER 7 —BRTE B |

“Usb”
Sy

u%n
[% |

manufacturing of steel cord(s) for radial tyres

SUE FF AR5 i 1 0 AR AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERMERXIABRAR

the subscription for the Convertible Bonds by Jingxi Holdings pursuant to
the terms and subject to the conditions of the Subscription Agreement
TG P AR 1R 58 B 1 o B (AR AR X AR AR IR R AT AR E %

the subscription agreement dated 18 December 2018 entered into
between the Company and Jingxi Holdings in relation to the Subscription
ARRARREZRAREEEIINARA - \F+-A+\BHR
B

Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under
the laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

BONR S HEARER AR RBEPBOERFTMKILZ AF RARAZEE
BB RA

the construction project of production lines with an annual capacity of
20,000 tonnes of brass wires (half product or work in progress)
R FEE20,000W8 & 44 (R maERm) EERNIAR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

X XBAEER

per cent.
ADLt
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